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Our driving ambition

IS to enrich the lives of our
customers so that they can
experience retirement
living to the full

Images
1 Keetiey Place, Moreton-in-Marsh
2 HBF oword presentation

at Alger View, Scorborgugh



STRATEGIC REPCRT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contents

STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Graphic removed o

FINAMNCIAL STATERMENTS

Graphic removed

Image
1 Lewson Grange, Wiimsiow

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 1



image

Tl Loy etes.

ngham

Strategic and
Operational Highlights

40 years

40 years since the opening of the first McCarthy
& Stone retirement development at Waverley
House, New Milton, in Qctobar 1977

75 sites added
to the land bank

75 high-quality development sites added to
the land bank (FY16 65 sites) Total land bank
of 8967 plats (FY16 10,186 piats), equivalent
(o 4 3 years' supply (FY16 4 4 years' supply)

Access to
the growin
rental market

New strategic refationship with PP Capital'
allowing access the growing rentat market

Workflow on track

Workflow on track to support growth strategy
and deliver ¢ 80 new sales releases in FY8
(FY17 52 sales reieases)

Graphic removed
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McCarthy & Stone plc

Five Star rating

Awarded full Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction by the Home Buiiders Federation
(HBF") for the twelfth consecutve year - the
only UK housebutlder of any size or type to
achieve this accolade

3,000 units
medivm-term

Sufficient land under contral and operavonal
platform now fully In place to deliver strategic
objective of building and selling more than
3,600 units per annum over the medium-ierm

15 Quality Awards

15 Qualty Awards (FY16 10 awards), 7 Seals

of Excellence (FY16 2 Seals of Excellence) and

1 Regronal Wmner at the 2017 Nationaf House
Building Council (NHBC) Pride in the Job awards
underpinning exceptional buld quality



Financial
Highlights

Revenue
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Legal completions’
Unilts
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Average selling price!
£

£660.9m

Gross profit

2,302
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Underlying profit before tax’
£m

£130.7m

Tangible net asset value’

£94.1m

o7 Y]

Year-end net cash/{debt)?

£676.4m

]

1 Excluding commercial units
2 See poge 158 for glossary of ferms

3 Unideriying profit befure tax has beer reconuled welbin note b 10 the Consalivored 1nonaol Siorerments
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Qur Business

Retirement living to the full

Graphic removed

We are the sector leader with
more than a 70%’ share of the
owner-occupied retirement
housing market

P Bosed on 4,778 registrahons of rross renura propettins specrfirally
designed for The eldecly ik the NHBC durmg 18 monith period endied fmage
300 june 2077, of which 3 GR4 ware regisiered by MeCartny & Sione 1 Bowes Lyon Court, Poundbury

6 McCarthy & Stone pic




STRATEGIC REPORT

We place our customers’ and homeowners’
needs at the heart of everything we do and have
an unparalleled understanding of our market

as the only listed national housebuilder to focus
exclusively on the needs of older people

Our model

Our modelss based on buying land,
securing detatled planning consent and
then bullding and seiling high-quality
retirement developments Importantly,
we then take on the management of our
developments and provide a range of
property mantenance, support and care
services to help ennch the lives of our
homeowners

Qur customers
Our customers ale looking to maintain
their Independence with private heme
ownership but also want companionship,
alirtle more assistance with everyday
tasks and the knowledge that support
1s on hand should it be needed 8
ﬁrov;d:ng well-designed and well-located
ousing with on-site SUpPort services,
we are able to carer for a wide range of
needs and help our customers Iive
healthier and happier lives

=

[
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Customner satisfaction

In March 2017, we again recelved

the full Five Star award for customer
satisfaction for our products and
services In the iIndependent survey

by the HBF and NHBC We are the anly
housebullder of any size or type 1
have achieved this accolade for twelve
conseculive years The HBF's yearly
guestionnaire s one of the largest
customer surveys, totaling 52,290
purchasers of 2 new home in 2016
More than 90% of the 1,433 customers
who completed the survey were happy
to recommend us

We are pfeased that almost nine out

of ten of our customers also feel that
moving to one of our deve\oPments
has improved their quality of life

As well as the general ifestyle we
provide, this 15 testament to our sales
approach and rmanagement services
offering that ensures homeowners and
their farmilies are supperted and guided
through the purchasing process and
receve all the support they need while
living with us

1
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Our Business continued

Our 40th year

r —I 2017 marks 40 years since the opening of
McCarthy & Stone’s first retirement development
at Waverley House, New Milton, in October 1977
We are proud of our subsequent record of
Graphic removed achievernents and success, which gives us
unrvalled expertise in this sector

McCarthy & Stone ploneered the retirement
L _l housing sectar for homeowners after seeing a
gap in the market, and we have since enriched
the iives of tens of thausands of older people
and their families We have bullk and sold aver
34,000 apartments across ¢ 1,200 developments

Graphic removed
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To celebrate our 40th anniversary, we have
partnered with the Royal Voluntary Service [RVS')
for 2017, which also has a long histary of

suppor ting older people Qur staff have raised
more than £200,000 for this werthy cause during
2017 via 3 wide ran%e of actwuies from dragon boac
races and charity balls to parachute Jumps in Duba
We intend to continue this fundrasing into FY18

we would like to thank our dedicated employees,
as well as our homeewners and our suppliers who
have helped us reach this milestone

D You
HNGW?
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Our awards

Our position as the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder and our
ambition to enrich the lives of our
customers and homeowners are further
evidenced by the awards that we have won

=
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The only nousebuilder w receve the
full Feve Star racing from the HBF for
Graphicremoved 12 consecutive years IG:P*“
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EBF!Housebu;I]der a\ffvards - Best

etirement Scheme for Ramsay Grange

Grapteic removed and Lyle Court in Edinburgh, and Best
Customer Sausfaction Initiative

raph

r
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I ] Pride in the job - 15 site managers won

Graphic removed the coveted Pride in the Job Award from
the NHBC, 2 50% increase on last year
In addition, 7 site manzagers wor Seals
of Excellence and 1 Reglonal Winner

14
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tmages
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2 tousebudder Agards L R David Brdges, Group Muarkeirng & Custamer
Expertent e Dicegtor with the South Lost regicnw! feam recammg the
1Houseburlder Award from arror james Nesbat

c remo!
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2016 Management Today - Featured
n the list of Britain's Most Admired

ic removed Companies

2017 ARMA ACE awards - Highly
Commended for On-Site House
Manager of the Year

Building Safety Group {BSG) awards
- Three national awards, ncluding the
Innovation Award

by
a

1  WhatHouse? awards - Bronze ir (he
hic ""“’"il Best Reurement Scheme category
for Constance Place, Knebworth
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Chairman’s Statement

On track to deliver our
medium-term growth objective

|_ —l Revenue

£660.9m

(F¥16' £635 9m)

Graphicremoved
Rividend, pence per share

5.4 pence

{FY16. 4.5 pence)

L |

Johr White. Group Non-Executive Chairman tam pleased to present our second set
of full year resulis since re-joining the
London Stock Exchange in Novernber
2015 The Group delivered a solid
performance this year notwithstanding
the headwinds experienced as a result
of increased political and economic
uncertainty Revenue increased toc a
record £661Tm (FY16 £636m}and the
Group continued to captalise on the
attractive demographic opportunity
and structurat shortage of supply
of retirement housing In the UK As
previously announced, trading in the
first six manths of FY17 was constramed
by the lower forward order book
brought into the year impacted by the
market uncertainty following the EU
Referendum Trading in the second half
of F¥17 saw ah improvement due o
an increased weighting of completions
fram newer higher margin sites,
reflecting the quality and location
of the developments McCarthy &
Stone 15 now bringing to market

Profit Before Tax reguced from £93m in
F¥Y16 to £92¢m in FY17 with Underfying
Profit Before Tax reducing from £185m
In FY16 to £94m i FY17 This reduction
in profitability was mainly driven by the
age and mix of units sold, increased

10 McCarthy & Stone plc




ncentive costs, build cost Increases
offset by pricing improvements, scrne
addinenal land reneganiation costs as we
repositioned our land bankin the face
of more challenging market condions
and our continued iNvestment N
regional operatuonal infrastructure

to support our growth strategy

The Group remains the UK's leading
retirement housebuilder with a greater
than 70% share of the gwner-occupled
market Qur strength of brand and
continual strving for operational
excellence ensures that we can continue
1o deliver solid results in a challenging
market witholst 2ny support from the
Government Help To Buy schemne

We have a strong and experienced
manggement team that is focused

on delivering the Group's strategic
objectives, a high-quality land bank, a
robust balance sheet and the necessary
operational expertise and infrastructure
in place to deliver cur medum-term
growth strategy of building and selling
more than 3,000 units per annum

We continue to lead the housebulding
sector on customer sausfaction We
are the only housebuilder of any size

or type to have received the full Five
Star rating in the Home Builders
Federation customer satisfaction
survey far twelve consecutive years, In
which more than 80% of our customers
would recommend us to a fnend

Outlook

The improvement of forward sales
experienced throughout the year has
continued Into FY18 with tatal forward
sales including legal completians since
1 Septemnber 2017 standing at £277m
at 10 November 2017 (FY¥7 £250m)

Economic and

politicaf environment

The underlying housing market
conunues to be supported by low
Interest rates, good morgage avalabity
and low levels of unemployment

The market for retrement housing
also remains highly attractive,
underpinned by strong demand, albert
the secendairy market was impacted
by poliucal sind economic uncertanty
Research by the Department for
Communities and Local Governmers
{DCLG") recogrises that arcund 74% of
household growth in the UK to 2039

1s expected to come from those aged
65 and over® and McCarthy & Stone
remains uniquely placed to capitatise
an this unprecedented demographic
opportuntty in which demand continues
to dramatically exceed supply

STRATEGIC REPORT

Dividend

The Group's solid performance this year
has enabled the Directors to propose

a final dwidend of 3 6 pence per share
This follows the interim dividend of 18
pence per share, gving a total dividend
for the year of 5 4 pence per share
{FY16 4 5 pence per share pro-rated for
period since hsting), which represents
20% growth an the FY16 dvidend and

s 11 line with our progressive dividend
pelicy as stated at the time of our Initial
Public Offering (1IPO’)

Board changes
There were a number of Board changes
during the year

Cn 6 January 2017, we were plessed

to announce the appomntment of
Rowan Baker as the Group'’s Chief
Financial Officer Rowan was previously
Group Finanaal Controller and has
warked for the Group since January
2012 She took over the rele from

Nick Maddock whose resignation

was annaunced on 11 October 2016

On 1 June 2017, we announced the
appaintment of jJohn Tonkiss as the
Group’s Chuef Operating Officer This
rele has been created to help drive
the Group's growth strategy A key
part of the rofe will be cverseeing the
conunued development of the Group’s
nine regional operations across the
UK john joined McCarthy & Stone in
2014 and was previously the Group's
National Operations Director

In additien to this, John Carter joined
the Board on 1 October 2017 John
15 currantly Chief Executive of Travis
Perkins plc, which owns many of the
building Industry's most poputar
brands and spans the trade, home
improvement and DIY markets john
ained Trawis Pertans mn 1978 and held
a number of senior strategic roles
within the business befare being
appomnted as Chief Executive in 214

Finaily, on 9 November 2017 we were
pleased to announce the appointment
Paul Lester CBE as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairman Designate

He will join the Board on 3 January

2018 and, subject ta fus election by
shareholders, will take over from me

as Chairman at the conclusion of the
Company's next Annual General Meeting
{AGM"1n January 2018 Paul 1s currently
Chairman of Essentra plc and Forterra
plc and was formerly a director of
Invensys plc Previously, he was Group
Managing Director of Balfour Beatry plc
before becarning Chief Executive

7 1he Department for Cornmumires ond Loce! Government

FDCLG) household propeclions England guly 2016)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Cib YOU
KNOW?

3,000

Our medium-term strategic
target is to huild and se
3,000 units per annum

Image | Birch Court, Marrston

of support services company VT Group
ple in 2002 Paul was also Chairman of
John Laing Infrastructure Fund untl
September this year

We are very pleased that Paul will be
Joining the McCarthy & Stone Board
and succeeding me as Chairman
McCarthy & Stone 15 a great business
and | am proud to have served on the
Board during a transformatienal period
for the Company, cufminating in its
successfut PO in 2015 While market
uncertainty following recent political
events has acied as a sterntest for
our business model, | am pleased that
our high-quality product and excellent
tearn led by Clive Fenton have proved
McCarthy & Stone's resilience

The Company remains uniguely-placed
to capitahise on the substantal growth
oppartunity In retirement Nousing,
driven by a rapidly ageing populaticn,
and the team can lock to the future with
confidence The Group has made soiid
progress towards achieving Its strategic
cbjectives this year and rny thanks go to
all employees, the management team
and my fellow Board members for the
sigrficant contribution they have made

John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman
13 Navernber 2017

L
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Our Market

Attractive demographic opportunity

Graphic removed

There is a structural shortage of

suitable housing options for older

people and more retirement

heusing is needed for the UK's [_ _l
rapidly ageing population

Graphic eemoved
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Our market

The UK population stands at its highest
ever at 65 b and continues to get older
There are currently 11 8m' people aged
65 or over, rising (¢ 173m? by 2037 - 3
47% ncrease For those aged 85 or over,
the increase will be larger, from 1 6m'

o 3 0m? by 2037, an increase of 88%7,
This will place iNcreasing pressure on
the hausing systermn and care providers
The DCLG estmates thal 74% of all
household growth to 2039 will come
from purchases made by older peaple?

Structural shortage of supply

There also remains a structural shortage
i the supply of specialist housing for
older people Just 47784 registrations of
reurement properties were made with
the NHBC during the 18 month period
ended 30 June 2017, and there have only
ever been ¢ 157,000° units of owner-
cccupied retirement Rousing Suilt in the
UKto date Praperty consultancy Knight
Frank estimates that the UK s building
JUst € 5,500 units of retirernant housing
across all enures each year, and yet the
sector has the capadity Lo grow to

€ 30,000 units per annum®

This undersupply 1sin part due ta the
very high barriers to entry in this sector,
meaning few prowders operaie at scale
As aresLlt, we continue to maintain our
€ 70% share of the owner-occupred
retirement housing market®

This 15 set aganst the backdrop of
awider housing shortage In total,
153,3707 new homes were started In
England during 2016 (a 5% increase
year-on-year), although estimates
suggest that up te 300,000 new homes
are needed per year®, creating a
yearly shor[%ll of half this amount

Downsizing

There are also a significant number

of older pecple locking to dawnsize
Reseai ch by YouGov for McCarthy

& Stone in 2017 found that 38% of
older people are locking to move to

a smaller property, and an additional
10% wouid be encouraged to move
with a stamp duty exemption, equalling
48% - a nse of 4% from the prior year’

Office [+ Naranal Stausiics (ONS) Cverview of
the UK population fuly 2017)

ONS, 2017 (2016 based) populotion projections
Departmenl far Communilies and Locol
Governestent (DCLG). 201 4-bosed household
projections Englond, 2014-2039

4 Bused v 4.7 78 registrations of cross-tenure
properties specificofly designed for the elderly
with the NIBC ouring 13 month perod ended
30 fure 2017, of which 3684 were reglstered
o McCrrthy & Stone

WA
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Demand driven by strong fundamentals

UK population;
65.6m people’

of which 11.8m

are 65 years old or over'

Of which 29%, or 3.4M
have equity of £250k-£500k®

v

Of which 38%, or

<1.3m

are considering downsizing®
- our target demographic™

Compares with just

157k

owner occupied retirement
properties built in the UK®

With a 47% predicted increase
in those aged 65 or over by 20372

FAC dorg bused on owner-orcuged rellremery
houstng (2017

Krught Frank, Retiremert Housing, 2016
CCLG, 2017, Housing Staris bt S-year fugh
The House of Lorids Fcanomuc Afforrs sefect
commtgee 2016, Englond needs 1o bintd
300,000 hiomies a yeor

Youtow, 2017, research prowded by YouGav
Jor McCarthy and Stone

10 ONS, tatad nowsng e dith by regror ond uge
group 2013)

11 Qi worget defnographic group s discissed further
) ‘Our Prodicts and Our Ljestyie' on pages 16 25
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Government support

Posiuvely, the Governiment continues o seek ways (o
encourage the regrement housing sector The Housing

White Paper, 'Fixing our broken housing market, published in
Febiruary 2017, recogrises that offering older people a better
choice of accommadation heips thern to bve independently for

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

longer and reduces costs to the bealth and social care system
It alsa notes that heiping clder people to move at the right time
and i the right way improves ther quality of life and frees up
more homes for other buyers in¢luding those much needed
for families

Housing White Paper in summary

The White Paper contained a number
of positive proposals for our business:

= A general commitment to explore ways to stimulate
the market to deliver new homes for older people -
recognising that this sector is worth supporting

s Anew statutory duty on the DCLG Secretary of State
to prodice planning guidance for focal authorities on
meeting the housing needs of older people

n For the first time, it is now official Government
Eolicy to look at incentives to help ofder
omeownears move

Other postive measures induded
Clear drive to suppart housebulding

» Strengtheming the presumption in favour of developing

brownfield land

Greater support for smail ‘windfall’ sites

» Support for higher density development in urban
locations well served by public transport

= More pressure on local authorities to meet their
housing targets

eIk you
KNQOW?

160 OOO

ee d tw buli(f
mare homes
pulation

er supply

-
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T Epnng our broken housing marker, Department for
Comenumities and Local Gavernmeny 7 Cehrugry 2G17
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Our Products

Graphic removed

Three unique housing options,
catering exclusively for older people

We offer well-designed apartments

in stunning locations, where every

detail has been carefully thought Graphicremaved
through with our customers’

needs in mind, from access to local

amenities to internal layouts and

fixtures and fittings, and combined

with just the right level of service

L
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PRODUCTS

0O UR

STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Retirement Living

Far more info see pages 18-19

Independence with peace of mind

= Minimum age 60

# Typical number of apartments per site 30-50

= FY17 complenons 1,722 (75% of total completions in the year),
{Fv16 1,511, 66%)

= Land bank 5,684 umts (57% of total land bank at the year end),
(FY16 6,303 units, 629%)

= House manager and shared facilities, including homeowners' lounge
and guest suite

Retirement Living Pius
{previously Assisted Living)

For more info see pages 20-21

A retirement apartment you own with flexible care and support

= Mimmum age 70

® Typical number of apartments per site 50-70

® FY17 completons 479 (21% of tetal completions in the year),
{FY16 597 30%)

s land bank 3,538 units {36% of total land bank at the year end),
{FY16 3,094 units, 30%)

= Similar services to Retrement Living, but also includes full estate
management team, restaurant or bistro, domestic support and flexible
care packages, amang other faclities and services

Lifestyle Living
{previgusly Ortus Homes)

For more info see pages 22-23

=

Downsize for your leisure years

= Minimum age 55

# Typicat number of apartments per sne 20-40

® FY'7 completions 101 (4% of total completions in the year),
{FY16 88, 4%)

® [and ben ik 685 urils {79 ol Lolal land bank at the year end),
(FY16 785 units, 8%)

= Visiting house manager

Graphic removed

|
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Our Products

Retirement Living

Independence
with peace
of mind

1 McCarthy & Stone pic
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Our Retirement Living developments
provide high-quality apartments for
homeowners aged 60 and over

Graphic removed

Key features

W For those aged 60+

@ Cn-site house manager

M Homeowners' lounge

B Guest suite

W Extensive landscaped grounds
M Lifettme Homes Standard'

B Typically 30-50 apartments

Apartrnents feature one or two
bedrooms, spacious lounges, fitted C t i
kitchens, lifts to ail floors, level access,

extra storage, en-suite bathrooms ase S UC y
and, ty%glca ly, grivate outside space

In the form of balconies, terraces or

patios Every aspect Is specifically

designed with our custemers in mind,

from the slip-resistant floonng in the 7 Mo ifewme Homes Siandord 5
bathrooms, and the lever taps for & $eies Of Suxteen design crtera

iHendeq U Ingke hotnes more posty

easier operation, to the electric plug odoptaiie far hfetrne use ot miamgl Lost

sockets at waist height.

In addition, the developments have

camera-door entry and a 24-hour

emergency call system with pendant

alarms. They also feature a large

amount of communal space to help ’
puild companionship, ncluding a New Retirement Living
shared lounge, guest suite to developrments sales
accommeodate visiting famity and released in FY17 (FY16: 49)
friends, and landscaped graunds,

Cur site-based house managers

ﬁrowde help and assistance for
omeowners and are responsible K
for the day-to-day running of ’ B

h devel ‘.
each developmen Units'sld in F¥17 (F¥16: 1,511) Mr and [rs Towers

c.57%

T Sim Tree Coun Huningoan Of land bank (F\'1 b: 52%)

[RETAREE
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Our Products
Retirement Living Plus

—

A retirement
apartment you
own with flexible
care and support

Graphic removed
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Qur Retirement Living Plus developments
{previously Assisted Living) are designed
exclusively for customers aged 70 and over

Graphicremoved

Key features

8 For those aged 70+

M Estate manager and on-site team
B Homeowners’ lounge

B Restaurant/bistro, well-being suite
B Wheelchair Accessibility Standards
B CQC'registered, 24-hour support
W Typically 50-70 apartments

Cur Retirernent Living Plus developments
offer a retirement apartment with
rmanagernent services, domestic
assistance and persanal care. Itis an
attractive alternative for people seeking
additional support whilst maintairing
their ndependence.

Cevelcpments are similar to Retirement

Living but have a nusmber of addmonal

features, including a full table-service | See poge 158 jor glossary uf terms
restaurant or bistro with meals freshly
prepared on-site, a function room,
laundry, and secure mobility scooter

store room.
There is also a dedicated estate

management team on-site 24 hours New Retirernent Living Plus
a day, 365 days a year, which s led devefopments sales released
by the estate manager. They provide in FY17 (FY16° 10)

extra support if and when it 1s needed,
whether it is shopping, cleaning or
more care services. Tallored and
flexible care and support packages

mean homeowners only pay for the Row. Hampto
additicnal help they use. ‘_'?“r_"?n_a_. .dm.pl_m

Units sold in FYt7 (FY16: 697)

C.36%

© Sytnm Court Swoup Of land bank {(FY16: 30%)

McCarthy & Stone pie Annuat Repart and Accounts n



Our Products

Lifestyle Living

Downsize for
your leisure
years

Graphicremovad
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Lifestyle Living (previously Ortus Homes) is
our product for customers aged 55 and over

Key features

M For those aged 55+

M High-quality, low-maintenance

W Prestigious locations, 2/3 bedrooms
B Increased space and car parking

B Open-pian living

M Visiting manager on-call

B Typically 20-40 apartments

Lfestyle Living 1s our product for
custamers aged 55 and over looking
to downsize into medern, high-quality
and low-matntenance apartments in
prestigious locations. Developments
typically have fewer, but farger,
apartments than our ather core
praducts, with mare car parking.

They are intelligently and attractively
designed to future-proof later livin
Features are incorporated discreatly

to achieve an ageless design and
developments typically feature an
enhanced lobby area and an open-plan
feel, with fewer shared facilities. Each
apartment has two or three bedrooms,

a fully fitted kitchen and bathroom, plus

an en-suite bathroom and a walk-in
wardrobe,

As homeowners tend to be more
independent, developments have a
visiing manager who 1s also an-call,

Bungalows

As part of our Lifestyle Living range,
we will shortly deftver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 urits at

Wymondham, Norfolk, with construction

starting in FY18,

mage
P ket s T jen 3

There is a growing need for
low-maintenance and well-
situated bungalows amon,

the older population and the
apﬁropriateness of this form
of housing in later life s
well-proven. The supply of
bungalows in the UK has also
been in steady decline, with
only 2,210" new bungalows
registered with the NHBC

In 2016, In comparison to
26,408 in 1986, The particular
shortage of bungalows and
other houses for elder peaple
means they are likely to attract
a premium compared to
standard housing

As of 31 August 2017, we had

222 bungalows in our land bank,

1 NHBC, Mew Home Haustics Savew 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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New Lifestyle Living
developments sales
released in FY17 (FY16: 5)

101

Units sold in FY17 (FY16: 88}

c.7%

Of land bank (FY16: 8%)
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Our Lifestyle

Management and
Care Services

Providing peace
of mind that we
will look after our
customers and
their properties

Graphicremaved
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Our in-house management and
care services are a key part of how
we seek to enrich our homeowners' lives

Religble and cost-effective management
and maintenance services are impaortant
to our homeowners. Gur team provides
homegwners with peace of mind that we
will support them and look after their
properties over the long term. Thisis a
key part of how we seek to enrich our
homecwners' lives.

Prowiding an in-house management
services selution allows us to establish a
unigue refationship with our custorners,
providing personal and efficient services
that not only help them, but also support
the point of sale and allow us to deliver
|ndusuy-leadln% standards of customer
satisfaction, It also links together our
expertise In housebulding and property
managerment.

Our property management business
provides property managerment,
support and care services across our
two development products, Retirerment
Living and Retirement Living Plus. They
also provide property management
services to cur bLifestyle Living
developments,

Each Retiremnent Living development
typically has a dedicated House Manager
on-site, five days a week dunng warking
hours managing the day-to-day running
of the development whilst also helping
to facilitate varous sooial activities,

Each Lifestyle Living development has
awisiting Manager who 1s in charge of all
aspects of property maintenance.

Graphic removed
YourLife Management Services
(YLMS) 15 owned 50/50 by MSMS
and Somerset Care Group, a
leading not-for-profit care provider.
It provides management services,
domestic assistance, catering,
personal care and additional
support in our Retirement
le‘ljr:ng’lusI developmentsﬁy
Each development is run by an
Estate Manager who leads a Ca se Stu dy
team of staff members to deliver
these services, 24 hours a day, e
365 days a year. - e

¢.14,600

Homeowners (FY16: 12,000+

312

Developments under
management (FY16; 264)

¢.10,860

Addittonal care and dorestic
hours per month (FY16: €.8,400)

Don and Brenda Rhaodes

Y BT Pl
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Operational Review

Graphic removed

L _

Clive Fenton, Group Chisf Executive Officer

“Momentum is rebuilding,
underpinned by sound
foundations. Workflow is
in place to support delivery
of 3,000 units per annum”

I McCarthy & Stane plc

Average selling price

£273k

(FY16 £264K)

Build activity commenced on

/3 sites

{FY16 54)

Land bank equivalent

4.3 years

(FY16" 4 4 years)

Our results

The Group delivered solid progress in its
first full year of trading since re-joining
the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange in November 2015 Trading
wmproved cansistently throughout the
year notwithstanding the increased
uncertainty in the secondary market
following the General Election in June
2017, and the Group made good
progress in rebuiding its ferward order
bock and progressing its workflow

Revenue increased by 4% to £661m
(FY16 £636m) primanly driven by an
ncrease in average selling prices from
£264k to £273k, refiecting a continuing
improvernent in sales mix and quatity
of sites Legal completions were shightly
ahead of prior year levels at 2,302 (FY16
2,296) despite a weakened forward
order book brought mtathe year and a
lower level of just 49 first occupations
during the year (FY16 6% This year's
volumes benefited from accelerated
off-plan sales rates which improved to
53% (FY16 50%) and the bulk sale of



126 apartments to PP Caprtal as part
of a new strategic relationship allowing
us 1o access the growing rental market

Consistent with previous §U|GEHCE,
underlying operating profit decreased
by 10% 1 £96m (FY16 £107m} at 3 gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16 21%), an
underiying operaung profit margin of
159 {FY16 17/%) and an operaung profit
of £94m (FY16 £95m) The reduction

1n profitability was malnB,/ driven by the
age and mix of units sald, increased
incentive costs, bulld cost Increases
offset by priang improvements, some
additional land renegotigtion costs as we
repositioned our land bankin the face
of more challenging market conditions
and our continued Investment in
regional operational infrastructure

0 support our growth strategy

PP Capital

Over the course of the financial year,

we sought to diversify and enhance

our business madel by developing a
strategic relationship with PfP Capital
This represents an exciing new
opportunity 1o access the growing rental
market and has the potential to improve
capital turn' and enable land investment
i new, previously untapped locations
This strategic relavonship resulted n
the sale of 126 apartments (included
within the tatal legal completions of
2.302) across 27 sites to be held within
aspeaalist retirement Private Rental
Sector {PRS) Fund being established
and managed by PP Capral, the fund
management business of Places for
People The apartments will be offerad
for private open market rent PfP
Capital aims to grow Its assets under
managerment from £150m to mare than
£250m pver the short to medium-term
by acquiring residential units and we

are well placed to provide therm with
access to the retirement housing sector
We intend to develop this relationship
further aver the corming financial year

Investment and growth strategy
We continue to pursue our strategy

of creating an efficient and scalable
business, capable of buliding and selling
more than 3,000 units per annurn aver
the medium-term There s significant
demand for our products and we are
corfident that we have putin place all
the necessary elements that will enable
us Lo achieve our planned growth we
have a respected brand with 40 years’
experence, a high-quality land bank,

a strong balance sheet with a robust
capital structure and the necassary
organisationa capability and platform
COur expenenced management team

15 focused on achieving this goal

STRATEGIC REPORT

Market demand

The structural ¥nbalance between
supply and demand within the housing
market conunues to provide us with

an excepticnal market opportunity
Despite the recent growth in
housebullding activity, there remains

a significant and growing shartage of
housing supply In the UK This imbaiance
is parucularly acute in the market for
retiremnent housing, and McCarthy &
Stone stands alone among the national
hausebuilders as the anly one that
focuses entirely on this market

During four decades as the retirement
housing market leader, the Group has
formulated a tallored appreach to sales,
site acquisiion, design, secunng detaled
planning consents and construction

that mainstream housebuilders have
been unable to replicate We also ensure
that our customers receve the highest
standards of cngoing support through
our management services offering The
tugh barriers to eniry in our market
ensure that we maintain a unique
postticn as the only housebullder
capable of meeung the natlonwide need
for high-guality speaalist housing for

the growing number of clder people
wha are looking to move to properues
more suited to their needs and lifestyle

Land bank

Intatal, ¢ £472m (FY16 £468m)was
invested in land and buwild during the
year We added a further 75 hgh—qual;ty
sites with attractive embedded margins
nto the land hank {FY16 €5), equivalent
to € 3,164 addiional plots (FY16 ¢ 2,614},
with terms agreed on a further 1,355
plots (FY16 ¢ 1,700 plots) in kne with our
nermal land buying modei The land was
secured with a high leve! of opnionality

At the year end, our land bark

stood at 9,967 plots {FY16 10,186}
equivalent to 4 3 years supply, of
which 2 6 years had detalled planning
consent As a result, the Group now
has sufficient tand under control to
delwver all targeted sales tc FY20

We secured 64 detated plannln%
consents (FY16 60) and started build
on 65 addional sites (FY16 42) There
is detailed planring in place for 100%
of FY18 planned first accupauons and
71% of FY13 planned first occupations.

The market for land remains benign
and competition for cur typical
brownfield sites remains highly
fragmented Our business continues
to maintain aperational fecus and
discipline in the assessment of our
land purchases to ensure that returns
continue to flow to our shareholders

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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i See page 158 for glossary of terms
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Chief Executive’s Statement continued

Operational infrastructure

and capability

Qur newer regional offices establishea
i North London, South West, East
Midlands and North West conunued to
drive the marnentum of therr workflows
during the year We have high-calibre
sSenior Mmanagement teams in place,
combining McCarthy & Stene experience
with velume mainstream housebuilder
operatienal expertise

Having established these new offices,
we have now commenced the roll-out
of a new ‘Divisional’ operational
Structure, to manage our nine regions
The three Divisions, under john Tonkiss,
our Chief Operating Officer, will each
consist of three established regions

This operatonal structure is simifar o
many nanenal volume housebullders
and will prowvide the framework to run an
efficient business at scale Our existing
nine regions will be clustered inta a
North Division, cavering Scotland, the
North West and North East, a Central
Drvision, covering East Midlands, West
Midlands and South West, and a South
Drvision, cavering North London, South
East and Southern We expect (o fill

E MuCarthy & Stone plc

Graphicremoved

all the new positions from internal
candidates The establishment of
these new dvisions will complete
the platform required (o deliver
our planned operational growth

Strategic initiatives

Our continued focus on achieving
operational excellence by accelerating
our working capital cycle has allowed
us to delver further improvement

1 our three key strategic ntiatives
impraving sales rates, reducing time
taken between securing land ang
starting bulld snd implementing

build programme efficencies

Sales initiative

The sales iniiative, Jauncheg In FY15,
sets out to consistently deiver off-
plan reservauons of Sg% or mare by
the date of first occupation, and then
to reserve out all remaning units
within an average 12 month period

Our sales mitiative continued to make
§ood progress during the year. The main
ocus has been on enhancing the early
part of the customer journey via website
improvements and the development of
early relationships with enquirers prior

Dip you
HNOW?

image
1 Swiff House Ma.denhead



“Workflow on track to
support growth strategy
and deliver ¢.80 new sales
releases and more than 65
first occupations in FY18”

STRATEGIC REPORT

to site sales launches New relaticnship
managernent teams are now m place in
all regions and are working well These
improvements have contributed to

an increase in the off-plan sales rate

to 53% (FY16 50%) from the 49 sites
(FY16 69) that first occupied in FY17

Anumber of sites achieved significantly
more than 53% of the off-plan sales
rate, for example Jameson Gate,
Portobello, Edinburgh which solg

100% off-plan A further five sites

sold more than 80% of apartments
off-plan It 1s parocularly pleasing that
we have been able 1o achueve these
accelerated sales rates in a challenging
market whist also improving pricing

The Group conunued to be iImpacted
by the challenging secondary housing
market with the average time to sell
out slightly higher than inthe prior
year This average now stands at

14 months (FY16 18 months) for

all sites sold out dunng FY17

During FY17, we worked closely with our
third-party part-exchange providers w
Imprave the terms of the part-exchange
affering In addition, we sticcessfully
piloted an in-house part-exchange
scheme on 163 transacticns i which
dependent properties are temporarily
taken onte our own balance sheet
pending onward sale This resulted

1" 3 cost saving af ¢ £1m in refation to
the 48 properties re-sold during FY17,
when compared to the costs associated
with using third-party part-exchange
providers As at 31 August 2017, we held
114 properties on the balance sheet

at a net carrying value of £31 9m

Development initiative

Qur development iniative, also
launched in FY15, aims to reduce

the time taken between secunng

land and build start This involved

the )implementation of a number

of process improvermnents with
particular focus on ‘ways of working’,
the planning process and increase
standardisation This enables the
business to bring forward profitable
developments, accelerate growth plans
and improve capital turn The intiative
15 now embedded in all regions and 15
beginning to produce positive results

A number of changes designed to
accelerate this cycle were implemented
duning the year in particular, we have
focused on local consultations within
the planning process and implemented
our new Datum tool to support preguct

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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and design standardisation and value
engineering Our target far reducing
the ume taken between land exchange
and starung build is 16 months for
standard sites achieving a first ime
detaled planning consent During FY17,
we saved an average of four weeks per
scheme, with the total ime taken from
land exchange to bulld start averaging
<181 months (FY16 ¢ 131 months)

Buning the year. a Product Approvat
Group (PAG) was established ro
enhance our product offering and
identify and resclve persistent

1ssues The PAG s made up of senior
management team memiers with
representatives from Sales and
Markenng, Management Services,
Development, Construction,
Procurement, Customer Services, and
Healtis & Safety The PAG meets reguiarly
to achieve greater standardisation
acress the Group, optrmise praduct
selection and improve design

Build initiative

The buitd initiatve, launched N FY15,
continued to drive improverments to

the build process during the year, to
accelerate build imescales, reduce
build costs and enhance margins
Specific focus has been placed on
supply chain management o maxirmse
savings as well as driving towards longer
term benefits wia the increased use

of modern methods of construction
The Group’s framework of crmical
controls introduced last year 1s now fuliy
embedded across all our regiors and

15 driving iImprovements to bulld cycle
omes and budgets This imiiative has
delvered a ¢ four week (FY16 cthree
week) ume saving from build start to first
cccupation and has identfied savings
opportunities to the value of £127k per
development in relation to matenals
and labour which will help to mitigate
the impact of build cast inflation.

Cur product ranges

During the year we repasihioned our
product branding in order tc capitalise
on our existing strong McCarthy & Stone
brand recognition This will now be
used In & unified way across our three
products our Assisted Living product
has been rebranded Retirement Living
Plus and our Ortus Homes product
has been rebranded as Lifestyle

Living This also allows us to cptimise
our marketing spend and create
ConsiStency across aur product names
As part of our Lifestyle Living range,
we will shartly deliver our first 100%
bungalow development of 30 units at
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Wymondham, Norfolk, which s now
under construction There s 3 growing.
need for modern, low-mamtenance
and well-cornected bungaiows

among the oider population and the
aporopriateness of this form of housing
in iater ¥fe 1s well-proven The supply
of bungalows in the UK has also been
in steady declne, with only 2,210" new
bungalows registered with the NHBC
in 2016, in comparison o 26,408

In 1986 The particular shortage of
bungalows and other houses for

older people means they are likely

to attract a high level of dermand

We are also exploring the provision

of bungalows and cottages on

larger schernes, opening up excting
new possioiliiies for maxirmising
development potential on certain sites,
as well as providing for completely
new land apportunities As of

31 August 2017, we had 222 (FY16

127) bungalows within our land bank

Our e Services s

The rapid growth of our Management
Services business continued during the
year, adding 48 new developments 10
its portfoho, which now total 312 (FY16
264) managed develapments Prowding

30 McCarthy &k Stone plc

our own management services allows
us to establish a unigue relatonship
with our customers, providing personal
and efficient services that not only help
them, but also support the point of sale,
and allow us to deliver industry-leading
standards of customer satsfaction

Our customers

We are pleased to report that we have,
once again, achieved the full Five Star
rating in the Home Builders Federation
('HBF) customer satisfacuon survey this
year This marks the twelfth consecutive
year ¢ which more than 90% of our
customers have said that they would
be prepared to recommend us (0 a
friend We are the only housebuilder

of any size or type to win this award
every year since 1t was introduced in
2005 This sustained recognition by
our customers of the quakty of proguce
and service we deliver is a stron
endorsement of our continued desire
o design, build, self and manage the
very best retirernent developments

Quality

The Group was also pleased o achieve
15 Quality awards, 7 Seals of Excellence
and 1 Reglonal Winner in the 2017
NHBC Pride in the Job awards, marking

-

2 50% increase in awards from 2016
The scheme is dedicated to recognising
construction site managers who achieve
the hghest standards in hausebuilding
and has been instrumental in driving up
standards in the sector for 37 years

Ouremployees

Qur performance this year would

not have been possibie without the
dedhication, enthusiasm and expertise of
our people We are building a culture of
excellence that provides opportnities
for development and recognises
achievements by regularly celebrating
those employees who go the extra mile
Tfor a customer or coileague through
our instant, quarterly and annual

PRIDE awards |am also delighted

te report that, in cur most recent
employee survey, 87% (FY16 85%) of
our employees confirmed that they are
proud to work for McCarthy & Stone

Health and safety

| am also pleased to report that we
have continued to make gaod progress
with devetoping a culture of excellence
n health and safety across the Graup
Cur visIon is not Just to achieve health
and safety comphance but to lead our
sactor with a robust and consistent
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safety culture 8Cross our organisation
Our Internal mortonng regime Is
supported by a rigorous, ndepandent
site INspection programme including
regular reporing updates to the
Board During FY17, we recewved
three BSG Health and Safety awards,
nduding one award for Best Use of
Technology for our pioneering work
using drores for reof inspection to
reduce the need for work at height

Housing White Paper

in February 2017, we welcorned the
Housmiwhlte Paper “Fixing our
broken housing market”, the country's
first housing strategy for six years
It proposed a number of measures
to support housebuilding and we
were particularly pleased to see a
number of positive references to
the need to INCrease the provision
of specialist retirement hausing

P NHBC, ivea Hormie Sictisies Resew 2070
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The White Paper notes that the
Government wilt explore ways to
stmulate the market to deliver

new hotnes for older peaple and 1s
introducing a new statutory duty,
through the Neighbourhood Planning
ACL, on the Secretary of State to
produce, for the first tme, guidance
Jor local planning authorities on how
therr local deveiopment docurnents
shauld meet the housing needs of older
people Guidance produced under
this duty will set clearer expectatons
about planning to meet the needs of
older people, including supporting
the development of such homes near
local services, and we understand
thiswilt be published shortly

In additian, the White Paper notes the
Government's new commitment 1o
explore ways to help clder people move
at the right ume, including possible
future INcentives We are workmg

with the Government to prowide more
infermation on how this incentive might
work, muding a possible one-time
Stamp Duty exemption for older people
downsizing Such policies would help
older pegple to move, which would also
in turn Fielp first time buyers onte the
housing fadder and encourage further
demand for retvement housing

Government consultation on
ground rents

Injune 2017 the Government also
launched a consultabion on tackling
unfair practices in the leasehold market
with particular reference to leasehcld
housing and unfair escalation dauses
far ground rents We understand and
support the need for action in this area
Qur groynd rents are on fair and stable
terms as they are fixed for fifteen years
and increases are linked to the higher
of 2% or Retail Price Index (RPI'} There
have undoubtedly been cases where
the system has been abused by some,
including with ground rents that double
every teh years, and we understand
why DCLG 15 considering taking action
to protect homebuyers We welcorne
this, but have raised concerns about
the further proposals around reducing
ground rent ncarme for all leasehold
Propertes to 3 zero oF peppercorn rent

Leasehald 1s a common and widely
accepted form of tenure for apartment
iving and has tradiionaly been

used as an officent way of managing
apartment blocks and managed estates

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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that contain 3 number of residents on
the same site, often with competing
veices With best practice and proper
gudance i place, it can work well, and
has deone for a number of years, and
the vast majority of apartments are
on fair terms Ground rent helps to
keep the freeholder actively involved
n the development and 1s a key part
of this systern We have responded
accordingly to the Government's
consultation and we await Its outcome

Qutlook and current trading

The workflaw of the business remains
on track to support our growth
strategy Bulld actmty commenced
an 73 sites during FY17 (FY15 54) and
of the ¢ 80 sales releases which the
Group plans to deliver in FY18 (FY17
52}, 96% are now under consruchen
During the first 10 weeks of the year
17 new sites (FY17 13) have been
successfully launched and this has
contnputed to animprovemant 10 our
forward order back, which currently
stands gt £277m (FY17 £250m) First
occupations are planned to Increase
to more than 65 in FY18 (FY17 49) and
are expected to be weighted towards
the second half of the year due 1o the
trring of our butld programmes We
therefare expect the delvery prafile
of the Group's profits between H1
and H2 1o be similar to that i FY17

We have started the new financial
year with a high-qualty land bank,

a strong net cash position and an
experienced management team in
place We also have the necessary
regb\onal infrastructure and strength
of brand that ensures that we are
uniquely placed to capitalise on the
significant demographic opportunity
avallable tous We remain an track
to deliver our strategic growth
objective of building and selling more
than 3,000 units per annum and
continye 1o target a Return On Capital
Employed (ROCE) of 25% when the
business achieves scale

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer
13 Novermber 2017
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Our Business Model

The Group has a proven business model of buying land,
securing detailed planning consent and then building, selling and
managing high-quality developments across the UK that are
specifically designed to meet the lifestyle needs of older people

Our customers
Qur distinct and growing custamer hase s at the heart of everything we do

u Target customer age over 60s in Reurement Living, over 705 » Those who wish to maintain their independence

in Retirement Living Plus and over 555 in Lifestyle Living with support on-hand ¥, and when, required
= Older owner-occupiers who are keen 1o dawnsize into » Addressing undersupply of hormes dedicated to
attracove and secure housing with shared benefits the needs of our customer hase

and cormpanionship

4. Targeteq
yand buying

We buyland and secure detaled
planning consents in locations
where we know our custamers

would be happy to ive

\J
=14 pu,)a 53
d EYL

We provide Our apartments
a first-class . . are high quality
customer QOur driving ambition and designed w =
experience, is to enrich the lives around the iy %
enha "C"-‘fli by : of our customers. if we needs of older >3
our specialise: i customers 5
A rvices succeed in this aim we 0%

will maximise long-term
value for our
stakeholders and
shareholders

afferings

Qur developments are We build our products
marketed to attract efficently in a safe
alder homeowners environment, using 40
looking to downsize years of experence

The principal risks and uncertainties associated with our Business Model are described,
together with the mitigating actions on pages 56 and 57.
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Core elements of our business model

1. Targeted land buying

» We buyland in appealing locations
» Thesites are typcatly brownfietd locauons, wel-lacated relabve 10 essential services

intowns and cities, and attract less competition from other housebuilders

2. Effective planning
and design

Qur in-hause planning team, the ‘Planning Bureats, ams (o obtain the best pessible planning
consent as quickly as possible by applying directly for detailed planning oermissior
High-gualty apartments designed around the changng needs of older customers

3. Industryeading
constructionina
safe ervironment

Efficient and cosc-effective tonsiruction using 40 years’ experience
Industry-leading health and safety standards

4, Unigue sales
and marketing

Marketing with a focus on consistency and transparency ensuring that the customer journey
15 a5 siraight forward as passiblie

Sales process focused on supporting our customers and their families from imitial enguiry
through to legal completion

S. Customer-focused
management services

=

Prowding the mghest quality property management, care and sUppPort SErvICes IN respanse
to our customers’ and homeowners’ changing needs

B

Graphic remaved
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Strategic aim

We aim to identify sufficient high-quality Jand opportunities to meet our growth plans over the

medium and long term

Key performance indicators |——
(KPIs)

New sites exchanged

75

(FY16. 65)
Latd bank units

9,967

{FY16.10,186)

Number of years' supply
within our land bank

4.3

{FY16: 4.4)
Investment in [and znd buiid

£0.50n

(FY16: £0 Sbn) I_

KP! -Land bank tunits}

Graphic removed

31 August 2017

Sl a0

Owned andunconditonaliandbank o o 1,620 2,287
Londonally contracted Iana ban_k__- o o 4,509 ;,EUJ.

6,120 6,791
Construction wark In prog! ess o o o . 2,699 1,883
Firushec stock T o 1139 1512
Total awned and controlled jand bank 9,967 10,186
Number of years' supply based on completions in the finanaal year 4.3 years 4 4years

tmage 1 Wiloughby Place Bourion on the Warer
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Investment in
fand and build

Investment in fand and build
Fri6 Y17

£0.56n

£0.5bn

n FY15 we announced the strategic aim

ofinvestng £2 5bn irtand and build

over the four years ta FY191n support of

our strategic growth objective

Medum-term target

£2.5bn

We have continued to make good
progress with our target of £2 5bn
investrment in land and buitd with a
further £472m invested in land and
build during the year (F¥16 £468m)

Further informaticn en this strategic prionty 1s provided or pages 48 to 51

Highlights in the year

New sites exchanged

» 75 high-quality sites with atiractive
embedded margins added to land
bank in FY17 (FY16 65), equivalentto
c 3,164 addiienal plots (FY16 ¢ 2,614
plots}, 3 15% mncrease in the number
of sites, and a 21% increase 0 the
number of units

» Land secured with a high level of
opuanality (71%)

= The market for lang remains
refatively benign and competition
for our typicat brownrfield sites 15
sult highly fragmented

» The business continues to maintain
operational focus and discipline n
the assessment of its land purchases
to ensure that returns continue e
flow to shareholders

Land was secured across all
three producis

-
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Land bank

= Theland bank as at 31 August 2017
was 2,967 units {FY16 10,186 units)

= Total owned and controlled land bank
as at 31 Auﬁust 2017 represents 4 3
years supply (FY16 4 4 years)

There 1s detailed planning consent in

place for

» 100% of F¥18 planned iirst
accupauons

w 05% of F¥19 planneq first
occupations

Case study: Engagement on planning issues with local communities

Ocean House, Carlyon Bay

Development:
32 Lifestyle Living apartments

The story:

We signed & 24-month option
agreement to purchase the site of
this farmer hote/in October 2014

This gave us time to address the
planning 1ssues relating to the loss of
the hotel and erployrment, and i
arrive at the nght guality of design
required for such a sensiuve location

Extensive engagement with local
community, Interest groups and the
madia meant that the banefits of
providing specialist retirement
housing were balanced against any
cancerns regarding the loss of the
existing use,

Consequently, plansfor the 17 acre
site were successfully approved an
the first time of asking by Cornwatl
Councis Planning Commmittee.

Opened in July 2017, Ocean House,

Carlyon Bay is a development of 32
tugh spectlication two bedroom

-

apartments, less than 300 feet from
the bay itself, gring fantastc views
and access to the beauaful outdoors
Each |uxurious Lifestyle Living
apariment has been carefully
designed to provide the best of
cemfortable, medern Invng for the
over 558

_l

Graphic removed
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Our Business Model continued

Targeted land buying

Graphic removad

Background to our land buying
w Our sres are typcally centrally
located wrthin towns and qties

= Sitesrange from05to 30acres
nsize

Less competiion for our sites I_
from rradibonal housebuilders,

who tend to be interested in

larger, usually greenfield,

locations

Limited on-site affordable

housing requirements and

mitigated impact of Section 106 Graphic removed
and Commumity Infrastructure

Levy (CIL) payments

Experienced in-house planming

team, ensuring a consistent

approach to submission and

negotiatan of pianning L
applications

Images

s Optimised development density I Otemer Place. Wit
mwer Flace, Wilton

through reduced on-site parking
and amenity space reguirements 2 Buch Lourt, Murrstan

1 See page 158 for glossary of terms

36  MeCarthy kStona pic

Graphic removed
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Gary Day, Land & Planning Director

“Qur differentiated land
modei ensures that
we adopt clear land
acquisition criteria and
a strict approval process”
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Effective planning
and design

Strategic aim
QOur aim is to operate an efficient and effective planning process and to design
great homes to meet our customers' ever changing needs and improve their quality of life

KPis !_ —'

Detalled planning corisents.

64

{F¥16. 60)

First time planning consents

75%

(F¥16. 69%)

Successful planning appeals

64%

(FY16 42%)

Retained customer
satisfaction rating

Five star HBF | _{

Lifestyle Living annual legal r
completions

101

(FY16 88)

Weeks saved per scheme Graphic removed
fram land exchange to
build start

c4

(FY16" € 17 weeks) L J

tmages 1 Cafvo Court, Glassop 2 Blake € ourr, Briggwnter
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Our Business Model continued

Effective planning

and design

[~ 7

Graphlc removed

L |

Jadon Silva, Group Product and
Development Director

“Dur aim to deliver products

tailored to our customers’
needs has led to a number
of formal product reviews,
offering significant
aesthetic enhancement”

n McCarthy & Stone ple

Graphiz removed

Case study: Shortening development cycle

Tenterden, Kent

Development;

36 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

» Contracts exchanged (subject
to planming) 29 February 2076

w Achteved planning permission
14 September 2016 (Jocat first
time consent in 28 weeks from
lznd exchange)

= Achieved build start 5 june 2017
(66 weeks or ¢ 15 3 months from
land exchange)

The main factors that heiped shorten
the development cycle were

a Desigmng the blilding using our
standard apartment types and
standard details to simplfy the
design process whiist producng
an external design that was
strongly influenced by the local
vernacular and perceved by the
local cornmunity to bie in keeping
with the local style

The site-enabling warks were
simplified through improved
collaboration (1 e underground
dratnage, car parking design,
retaining walls) {o ensure we could
move quickly from site acquisiion
to the canstruction of the new
development
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Operational efficiency:
Development initiative

Devefopment cycle
FY16 Fr17

€191 months

The developmentiniiative, mtroduced
n FY15, aims to reduce the ume taken
between land exchange and build start
Anumber of changes designed o
accelerate this cycle were implemented,
facusing an the planning process,
improved local consultations, increased
product and design standardisation and

€.18.1 months

Medlum-term target

16 months

value engineering Our target for
reducing the ume taken between land
exchange and starting build 1s 16 months
for standard sites achieving a first ime
detailed planning consent During FY17
a further ¢ four weeks per scheme have
been saved from land exchange to bulld
start, averaging at ¢ 18 1 months

3N\
©

Continued product
innovation

{i) Customer satisfaction
The aim s to retain our Frve Star
HBF customer satisfaction rating

The Five Star HBF customer
satsfaction rating was retained
for the 2th consecutive year

Lifestyle Living units sold as a percentage of total completions

Y16 M7

38%

{ii) Expand customer base
Grow Lifestyie Living 1o ¢ 10% of
annual legal completions

444

Medium-term target

10%

Lifestyle Living continued to grow dur‘in%
FY17 to 4 4%(FY16 3 8%) of annual legal
completons, despiie a lower number
of sales releases n the year four

compared to five sales releases i FY16

Further informaticn on these twa strategic priorities s provided on pages 50 and 51

Highlights in the year

Planning consents

= FY17 was ancther strong year for
planning, with detarled planning
consents achieved on 64 sites,
representing ¢ 2,473 units {FY16. 60
sites, representing ¢ 2,449 units)

» Durning FY17 we achieved 75%
success on first ume planning
consents (FY16, 65%) and won rine
appeals {c 322 unis) representing a
64% (FY16 42%) success rate This
compares favourably a,\?amst the
national average rate of 32%’

Product Approval Group

During FY17/, a Product Approval Group
{PAG") was established to enhance our
product offering, and identify and resaive
1ssues Members of PAG includes senior
managers from Sales and Markeung,
Managemennt Services, Development,
Censtruction, Procurement, Customer
Services, and Health & Safety It meets
regularly to deliver cptmurm product
selection and design decision-making
PAG has led to greater standardisalion
across the Group.

T Planmng Inspeciorate Stonstics (PINS), August 7017
basee on 17,7152 appeats durng the year ended
30 junie 2017, voth 3,578 appeals afiowed

Continuous product improvements
Our aim to deliver products tafored
to our customers' needs has led to a
numbper of product imprevements
u A Bistro concept kitchen has been
intreduced inte Retirement Living
Plus, providing a more flexible
dining experience
= Our bathrooms have undergone
a significant makeover, offering
sigrificant aesthetic enhancement
Through improved purchasing
agreements, bathrooms have not
anty been enhanced in ine with
changing trends, but significant
savings have also been dentified,
¢ £20 5k per development
Electric car charging points have
been incorporated into the design
concept for our sites
Improved kitchen design, making
better use of space

Standardisation

The Group uses the integrated BIM

(Butiding Information Managerment)

tool Datum It contains all our standard

infarmatien ranging from apartment

Elans to speaficatons for ndwidual
ullding companents

This infermation s stored alongside
specific project information, ncluding
architectural drawings, 3D models,
and specificauons. The system enables
a full cost plan 1o be compiled for each
project from the early development
stages This helps to ensure greater
predictabibty of project costs from the
cutset. It has been refined during the
year, prirmarly focusing on Increasing
the content and its functionality

It has enabled the Group to further
standardise the product, improve
rebate comphance, and speed up the
develcpment cycle

More efficient development cycle
During FY17, ¢ four weeks per scheme
has been saved frorm land exchange
to build start This was achieved by
focusing on the planning process, in
particular, local consultat:ons, ncreased
product and design standardisation,
and value engineering

Quality of products

At the annual Housebuilder Awards in
Novermber 2016 we were pleased to again
recenve Best Retrement Scheme for Ramsay
Grange and Lyle Court, our combined
Retirement Lving Plus and Lifestyle Living
development in Barnton, Edinburgh
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QOur Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

Strategic aim
We aim to deliver exceptional build quality whist maintaining industry-leading health and safety standards

KPIs [ ]

Build starts in the year

66

(FY16' 42)
Reduction in buld cyde

C. 4 weeks raphic emoved

{FY16, ¢. 3 weeks)
Gross profit margin

20%

(FY16: 21%)

Graphic removed

tmage
I Sovoy MHouse and Tudor Rose Court, Southsee
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Strategic priority
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operational efficiency:
Build initiative

Qur bulld mimative continues ta drive
impravemnents to the build process, to
accelerate build tmescales, reduce build
costs and enhance margns Speafic
focus has been placed on supply chain
management {0 Maximise savings as well
as dnving towards longer-term benefits

Build cycle
F¥i6

€.15.3 months

Dunng FY17, the average bulld cycle was
further reduced by c 4 weeks, down from
15 3 manths n FY16, to 14 4 months,

Gross margin was reduced in the year
howeaver, from 21% in FY16t¢ 20%in FY17,

€.14.4 months

via the increased use of moadern methods
of construction The Group’s framework
of critical controls introduced last year

15 naw fully embedded across 4l our
regblons and 1sdriving iImprovements

to bulld cycle times and budgets

Medium-tarm target

12 months

|m[3acted by the age and mix of units
sold, increased incentive costs, build
cost increases offset by pricng
improvements and some additional land
renegotiation costs

Further information on this strategic prionty I1s provided on page 50,

Highlights in the year

Progress on build activity

FY17 saw a 57% increase in the number
butld starts, at 66, compared with

42 1nFY18

During F¥17, 33% of build starts

were non-tradiional build techrigues
(1 & Porotherm blocks and ightweight,
steel frame) contrsbunn% 10 an average
build cycle reduction of four weeks

Heaith and Safety
Health and Safety remains a tap prionty
for the Group A recalibrauon of the
scoring <ntera for the BSG audits in
F¥17 resulted in lower average scores
during the year, but now provides
more meaningful feedback than before
For FY17 we achieved a score of 86%
aganst the new scoring criteriz During
the year a number of improvements
have been made
» Health & Safety Committee now
established, chared by our Chief
Operating Officer

New pioneening pracesses have

been introduced

» The education and invalvement
of our subcontractors i Health
and Safety

s Themtreducton of a new
apprenticeship scheme

s Designiniative a national training
programme rolled out to our
designers so the¥ are eguipped to
design risk out of buldings before
they are built

w Drones are being used for roofiop
Hezith and Safety inspections

= Every region naw has their own
dedicated Health and Safety Adviser

w Defibrillators are now fiited at every
new site

Pride in the Job awards

The Group was also pleased tewin 15
awards at the 2017 NHBC Pride in the
Job awards, marking 3 50% Increase

in winners from 2016 n addition,

7 site managers alse won Seals of
Excellence and 1 Regional Winner

The scherne 15 dedicated (o recognising
construction site managers who achieve
the highest standards in housebuilding
and has been mstrumental in drving up
standards in the sector for 37 years

BSG awards

= We wonthree BSG Health & Safety
awards in FY17 BSG Best Use of
Technology for Health & Safety award
for our picneering work using drones
for roof Inspecuon to obviate the
need for work at height

= Twp Site Manager of the Year awards

Procurement

Good progress was made with cost

sgving Initiatives duning the year

u Toral rebates of € £3 0m invaiced
N FY17 (FY16 £1 8m), as a result of
negotating mare favourable suppher
terms and improving compliance for
meeting rebates targets

= 22 procurement tenders completed,
dentifying a savings opportunity of
£127,000 per development

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts “



Our Business Model continued

Industry-leading construction
in a safe environment

=

Graphic remgved
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John Tankiss, Chef Operanng Officer
‘The build initiative
continues to drive
improvements to
the build process,
accelerate timescales
and reduce costs”

images
1 Loncaster House, Jekenham
7 Freeman House, Canierbury

A2 McCarthy &k Stone ple
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Case study: Shortening build cycle (build time reduced to 55 weeks)

Freeman House, Canterbury, Kent

Development:
54 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

Freeman House, Canterbury, was a
complhcated four-storey build, facing
the ¢ricket ground, with various
balconies to alf units, steel frame
apertures and shared access with the
cnicket cub and the local Sainsbury’s
In addition, we had to accommodate
52 days’ produchion dewn-time due
to cricket matches during the season

The build cycle commenced in June
2016, with a forecast first cocupation
date of 14 August 2017

To overcome the various issues
surrounding the complex build of this
development, we changed the buld
technology to Porotherm light weight
day blocks with 3 14mm bed joint
This technolcﬁy was knawn to be
quicker o lay, lighter to construct and
did nat absarb as much rain during
the Inclement weather As a result,
we delivered the scheme one month
ahead of programme taking first
occupations on 17 july 2017, resulung
in 55 total weeks or ¢12 8 months
from buiid start to first accupation



STRATEGIC REPORT

Unique sales
and marketing

Strategic aim

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We aim to make our sales process as easy as possible for our customers ensuring
that they are fully supported from the initial enquiry right through to legal completion

KPis

Legal completions (units)

2,302

(FY16:2,295)

Average selling price (£k)

£273«

IFY16, £264K)

Off-plan reservation rate (%)

53%

(FY14, 50%)

Months to reserve out
from first occupation

19

(FY1&,18)

-

Graphicremoved
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Qur Business Model continued

Unique sales
and marketing

Graphic retmoved

Case study: Accelerating off-plan reservations

Jameson Gate, Portobello, Edinburgh B B

Developrment:
42 Retirement Living apartments Graphic removed
The story:

In order {0 maximise the strong database we had for Jameson Gate, we ensured

our sales team was fully iInducted and provided with the tools required to sell

with confidence We opted to do an ininal survey of our database, which provided !_ __l

our teams with a detatted insight of the prospects allowing customers to mave

quickly ehrough the qualificaton process to booking home appointments, from David Bridges, Group Marketing & Customer
which reservations were secured This, along with events for our reservists and Experience Director

Industry networking, helped towards achueving 100% off-plan reservations at

Jamesan Gate “Our continued investment
in improving the customer
journey, together with
introducing the new
Relationship Manager role
across alt regions has had a
significant positive impact
on off-plan sales rates”
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Al

-.
Sales growth

In FY15 we announced the
strategic target of seling more
Unit sales

FY16 F¥17

2,296

Total legal compleucns were shghtly
ahead of the prior year despite
ASP

FY16 FY$7

£264k

2,302

£273k

than 3,000 units per annum by
F¥13 at an ASP of ¢ £300k

Medium-term target
3,000

delivering just 43 first occupatons
{FY16 69)

Medium-term target

£300k

increase In ASP reflects a contnuing imnprovernent i sales mand quaiity of sites

Operational efficiency
Sales initiatives:

Cur sales imitrative was introduced in
F¥15 to achieve more than 508 off-
plan reservations and ther reserve

Average % sales off-plan

(2411 17

50%

{I) Achieve greater than 50%

off-plan reservations

Our sales intiative continued to make
good progress during the year The
main focus has been on enhancing

the early part of the customer journey
via website improvernents and the
development of early relauonships with

Average fime to sell out

FYie FYi7

18months

(i) Reserve out remaining apartments
within 12 months of first occupation
The average ume o self out was shghtly

19months

out remaining apartments within
12 months af first accupation

53% . 50%

enquirers prior to site sales faunches
New Relationstup Maragement tearms
are now in place Iin all regions

These teams have contributed to the
improvement in the off-plan sales
rate (o 53% in FY17, compared with
509 n FY16, our second half levels
being parucularly strong at 58%.

Medium-term target
12months

higher than in the prior year due ta the
selling out of oider sites Only one site
now remains from FY14 and earlier years

Further information on these two strategc pnorties 1s provided on pages 49 and 50

Highlights in the year

Rebranding

We refreshed our product branding
duning the year in arder to capitalise
on our strong brand which will now be
usedin a unifred way across our three
products Our Assisted Living product
was rebranded as Retirement Living Pius
and our Crtus Homes product was
rebranded as Lifestyle Living. This wall
allow us to capitalise on our existing
strong brand recognition, oplimise our
marketing spend and create greater
consistency across our preduct names

Anational brand buldding TV campaign
to be iaunched in the New Year

Website redesign

Cur webstte has been redesigned to
HMProve our customer journey and
achieve better search functionality

A new digital agency was also appomted
ta support search engine opurmisation,
pay per click and enline display actity
to Improve cur anline efficiency

improved marketing materials

A mare consistent creative style was
implemented durning the year ta delver
stronger customer respense to media

Dutsourced call handling now fully
embedded

Ventrica, our outsourced call centre, is
driving improved corversion rates to visits

Continued investment in sales training
We have delivered high-impact traiming
0 Area Sales Managers who are critical
to sales performance and have setup a
new national traiming academy

Part-exchange (PX)

During FY17, we worked closely with our
third-party PX providers ta improve the
terms of therr part-exchange offering,
resulting i an estimated saving of

¢ £1m In addiion, we successfully
plated an m-house part-exdchange
scheme where McCarthy & Stone
purchases the customer's praperty
This has resulted i a cost saving of

€ £1mn relabion to 49 properties
resold during FY17, when compared

10 the costs associated with usin
third-party par -exchange prowigers
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QOur Business Model continued

Customer experience
and property management

Strategic aim

We aim to enrich the lives of our customers by providing the highest quality property management,
care and support services in response to their changing needs

KPls [
Number of managed Meals per month
developments
312 ¢.60,500
{FY16 c 43,200}
{FY16 254)
CQC seore (rated “Good™)
Number of homeowners

c.14,600

(FY16: ¢ 12,000+

9B%

(FY16' 9896}

Retained flve star customer
satisfaction rating

Five star
HBF

Highlights in the year
Customer satisfaction
As the busimess continued to grow, our
management services division remamned
committed to Maintaining Its customer-
focused approach, ensuring its speed of
growth never compromised the quality
of service it provided The positive
results fram a recent customer
satisfaction survey demonstrated this
gthos of excellence 4,258 homeowners,
mn apartments first built and sold mare
than 18 months ago. responded to an
ndependent survey n 2017 Ning out
of ten said they were saasfled with the
= management services on offer
= oaitention to detall undertaken
« desire to deliver innovative
new services which allowed
nomeowners to enjay & safe and
secure, independent festyle at
the developments looked after by
our management services givision

a5 McCarthy & Stone plc

Additional care and
domestic hours per month

c.10,860

(FY16. c.8,400)

L

Improvements in the

handaver process

Qver the last year cur management
services division has been improving
and aligning the handover process
from the construction teams to provide
a much enhanced customer expertence
Alithe regions have now Implemented
anew r)hased occupation protocol,
which looks at the development from
our customers’ perspective

CQC score

98% of our inspections have been
rated "Good” We are always looking
to develop our people and improve
our pracesses In order to provide a
high-quality serwice

Qur focus s on ewidenang that we
pay attention to the detailto make 3
difference to horneowners’ lives and
being able to demanstrate that we
always go the extra rmile

Graphic removad

Our awards

Al the annual Housebuilder Awards in
November 2016 we were pleased to
recetve Best Custormer Satisfaction
Initiative for our approach to ensunng
that we deliver a five-star service

for our homeowners The Group has
also won “Best Reurement Scheme”
at the annual Housebuilder Awards

n 2016

McCarthy & Stone's commitment (o
quality and cusStQMmer service conbinues
to be recognised by homeowners

In March 2017, the Group recewved

the fult Five Star rating for customer
satisfaction from the HBF for the

12th consecutve year - making it the
only UK housebqudeﬁ of any size or
type, to achieve this accolade
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Mark RiddIngten, Managing Director
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited

“Over the last 12 months
our management
services division has been
improving and aligning the
handover process from
the construction teams
to provide an enhanced
customer experience”

STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Graphic removed
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Case study: Providing care and support to our homeowners

Sharon Gratton, House Manager

Location:

Rockhaven Court, Horwich, Botton
Development:

45 Retirement Living apartments

The story:

Sharon was a finalistin the On-
Site Staff Member Category at the
ARMA ACE 2017 awards, which
was a fantastic achievernent
Despite not winning, she was
"highly commended”

Sharon 1s a shining beacon of what
our House Managers and Estate
Managers do on a dally basis From
the day she welcomed her first
homeowner, Sharon has made 1t her
primary ohjective to ensure everyone
feels welcame and quickly settles
nto their new living environment
that promotes independence,
companionship and security, She is
the first to say that it's been the most
rewarding role (0 her career so far

Whilst sustaining an active and
stimulating actvties calendar
for hkomeowners to enjoy seems
straightforward, the amount of
plannimg involved should not be

underestirnated, especially when
factoning in pecples’ different health
and mobility needs For Sharon,

It's maore than just ajob title It's

a cieeplz felt vacavon to ensure

the welfare and happiness of the
homeowners under her care

Whether arganising a programme

of sumulauing social activities,

dealing with emotional distressing
crcumstances, routine development
issues or just being a “good
neighbour”, Sharen’s professionalism,
ermpathy, attention 1o detail and
sense of fun shines through Sheis
loved by her homeowners, respected
by her peers and recognised by
visitars for the cutstanding job she
has done fer the past five years

B N

Graphicremoved
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Our Medium-Term Strategy

Creating an efficient
and scalable business

4' Sales growth

Qur medium-term strategy is to create an efficient
and scalable business capable of building and selling

more than 3,000 units per annum

To deliver this, we facus on four strategic prioriies

&~
f |
£ Q, @
Increased Operational Continued
investment in efficiency product
land and build innovation
We aim to invest £2 Sbn We armto create a We aim to meet cur

n land and buld over
four years from FY16
to F¥19 ta support
growth and capture
a larger share of the
retiree market

more efficient and
scalable business by
shortening the working
capital cycle across our
core acuvittas sales,
devetopment and buikd

Q

customers’ changing
needs and expand our
customer base through
Increasing capacity and
capability and ensuring

ONEOINg INnovation

across our products

Focus on financial performance

We operate wath finangal disciphine and an appropriate capital structure
In order to maximise margins and return on capital employed (ROCE?)

43 McCarthy & Stone plc
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
prierity targets Measure/KPI | FY15 FY16 Progress m FY17 for FY18
Build and sell | Legal 1,923 2,296 w Totai legal cornpletions = Dalwer strong
mare than campletions mantaned at FY16 levels upward momentum
J 3000unts | {urits) units units despite delvering just 49 in forward order
per annum first occupations This year book supported by
Sales at an average compared 10 691N FY16 an increased level
growth g?ﬂ'z%ggie m 126 apartmenis sold ta of sales releases
BuIld 2nd sell PP Capital as part of a w» Continue to secure
! at: Sg 00 new strategic relanenship completion chains
more than 3, allownng access to the via effective use
UnILS per annum BrOWINg rental market of part-exchange
nthemedium | feeseaaeaen o T s when required
term ASP £245k £264K a 3% Improvenent In ASP
[t25] reflecting a cantinuing = Delver € 80 new
Improverment in sales mix sales releases
and quality of sites and ¢ 65 first
------------------------------------------------------------------- occupations
Reverue £4857m [ £635.9m | £660.3m [a Achieved 4% reverue growth | Cantinue (o grow
{£m) despite a weakened farward rental opportunity
order pook brought into PR
the year ard fewer first
occupations
Performance
Strategic Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KP! | FY15 FY16 Progressin FY17 for FY18
£2 500 Cash £0.4bn | £0.5bn » Contnuedtoinvest iniand | m Target land and
investment in | investment in and build throughout the build spend of
fand and buld | land and build year despite seascnal cash ¢ £08bn-c £07bn
by F¥19 (Fon} availabihity skewed towards
Investrment the second ralf of FY17 - g%g“gt’;f;‘lg;%"‘
inland and w FY17 land and build spend In accordance
build £0 5bnwas an target with our strict sftte
purchase critena,
£2 Sbininvestment Land bank 10,087 (10,186 wLand bank stands at 9.967 securing contract
in land and (units) uhits units units and represents conditianality where
build over four 4 3 years supply appropriate
years o FY19 :g « There s detated planming
sugport grawt in place for 100% of FY18
and capture a planned first accupations
larger share ofthe and 65% of FY19 planned
retiree market i first occupations
Sies acquired |90 65 a 75 sites acquired dunng
sites sites FY17, reflecting continued

momentum within our land
acquisiton strategy and the
availability of lugh-guality
sites

= Terms agreed on additional

1,355 units, representing a
further O 6years supply
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Our Medium-Term Strategy continued

Performance

Strategic Medium-term Objectives

priority targets Measure/KP! | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progressin FY17 for FY18
Imprave Capital turn 1.0% 1.2% 11x m The decrease in FY17 » Continue (o IMprove
capial urn undertying operating profit oft-plan sales
In order to together with an increased rates and target In
maximise level of iInvestment in fand excess of 50% off-
ROCE and bulld has led 10 2 plan reservations

Operational
efficiency
Create an even
more efficent
and scalable
business to
suppart planned
invastment and
targeted growth

reduction in capital turn
10 11x{FY16 1 2x)

Sales intative

w Exceeded our targetto
achieve greater than 50%
off-plan reservatons,
with 53% off-plan sales
achieved i1 FY17 1ntotal, 26
developments of the 48 Ff17
731 stCupaliors axcesded
the 50% target, with six
developments exceeding
80% off-plan sales rates

= Average tme taken to selt
out increased shghtly to
19 months due Lo the finai
sell-out of older stes

Development initiative

= Time taken between land
exchange and buld start
reduced by ¢ four weeks for
standard stes Buld activy
commenced on 73 sites
dunng FY17(FY16 54)

Build initiative

a Datum platform s now
In place to support
standardisation, vaiug
engineering and cost
management

w £3m of rebates imvoiced
InFY17(6Y16 £18m)

w 22 procurement tenders
completed during
the year, delvering a
53VINgS opporturity of
£127k per development

across all F¥13 first
orcupanons

= Target further
reductions in ime
Lo sell out

= Continue 1o roil out
our development
nitiative and Larget
further reguctions
0 average time
taken from land
exchange to build
start

w Focus an tighter
management
of butld cycle
by embedding
CONSISIENT working
practices and roling
out Datumn platform
across all new-builg
starts N £Y18

u Continue to agopt
modern methads
of construction in
order ta reduce
build times further
and pursue
further margin
Irmpravernent

= ENsure maxmuim
rebate complance
ismantained across
ali developments
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Performance
Strategic Medium-term QObjectives
priarity tavgets Measure/KPl | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progress In FY17 for Fy18
m Customer Customa S star & star Sstar » Five Star HBF customer » Retain Five Star
Q satisfacnan sansfaction satisfaction raung retained HBF customer
u Retan ratng for 12th consecutive year satisfaction rating
- Five Star HBF = Successiully increased » Continue to
Continued [ ,somer capacity and capability of Increase capacity
produr_’t satisfaction Gur management services and capabilicy
i + ratng business to ensure that of management
Inhovation we can meet the needs SErvices busimess in
Meet our of customers at all new arder (o keep pace
customers’ developments Volume of wath growth in new
changing needs developments managed developments
and expand our increased from 264 to 312
custormerbase | oo o ol i
Expand Lifestyte Living | 1.0% 3.8% 4 4% w Lifestyle Lming now = Grow Lifestyle
custormner base | completions represents ¢ 7% (FY16 8%) Lving to € 10%
Grow Liestyle ?gr:ftlgr‘a‘lm) of iand bank ofland bank
Livingto c 10% s w101 {FY15 88) Ufestyle Lmng | Conbnued
of annual legal units sold during FY17 with Innovation in our
completons four new Lifestyle Lving core products
developments released for ensuring that we are
salen FY17 {FY16 five) meeting the needs
of aur customers
= Conunue to expand
our customer base
through Private
Rental Sector (PRS)
apportunigas and
our Lfestyle Living
‘Bungatow’ product
Performarnce
Strateglc Medium-term Objectives
priority targets Measure/KP | FY15 FY16 FY17 Progressin FY17 for FY18
tmprove Underlying £95.3m {£107.2m (£96.2m [=£112mZpprs noperatng | Continue to target
underlying operating rmargin) decrease as a result high-quality land
operating profi! Em) of the age and mix of urits with attractive
prafit and and underiying| 20% 17% 15%, sold, Increased incentive costs|  margins
Focus on maximise aperatng and build cost increases offset
finandial margins prafit margin by pricing improvements. - Egﬂ‘é":g:tt:a&ﬂ;: *
Target (%) some additonal land via the pulld
performance & renegabation costs and our
improved INitiatrve
Target 1op- ROCE (25% continued investment it our
quartile sector target) regional infrastructure ® Mainiain strang,
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" balance sheet
;:'?Sgg?oamnga it ROCE t3) 20% 20% 16% = 4ppts ROCE erosion as 3 and focus on cash
P result of a decrease in the management
£¥17 underkying operating
profit together with an m Business growih o
Increased level of nvestment | 8chieve operational
nland and buld leverage
Net (debty {£44.4m)| £52.8m |£30.7m |»Mantained strong net cash
cash(fm) position due to a disopined
appreach to land and
build spend

T Underyig vperaling profit has beer reconcifed wtine nate 6 1o die Consukdoted { woncor Staterments
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Financial Review

Graphic removad

L J

Rowan Baker, Chief Financial Officer

“The Group balance sheet remains
strong with net cash of £31 million
at the year end to support future
investment in land and build”

i Underlyng Gpergung prafit has been reconuled mthin note 6 10 the Consoh@aied noncod Storemenis
2 See page 158 for giossory of terms

52 McCarthy & Stone plc

Operating profit

£94.2m

{FY16, £95 1m)

Underlying operating profit'

£96.2m

{FY16 £107.2m)

Net cash?

£30.7m

{FY16’ £52.8m)

TNAW

£676.4m

{FY16, £626 8m)

Our performance

McCarthy & Stone nas continued to
nake progress towards achieving 1s
medium-term strategic objective with
significant focus placed on investment
inland and buiid and keeping the
warkflow of the business firmly on track

Revenue

Revenue increased by 4% this year (o
£661m (FY16 £636m) primanly drven by
an increase In average selling prices from
£264k ta £27 3k reflecting a continuing
mprovernent N sales mix and qualléy

of sites Legal completions remaine!

in line with the prior year at 2,302

unrts (FY16 2,296) despite a weakened
forward order bock brought into the
year and just 49 first occupatons during
the year (F¥Y1a 89) Volumes beneficed
from the accelerated off-plan sales

rates improvement fram 50% in F¥16

(0 53% 0 FY17 and the bulk sale of 126
apartments to PP Capital as part of the
new strategic relationship allowing us

10 actess the growing rental market



Profit

The Group achieved an underlying
profit before tax for the year of £94m
(FY16 £105m) and a statutory profit
Defore tex of £92m (FY16 £93m}

This was achieved at a gross profit
margin of 20% {FY16 27%)and an
underlying aperating margin of 15%
(FY16 17%) This reducion in operaing
profit margin was driven by the age
and mix of stock sold, an Increase n
ncentives offered to customers to
close out campletion chains in iight

of the increased uncertainty In the
secondary markel, buld cost increases
offset by pnang improvements, some
additional abortive land costs as we
sought to reposiion our iand bank
and our continuing mvestment in
regional operaticnal infrastruciure

to suppert our growth strategy

The averheads in the business
conunued to be well-controfied with
total administrative expenses for the
year of £37m (F¥16 33m), excluding
excepuional items and amorusation
of brand They remain at broadly the
same proportion of revenue as last
year of 6% {FY16 5%) and reflect the
Investment being made to deliver
the strategic growth of the business

Capital structure and interest

We closed the year with a tangible
gross asset value (TGAV?) of £646m
(FY16 £574m), which was a year-on-
year increase of 13%, primanly due to
the rantinued level of land and build
tvestment during the year Simularly,
our tangible net asset value increased
to £676m (FY16 £E627m) The Group
continued to mamntain a rabust financal
postion with a net cash balance of £31m
at 31 August 2017 {Fy16 £53m)and
nef%atwe geaning of 4% (FY16 8%). This
reflacts management’s ongoing focus
on disaplined cash spend in response
O CONUINUING economic uncertainty
and was achieved notwithstanding

the negative cash impact of our new
in-hause part-exchange tocl which
resulted in £32m part-exchange assets
being eld on the balance sheet at the
year end (FY16 £nil) We maintained a
strong halance sheet and appropriate
headrocm against our £200m revolving
credit facility {'RCF) throughout the year

The Greup incurred net finance
expenses of £2m dur\n§ the year

{FY16 £2m), benefiung from a full

year of lower interest costs under the
Group’s amended RCF and the annuat
revaluation of its shared equity debtors

Exceptional costs

There were no exceptional costs
incurred during FY17 Total
exceptional costs recognised within

STRATEGIC REPORT

the Conschidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income during

FY16 were £10m, of which £9m
relzted to IPO advisor fees and
assodated costs and £1m related o
management Incentives, restructunng,
redundancy and refinancing costs

Taxation

The effective tax rate was close 1o
the statutory rate during the current
financial year The total tax charge

for the year was £18m {FY16 £19m)
which represents an effective tax rate
of 19% (FY16 21%) based on a profit
before tax of £92m (FY16 £93m)
Reductions in the rate of corporatian

t3x to 19% from 1 Apnt 2017 and to 17%

irom 1 April 2020 were substantsvely
enacted on 18 Novembper 2615 and
6 September 2016 respectively

Earnings and dividend

Adjusted underlying basic earnings per
share decreased by 12% o 14 2 pence
{FY16 167 pence) reflecting the lower
tevel of profit after tax achieved this
year Basic earnings per share for FY17
were 13 8 pence {FY16 13 9 pence)
Details of the calculation of earnings
per share can be found in note 12 1o
the cormsetidated financal statemerits

The Directors are proposing & final
dividend of 3 6 pence per sﬁare

Thus follows the interim dividend

of 1.8 pence per share, gving a {otal
dividend for the year of 5 4 pence

per share. The proposed final dvidend
reflects cur progressive dividerd policy
as stated at the IPO The proposed
dmdend 15 covered 3 tmes by earnings
Subject to shareholder approval at

the AGM, the dividend will be paid

on 1 Febryary 2018 to shareholders

on the register at 5 January 2018

The total cost of the final dvidend
1$ £19m, resulting in a total dvidend
cost relating to the year of £25m
(FY1€: £24m)

Risk management

The Graup maintains a robust risk
management framework, providin;

a clear Ink between strategy and the
strategic, operational and financial
risks faced by the business The
approach to risk is set by the Beard,
which maintains a close iInvolvement
n identifying and mitigating risk and
moenitors certan key risk indicators at
Board meetings on a regular basis

As part of managing the financial risk
N the business, the patential impact of
adownturn in the housing market or
the broader UK economic environment
1s regularly evaluated and we have
anumber of key risk indicators that

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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are used at Board fevel 10 order Lo
assess this Qur natonal reach and
diversified portfolio of land ensures
that we are not overly dependent cn
particular local markets or individual
developments in addition, our distinct
business modef helps to insulate our
business from a downturn, with land
acquisition normally contracted subject
to planring and also often subject to
commercial viability or by way of option,
enakling us to review land acquisiuon
deasions i ight of planning outcomes
and latest market condiugns prior

to cornmitung significant capital.

Target returns

Qur conunuing investment I land and
build in order to deliver future growth
together with the lower undsi':r\lfym%
operating profit delvered in FY17 Ted
te a decrease in ROCE by 4 ppts to 16%
{F¥16 20%) and a reduction in capital
turn to 11x¢{FY16 1 2x) These metrics
will recover, however, once our growth
plans begin to deliver resuits The
workflow of the business remains firmly
on track as a result of our continuing
investment for growth and allows us to
tar§et future increases in poth margin
and ROCE with the aim of achieving a
ROCE of 25% aver the medium-term

Rowan Baker
Chief Financiat Officer
13 November 2017

rd
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Risk Management

How we manage the
risks to our business

Effective management of risk
is integral to the successful
implementation of our
corporate strategy. Risk is
managed through a five-step
risk management process,
led by the Board

McCarthy & Stone’s governance

Our risk management process

2 Deternne
fink el

>

1 dthenlify sk

Board Risk registers

Key controls
framewark

Assurance
programme

Key risk.
Indlcators

Oversight, identiflcation,
assessment and mitigation
at Board level

First line of defence:
operational controls
and reporting

policies and procedures

Third line of defence:
internal and external audit

The mantenance of formal risk registers, the identfication of key conirol frameworks, the monitaring of key risk indicators and the
pursuic of 3 broad assurance programme provide all levels of management with a clear framework within which (o aperate

The Group's nsk management
framewaork reguires the maintenance
and regular update of Group risk
scorecards and regional risk registers to
identify the risks to our business model
and strategic plan, with the major risks
rewiewed Dy the Board 10 the context
of the Group's appetite for nsk Since
the beginning of F¥17 the Board has
recogrised an increase in the following
risks
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Arniskin refation o Government
legislation has been increased as

a result of the recently announced
government consultation on
ground rents

The Board has also recognised an
Increased risk in relatron to the iming
af legal completions and profit being
skewed towards the year end, which
Increases the risk in respect of
forecasting accuracy and the uming
of cash recerpts required to fund
further growth

The Board has downgraded the nsk
associated with build programmes

and build costs as further progress has
been made n tightering the cortrol
environment araund build costs

The risk scorecards and registers

are supported by frameworks of key
operational and fimancial controls that
enable risks to be treated, tolerated or
transferred to third parues



The nisk scorecards and registers are
complemented by the monitenng of a
set of key nsk indicators approved by
the Executive Leadersh?:: Tearn, which
provide early warming of potential 1ssues
and enable management to react
accordingly Those nsk ndicators
establish the nisk appeute for each

risk and are monitored at Graup and
regional levels

Assurance 1s provided over the effective

design and operation of the nsk

framework through a formal programme

aof assurance actvity This s structured

around three lines of defence

1 management assurance, through
operavanal controls and reporting

2 funcuonal suppertin the form of
formal policdies and procedures

3 programme of assurance actwity,
induding mternal and external audit

During FY17 internal audit reviews have

focused an the following key areas of the

pusiness and identified ways of

enhancing the control emvironment

» The selling processes past
first accupation

a Bulding in fine with budget and
programme Inciuding the
Implernentation of new commercral
and construction key controls

w Customer satsfaction

IT project governance in relation

to new Intiatves

Overzll oversight 15 provided by the
Board, with individual members of the
Board and the Executive Leadershig
Team sponsoring each of the key risks

Monitoring key business risks

The Directors have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing
the Group, incuding those that would
threaten s busimess model, future
performance, solvency or iquidity

Key business risks are formally
identified, reviewed and updated

by the Executive Leadership Team
every six months using a risk scoring
methodology Each risk s categorised
based on likelihacd and potential
impact Once agreed with the Executive
Leadership Team, the risks are plotted
on a risk heat map and submitted to the
Risk and Audit Committee for approval
and subsequently to the Board

STRATEGIC REPORT

The risk appetite s estabiished Dy a
-annual review of the risk hear map

by the Executve Leadership Team This
review confirms whether the relative
pesition of risks 1s acceprable and if not
what actions need to be taken to reduce
the hkehhood or impact A rating 1s given
to each nsk that defines whether the nisk
15 within the risk appelite and requires
no further attention, if the nsk s
crystaliising and therefore action should
be taken before the nsk appette 15
breached or whether the nisk is already
beyond the nsk appetite requiring
Immediate action The status of each
key nsk indicator 15 reviewed for all risks
beyond the risk appetite and reported
ta the Executive Leadership Team and
the Board As partof this review, the
Executive Leadership Team will review
the actions required and ensure that
progress 1s being made and conciude
whether the proposed actions are still
sufficent

The risks attnbuted to each land
ach|U|s=uon oppOorturity are assessed
by local regional management using
predetermined critena and form
part of the regional submission to
the Group Investment Commitiee,
which approves each land purchase
Following land acguisition, the
construction and commercial nisks
and opportunities are recorded in a
development risk register Arange

of worst-case to best-case potenyal
QUI-iLTR Costs are manrtored and
managed throughout the construction
phase, altowing risks 1o be formally
managed and opportunities realised

Internal control environment

The core elements of the Group-wide
internal contral environment are
orﬁamsanonal structure, culture and
values, corporate strategy and a key
contrals framework

Organisational structure

The Group's organisational structure

1s established around clear diisions of
respensbilities between the Board and
the Executive Leadership Team The
Board Is respensible for the operational
control of the Group, ncluding all
strategic, financial, organisational, legal
and regulatory matters

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The Executive Leadership Team

1s responsibie for the day-ta-da
management of the operaucna
activities of the Group Each member
of the Executive Leadership Team has
a '4eadershlf team’ of direct reports,
who are collectvely responsihle for
the averail systern of internal cantrol
across the business

Culture and values

The Group has developed a vaiues
framework which consists of five
cornersicne princples passwon,
respensibHity, Innavation, determination
and excellence (PRIDE) These are used
as a guide to conduct business from
key cecisions to day-to-day activities

These values are widely cormmunicated
across the business to ensure
algnment with strategic aims and

o actively encourage a culture that
promotes teamwork, Involvermnent

and empowerment at all levels of the
Group. These values play a key role

In recruitment across the business

Corporate strategy

The corporate strategy principally
facuses on investing £2 5bn inland and
build and on increasing the size of the
business over the medium term The
strategy has been well documented
and communicated both internally

and externally To support this strategy
the Group has ientified five strategic
priorities, as discussed on page 48

Key controls framework

The kay controls framework defines the
Group’s most impertant internal
contrels onwhich (t places key rellance
in the management of its core business
and reporting on its performance and
progress towards strategic objectives
The Group operates consistent financial
management, reporting controls and
processes across its nine regions These
are monitored by the Group Financial
Controller and her team in order to
ensure thewr effectiveness The key
controls framework s reviewed and
tested annually with the results
presented to the Board, and s alsg
subject to internal audit review
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facng the Group include, but are not imited to

Sk ares “ug< desenouon Miligat ng acuons
Economic Housebuilding s cyclical and relsant on the broader The Group closely monitors ndustry indicators and
conditions econcmy Adetenaration in the economic outlook, 2.585585 the potenual impact of different econamic

including econormic growth mftatian, interest rates ang
buyer configence, ceuld have 3 significant impact on the
Group's firancial performance and abilty ta selt bath
retirement apartments and the properties acquired as
part of the recently introduced in-house part-exchange
scheme

The uncertainty in the economy and speafically the
secondary housebullding market following the resolt
of the EL) Referendum and General Election)s likely
to continue N the short to medium-term as Bresxt
negonations continue

scenarios Decisions to allocate new caprial to land and
build are managed centrally thraugh the Group Investrment
Comrmittee The Group arns 1o mantain 3 national and
product spread of developments (o ensuire that it 1s not
reliant an one parucular locaiity or product type

The operation of In-house part-exchange scheme
Introguced during the year 15 subject to stnce controls and
regional imits

In addiuon, over the course of the kast finanaal year, the Group
has sought to enhance the robustness of ks business model
by developing a strategic relationship with PP Capital to
access the growing rental market This wilk help ta offset any
potential impact of a downturn in the secondary bousing
market

Reputation
and customer
satisfaction

The Group constructs and sells a quality product to an
ageng and somehimes frail customer base and provides
ongoing management and personal care services Any
1ssues with the products or services the Group provides
could impact on reputation or customer satisfaction to
the detriment of the Group's business model

Adverse national publicity with respect to re-sales,
espeaally older non-managed propertes and those sold
just prior 1o the housing market crash in Z008, can resuft
1N lower resale values, which in turn can adversely :mpact
our ability (o sefl new retirement apartments

The Group enforces strict procedures aver the handover of
developments for occupation and the nangover of specific
apartments to ndividual customers Ongomng management
2nd persanal care services are provided within a rabust
framework of cantrols which is closely monitored The
business has a dedicated customer services team and
tracks customer satisfacuon through NHBC, HBF and
internal surveys

Anew in-house estate agency has been established o
support the re-sales process for custamers In our managed
developments on the private market, with the aim of speeding
up the sales process and maximising value on resaie

Sales The Group’s growth plans assume that 1t can sell its Detaled reporting enables the Group 1o monitor sales
performance products at attractive prices Any valume shortfall or priong  and priang at a site and unit level and reguiarly review
weakness could have 2 significant impact on the Group's performance againsy expectation with regional
financial performance management Astrict approval process has been
introduced during the year for awarding discounts and
incentives 1n excess of certan threshalds
Workflow The Group has histarically suffered from a bras towards The Group is taking acton to spread the workflow more
management  achevingthe majonity of its completions and profit in the evenly throughout the year, which 15 ikely [o take effect
second half of each financral year Hence, any polincat from FY19 onwards, and conitnues ta seek ways nwhich
uncertainty ar adverse market conditions duning this period 1o mprove this Warkflow s closely monitared by regional
could adversely impact the Group's annual performance management and the Board
This was evidenced by the EU Referendum result in 2016
and to a lesser extent the General Election cutcame in 2017
Government Like any ather business, the Group 15 affected by changes n - The Group closely monitors Gavernment proposats and
legislation Government legislation It s possible that the outcame of the  consultations and seeks alternative sofutians, iIncluding
recent Government consuitation on unfair leasehold pracuces  lobbying Government, submitting consultation responses,
could adversely impact the Group’s business madet and combining views with other campanies in the sector
to mitigate any potenoal adverse impact on the business
madel The Group has recently carned out an impact
assessment of lower and na ground rents and reviewed
its land appraisal process accordingly
Build The Group's fnancal performance 1s dependent an s Build progress and costs are reviewed regularly by
programmes ability to deliver build programmes onome and onbudget  dedicated regional commeraial teams, as welf as beng
and buifd Build programme or cost over-runs coukd resutt in slower reported to regional, dvsional and Groug management
costs sales or reduced margins independent assurance 1s provided through a dedicated

commercaal internal audit resource Framework agreements
have been established with key subcentractors and
supphers to prowde greater certanty of price and supply In
addition, the Group has recently implernented a tighter cantrol
framework over higher risk more complex developments
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Mitigsung actions

Employees

The Group's employees are central to the achievement

of the Group's objectives Failure o recruit and retain
sufficient staif rescurce of the right quality could constrain
growth plans

The Group has put in place attractive reward mechanisms
and prowdes extensive opportunities for personal
development and training, bath of which are regularly
reviewed against peer housepuilders and other employers
nlocal markets Resource requirements are assessed aganst
annual budgets and recruitment processes are designed

to ensure talent attraction to deliver the Group’s plans

Carrying value
of land

The net realisable value of land owned by the Group may
decline due to changes In the property market or other
conditions, or the Group being unable (¢ secure detaied
ptanming consent on land purchased unconditionally

Whenever possible, contracts to purchase land are via aption
agreement or are condiienal en the Group obtaining
detalled planning consent and contain a commercral viabihty
clause The Group performs imparment reviews i hing with
Internaticnal Financial Reparting Standards (1FRS)
requirements

Health &

Safety

Construction sites are inherently rsky, and could expose
employees/contraciors 1o the risk of senous injuryAfatatity
Homeowners i the developments the Group manages are
ageing and sometimes frail, with the rsk that they can be
more susceptibie o inury

The Group strives for excelience in health and safety and
considers it to be atop prionty The Health & Safety
Operaucns Cirectar reports directly (o the Executve
Leadership Teamn, identlfying areas of concern, near misses
and accidents Thisis supperted by a ngorous, :ndependent
site Inspection process which routinely assesses and
reports on standards During the year, the Group also
established a Health & Safety Commuttee, chaired by our
Chief Operatng Officer

Land

acquisition
and planning

Poor-quaiity land and/or location Could result in
programme/cast over-runs and difficulty in selling Falure
to obtain umely planring permissions will adversely affect
workflow. resuloing in failure to meet targeted growth rates,

Regional land buying teams are in place across all regions
provicing local knowledge and expertise These teams are
targeted on land exchange and completion as part of their
bonus structure

future sales and/or cash flow

We acquire land wath 3 high-degree of conditionality

Regional planning teams have the support and aversight
of the Group Investment Commtlee

The Group maintans central T systems and has in

place a fully tested disaster recavery programme Thisis
supplemented by regular reviews to seek to reduce the risk
of successful cyber-attacks and a General Data Protection
Regulation {GOPRY) programme to ensure comphance

Cyber/data Failure of any of the Groups |T systems, «n particular those
relabing to customer data, surveying and valuatien, could
adversely rmpact the performance of the Group

Change

Increased

Viability statement

In addiion to making a going cencern statement, the
Directors are also required ta make a lenger-term viabiliyy
statement (o comply with provision C.2 2 of the UK
Carporate Governance Code 2014

In response ta that, the Directors have assessed Lthe
prospects and finanaial viabidity of the Group, taking Into
account bath its current posrtion and circumstances, and
the patential impact of its principal risks The Directors
censider a three-year period was appropnate for this
assessment as our capital cycle from land completion to
final sell-out of a development, for FY17 build starts, 15
approximately three years Our land pipeline also provides
us with sufficient fand under control to meet sales targets
for the next three years Accordingly, we consider it

o No change ° Decreased

appropriate that cur viability rewew period s broadly aligned
with the expected longevity of our owned land supply

The Group 1s subject to a number of prinapal nsks [as
set outin more detait above, and the Directors’ vabil
statement review considered the Impact that these nsks
might have on the Group's ability to meet its targets This
was undertaken through the performance of a single
downside case sensitivity, which reflects a severe but
plausible iImpact assuming that appropriate steps are
taken to mitigate the impact of the downside

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Greup will be able to continue in operation and
meet its habilities as they fall due over the three-year
assessmeni period
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

A responsible housebuilder

Graphic removed

Our focus on enriching the lives of
our homeowners and employees
influences all of our activities,
from identifying and buying
suitable land to designing, building,
selling and managing high quality
age-exclusive properties
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Introduction

Ths, cur second Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) report, since
re-joiming the London Stock Exchange,
encompasses all the cperations from
the land aquisition, planning and
design stage through construction

o management of our occupied
developments It explans how we
interact with our stakeholders, namely
aur employees, our customers, our
homeowners and the communiues

in which we operate.

As the UK's leading retirement

housebuilder, our driving ambition

across our business is to enrich

the lives of our homeowners and

employees We aim 1q deliver this by

= Creating a great place to work

which 15 both safe and inspiring

for our employees

minimising the environmental

impact of our acuvities

= engaging postvely with the local
communities in which our
developments are built

w bulding a culture of excellence in
health and safety across all our
business acuvities

» Dbudding safe and vibrant
developiients Ly help older people
lead healthy independent lives
ensuring that they experience
retirement fnang to the full

Cur C5R Commitiee meets quarterly
and 1s charred by Gary Day, cur
Executive Land & Planrung Director

It inciudes representatives from
acress the business - Land & Planning,
Procurement, Construction, Regiona
Management, Health & Safety, MR,
Communications, Management Services
and Legal The Commuttee reports
directly to the Executive Leadership
Tearn and indrectly (o the plc Board

Qur priorities for FY17 and FY18

The man priorities of the

Comimittee In FY17 have been

m establshing KPls

= Implementing a framework for
greenhouse gas emission reporting

Duning FY+8 the Commuttee will focus on

= continuing to mprove aur {SR
performance

a refiming our CSR reporting framework

STRATEGIC REPOQRT

Planning and design

We understand that our homeawners
want toc remain active within their
community and near te local amenities
and public eransport inks On average
our hormeowners move no more

than five miles from their current
home into a McCarthy & Stone
apartmen, 5o our developments

are clearly helping to meet a crincal
and grow:ng local housing need

We have strict criteria when purchasing
land to ensure the location will suit the
needs and aspirations of customers
Our developments are typicatly butlt
on centrally located, urban, brownfield
sites which were previcusly developed
or had an exsung established use

Examples of sites we have purchased
include lacal authority surplus car parks
or bulldings, police and fire stations,
garages, pubs, care homes and hotels
Irt FY17 92% (FY16 $49%) of cur land
exchanges were brownfield sites

We always seek to opumise the
development density of our sites This,
combined with a relatvely low leve! of
car ownership and usage amongst our
homecwaners, means that we deliver a
fughly sustainable form of development

Community consultation

We consuft with local communities,
businesses and other relevant
stakehalders on everry new plannimg
apphication we bring forward (coth pre
ard post-submission), including halding
cne-to-one meeungs, discussions
with affected parties and public
exhibiions This gives neighbiours and
other interested parties a platform

to voice their opimions, many of

which help to inform our designs

and approach to construction

During FY17, over 92 (FY15 133)
consultations and exhibiticns were held
with 84 4% (FY16 79 6%) of attendees
advising that they found them informatwve

Construction

We are aware of the impact that the
construction phase of our activities can
have onthe local community All of our
sites must comply with internal palicies
around levels of noise, cleanliness and
presentation and some of our sies

are accredited under the Considerate
Constructors Scheme ('CCS)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Minimising our impact on the
environment

There are clear environmental and
business benefits to desigring energy
efficent homes, using responsibly
sourced and efficient materials, and with
the mimimum of waste sent to landfill

Having a clear understanding of where
our money s being spent and how much
wasie we create dunng the construction
and operation of our developments
allows us to make better Informed
business decsions whilst ensuring we
minimise our environmental Impact

We are conwilled to reducing the level
of waste generated by our construction
sites year-on-year as this will bring both
financial and environmental benefits

Of the 18,821 tonnes of waste generated
on our construction sites in FY17, only

1 7% (320 tonnes) went to landfill, the
rest being recycled We continue towork
with cur waste management companies
to further improve this figure, as welt

as with our supplers 1o reduce waste
further up the supply chain

DID YOU
KNOW?
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Greenhouse gas emissions reporting

This sectron bas been prepared in
accordance with our regutatory
cbligation to report greenhouse gas
(GHGE) emissionNs pursuant e Section
7 of the Comparies Act 2006 {Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report)
Regulations 2013 As a newly listed
compary, this 1S the first year we have
reported our GHG emissions N our
Annual Report

During the penad from | September
201610 31 August 2017 McCarthy &
Stone emitted a total of 16,382 tonnes
of Carbon Dioxide eguivalent (tCO,e)
from cormbustion of fuel and cperation
of fachties (Scope 1 dwect) and
electricity purchased for our own use
(Scope 2 indirect location-based)

The table befow shows our GHG
ermissions for the year ended
31 August 2017

Greenhouse gas emissions in tCO.e

Fr1z

LCombustion of fuel and

operation of fachties (Scope 1) 8,681
Electricity, heat, steam and

coohing purchased for aur own

use (Scope 2 lacauon-based) 770
Efectriaty, heat, steam and

cooling purchased for our own

use (Scope 2 market-based) 2,661

Seape 2 o saias calculated L ming the marksi-aased
approachusirg supphier spealic erriss on faciors are
calcutored 2nd reported 1Im (C0,

Methodology

We quantily and report our
orgamisational GHG emissions
according to the Greenhouse Gas
Srotocol Our sustamabibty consultant,
Carbon Credenuals, per formed the
calculations to convert our activity
data into CO, equivalent using the UK
Government 2017 Conversion Factors
for Company Reporung

This report has been prepared in
accordance with the recent
amendments to the GHG Protocol's
Scope 2 Guidance, we have therefore
reported bath a location-based and
market-based Scope 2 ermissians
figure The Scope 2 market-based
figure reflects emissions from

[ McCarthy & Stone plc

electricity purchasing decisions that
McCarthy & Stone has made

When quantifying ermissions using the
market-based approach we have used
a supplier specific emission factor
where possible If these factors were
unavallable. a residual mix emission
factor was used This approach s in line
with the GHG Protocal Scope 2 Data
Hierarchy

We have also chosen to report our
emissians per number of managed
developments (312)

Greenhouse gas emissions in tCO,e

\oratan- Mariet-

-
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A f and estimations

|

hasect based

approach approach

Py kY1

Total Scope 1 and 2 16,382 11,341
tCO,e per Managed

Development 52.5 364

Tne emissions Irensiy calculzton s based oo afigue
of 312 managed developrrents for .neyear
Sapeember 2016 ;0 31 August 2017

Reporting boundaries

and limitations

We consolidate our arganisational
boundary according to the operational
control approach Emissions for all
significant sites have been disclosed,
which includes our offices, construction
sites and developments

The GHG sources that constatute our
operaticnal boundary for FY17 are

= Scope 1:Natura! gas combustion
within bollers, diesel combustion
within generators and road fuel
combustion within vehicles

a Scope 2 Purchased electncity
consumption for our own use

As this Is our first year of reporting we
have beenunable to gather sufficient
informatian on refrigerant consumption
across the organisation, therefare this Is
excluded from our disclosure

As this 1s the first year we have reported
our GHG ermissions, our data collection
processes have not been fully
operational across all areas of reporting
We have therefore used some
assumpticns m order 1o estimate our
activity data For example, we did nat
have records of vehicle fuel consumption
avallable for management services’
empioyees or company vans Therefore,
astimatons were made using available
data from other parts of the business

In addtion, accurate records of

diesel combustion in generators at
construction sites were not avalable

w tme far repartng Therefore, an
estumaton was used based on average
diesel consumption at each site as well
as avalable records from procurement

In some cases, missing data has been
estimated using extrapolation of
avallable data from the reporung period

Improving performance

We monitor energy consumption on
the developments we manage in detad
to identify opporturities ta improve
energy performance We have now
begun the process of collecting more
accurate data for construction sites
and offices This will help us to
understand mare about our
consumption and energy use, and to
reduce our emissions going forward



Efficient homes

We design our developments to

maximise the performance of the

fabnc and matenials of the bulding

The “fabric first” approach s used

for a number of reasons

n It prioriises the largest eem of
energy CoNSUMpion 1n homes
mantaining a comfortable internal
temperature

w The energy efficency 1s integrated
nto the bullding and does Not require
accupants to operate cormnplex
systems or change their behaviours

We employ a range of methods across

our "fabric first” approach including:

s Maximising air ghtness

» Installing Insulation 10 walls and
loft spaces

s Opumising solar gain thraugh
apenings and shades

» Opumising ventlation and using
the thermal mass of building fabrics

= Addition of photovaitaic cells to
bulldings where practical

Customer feedback

We also Ysten end respond o custorner
feedback Qur current workon
improving kitchens 1s a good example
aof this Around 20% of our négative or
neutral feedback on the NHBC New
Homes Survey was related to kitchens,
with storage space the most cemmon
criticism As a result, we have improved
the specificaton of our kitchens and
implemented an optirmised design to
make better use of the storage space

Engaging with the community
We do not Just consult with focal
communities at the planning stage
- we also engage with thern during
the construction phase Actwvities
include wistting local schoaols &r
O/gaNISINg vIsIts to our sites 1o
encourage children to understand
the dangers of construction sites

Creating a culture of excellence
and a great place to work

Our people are vital to the continued
growth and success of our business
We recognise that atrracting and
retairung employees is only possible

if we provide the nght warking
environment, appropriate reward and
recognition schemes and oppartunities
for persenal development and traning

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AL 31 August 2017, the Group employed
2,264 people (FY16 2,094) This figure
excludes subcontracters and agercy
warkers Seme 59% of employees in
tha main business are employed an
sites or at developments or as House
Managers with the balance based in
our regional and central otfices

Employee communications

We communicate with our employees
through a vanety of channels including
regular updates and the Group's
quarterly staff newsletter Group-wide
business updates led by our Chiel
Executive Officer on tha business
s{rategy give employees an oppornity
to prowide feedback to menagement

Employees: as at 31 August 2017

Femate

Directors of the Board
- actual number 5 2 7
- percentage 714% 28.6%
Employees in senior management positions

(including Directors of subsidiary companies)
- actual number 103 27 130
- percentage 79.2% 20 8%
Total employees of the Group

{excluging Non Executive Directors)
- actuzl number 756 1,508 2,264
- percentage 33 4% 66.6%

At the end of the financial year 66 6% of all employees were female and 42 7%
were over the age of 50

Employee survey

Our latest ali-employee survey was carried out in Qctober 2016 The response
rate was B6% and, as shown in the table below, demonstrated that our employee
engagement scores contnue to be significantly higher than external benchmarks

External benchrnarks for the emﬁloyee survey are provided by the external suppher,
and are based on responses to the same guestion from other survey partapants

=xteqmal

2017 Employees surve! Fri7 v e e
ploye ¥ . " ®

1 am proud 10 work for McCarthy & Stone 87 89 63
I wauld be happy to 1 ecommend McCartiy &

Stone as a place to work 79 81 74
I feel a sense of belonging at McCarthy & Stone 77 7% 54
1 feel valued for the work | do 74 74 a4
1'am clear about how my role contributes to

McCarthy & Stene's success 50 N 62
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Our values are:

Passion
Responsibility
Innovation
Determination
Excellence

Recognition of achievements

Our values, which were chosen by our
employees, are the standards to which
we hold ourselves accountable and
reflect the way we work, the way we
commuricate and the way we act

DIc You
HNOW?

6/4

We celebrate and recognise ernployees
who go the extra mule for a customer
or colleague through our guarterly and
annual PRIDE awards Qur progress

15 flustrated by our most recent
employee survey, which identfied

that 87% of our employees are proud
to work for McCarthy & Stone

Any staff member can nominate a
colleague for an instant PRIDE award
wihich 1s judged by our regional PRIDE
champions Each quarter, instant

PRIDE winners are then put forward for
quarterly awards with overall winners
being pudged on an annual basis During
FY17 674 PRIDE awards were presented

Image
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NHBC Pride in the Job awards

We are extremely pleased that our
standards are recognised externally

In 2017, 15 of our site managers were
awarded NHBC Pride in the Job awards,
an impressive 50% ncrease over 2016

NHBC Pride i1 the Job 1s the industry's
most prestiglous awards programme,
the awards recognise site managers
wha achieve the highest standards of
housepuilding and who demonstrate
the highest quatities of workmanship,
leactership, technical expertise and
health and safety awareness 7 of

our site managers have recewved an
NHBC Seal of Excellence Award

Apprentices and trainees

We offer aspinng site managers the
opportunity to learn hands-on skills on
our construction sites whilst studying
tawards a NVQ qualification such as Level
4 Diploma in Construction and Building
Services Management, and Supervisions
and Techrucal Ceruficate Level 4 NHCIn
Construcoen and the Built Environment
We also partiopate n a Shared Trade
Apprentice Schemne, partnening with
South West-based subcontractors, and
various colleges We hope that, once
qualified, the apprentices will conunue
working for the Group, thus helping

|

to alleviate national shortages in
skifled labour

We have also offered vainee
contracts In other departments
such as Sales, Finance and Legal

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment to
training. and personal and professicnal
development Performance against
objectives is formally reviewed on

an annual basis As well as setung
abjectives, the process includes the
identification and implementation of

a talored personai development plan
Improvement programmes focusing on
gualty, efficiercy and customer service
prowde an opportunity for all employees
to be nvolved 1n the development

of our business and products

Student placement scheme

The Group 1s also developing the
next generation of housebuilders
through a student placement scheme
run in conunction with Northumbria
University As part of the scheme,
which has been running since 1991,
students studying for the BSc Hons
in Corstruction Project Management
have the opportunity to spend a
year working at McCarthy & Stone



Thus works well for both the students,
who gain on-site experience,

and for McCarthy & Stone, with
many students competing for
placernents and choosing to become
employees after they graduate

Four new students siarted their
placement years with us In August
2416 Intotal, over 130 people have
cempleted the scheme with us since
it was launched with several scheme
partcipants continuing to work for

us after completing therr degrees
Some have rsen to senior roles in the
argamsation, Including two who are
now regional managing directars

Employee involvement
Employees are encouraged to
participate in the success of the
Group We currently have two share
schemes which are open to all
emplayees - a Sharesave plan {'SAYE)
and a Share Incenove Plan (SIPY) The
SAYE savings contracts are for either
three or five years Nerther schemess
subject to performance conditions

Diversity and inclusivity

We are committed to promoting policies
to ensure that our employees are
treated equally, regardless of status,
gender, sex, age, colour, race or ethnig
ongin

We give full consideration to applications
for employment from people with
disabifines where the requirements
of the job can be adequately rulhlled
by a person with a disability Should
any employee hecome disabled itis
the Group’s policy, wherever possible,
to continue the employment of that
person it1s the Group's policy 1o
provice equai opportunities for the
training and career development

of employees with disabilities

We have recently reviewed and updated
our Equality and Diversity Policy

Human rights

We support the United Nations’
Universal Declaration of Human Rights
and have polices and processes in place
10 ensure that we act in accordance with
principles in relation to areas such as
anu-corruption, diversity, whistieblowing
and the requirerents of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 All suppliers are
required to confirm compliance with

our Modern Slavery Policy which

was adopted during the year

STRATEGIC REPORT

House Manager & Estate
Manager of the Year awards

Twao years ago we Introduced our
House Manager and Estate Manager
of the Year awards to recognise the
amazing work that our people do

n managing our develcpments
These awards recognise the House
Manager end Eslate Manager who
have excelled in their role and gone
abave and beyond to enrich the
Iives of colleagues and homeowners
alike InJune our House Manager
and Estate Manager of the Year

for 2017 were announced

N B
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Katring Andireza, Howse Moanoger of the Year 2077
and Richord Wilson, Estate Monager of the Yeor 2017

Building a culture of excellence

in health & safety

Health & safety continues to be one of
our top Fr\ontles In FY17, we relaunched
aur Health & Safety Committee, which
rneets quarterly Members of the
Committee Include representatives
from Health & Safety, Construction,
Legal, HR, Marketing and Management
Services and 1s chaired by John
Tonkiss, our Chvef Operatung Officer

The Committee has oversight of alt
aspects of the Group's health and
safety management palicies and
pracedures, as well as regulatory
issues and best practice

In addition, the Health & Safety
Cperatons Director reports directly

to the Executive Leadership Team

As well a5 the central team who
determene our health and safety
strategy, we have a Group Construction
Health & Safety Manager and

regional Health & Safety advisers

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Katnna Andrews, our House Manager
at Coppre Gate, Dibden Purlieu, has a
long background in customer service
and care, and was appaointed as
House Manager at Coppice Gate
when it first opened in August 2016
Norminations for Katrina commented
on how supportive she 15 [0 everyone
argund her, how fun she 1s and how
she has 4 real passion for working with
pecple She commented on how
comng into work was not ke work at
all, and that 1o make g difference (o
people’s fives was the best possible
Job sausfaction

Richard Wilson has worked for
YourLife Management Services since
March 2014, and recewved countless
nominations for his fantasuc

wark, enthusiasm and positivity

as well as always being fair and
approachable o both colleagues
and homeowners On accepting his
award, Richard said how lucky he felt
to have a job he enjoyed so much

On-site, we emphasise a proactiive
approach 1o health and safety as well as
reinforang the indivgual responstoility
that every site worker has for therr, and
therr colleagues’ heslth and safety All
staff (both employees and contractors}
are required to have adequate health
and saiety quahfications before starting
work on one of our sites and all
contractors are reguired te hold a valid
Construction Skills Certfication Scheme
Card This evidences that the contractor
has the retevant skilis required for their
role, including understanding the health
and safety implications of the work they
perform

We require afl of our site managers
and assistant site managers o hold
Construction Industry Training Board's
(CITB') Site Management Safety Training
Scheme qualifications and to be
qualified first aiders There must be a
qualified first aider on-site at all times
and all ncidents must be reported
internally We beleve our ngorous
reporting standards provide us with a
very honest portrayal of cur accident
statistics
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

During £¥17, we reported 23 incigents
under the Reporting of Incidents
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
Regulations (RIDDORY to the Health

& Safety Executive We have been
actively encouraging transparency of
acaident reporting and we believe that
the ncrease in RIDDOR reporung this
year is a reflecuon of the greater level
of scryuny placed by the Group on
this area

We employ the BSG ta undertake
independent audits of our construction
sites throughout the year and it visits
each site every three weeks aurning the
build process Although a recalibration
of the scanng ¢t itena for the 85G audits
11 FY17 has resulted in Jower average
scores, It also provides more meaningful
feedback than before Duning FY17

our average score was 86 1% against
the new scoring criter:a (FY16 98 7%}
These audits help the Group move
closer to its goal of achieving g culture
of excellence m health and safety

Since 2015, the Group has entered its
sites for the NHBC Health and Safety
Awards These have been running for
eight years, and recognise and reward
the very best in health and safety, with
the aim of driving up standards, and
showcasing and sharing besl practice

During FY17, we receved two NHBC
Healthy and Safety commendanaons
and won three BSG Health and Safety
awards We won the B5G Best Use
of Technology for Health & Safety
award for our ploneering work using
drones for roof inspection to obviate
the need for work at height We also
wor two Site Manager of the Year
awards in BSG's South West and
Midlands regrons respectively

All our house managers and estate
managers have basic first ad traimng
and are gualified 1o make inmal
assessments of minor trips and falls
Any Inaident Involving a homeowner
on one of our developments merits a
full enquiry performed by our Health
& Safety team with a view to ensuring
that the incident is not repeated

Key hgures from our 2017 HOMEoWner s' S3us/aut of Sursey

From August 2077, all of our new
developments are beng fitted wict
automatic external defibrillators

All offices have & quahified first

aider whose wraining s refreshed
arnually All staff are also required 10
complete a desk-based guestionnarre
concerning thewr desk space and
S83ung arrangements

I 2014, we brought our nealth and
safety training in-Fouse, allowing us

16 tallor the courses to our needs We
have introduced training for staff to
enable them to becorne iIncreasingly
self-supportve in their management

af health and safety Dunng <¥1/,the
Group delvered 355 in-house (raining
courses for employees and 178 in-house
training courses far contractors in total,
563 peopie attended safety workshops
anrd 17 BSG safety surgeries were held

Living in a McCarthy B Stone
development

Qur Retirement Living and Retirement
Living Plus developments have a house
manager or estate manager on-site
dunng working hours or up to 24
hours a day, respectively Since 2010
these services have been provided :n
all new devetopments by our in-house
management services HusINesses
Their role s not only to help deal with
any 1ssues that our homeowners may
have but also 1o heip create a friendly
and communal environment where
the homeowners can, if they wish, seek
companicnship and make new friends
To support this, the Group has set

up a ‘tommunity fund’ which can be
spent at the House/Estate Manager's
discretion with the aim of engendening
a sense of community within the first
year of each new development

We are very proud of the work that
our management services businesses
do In promoting social Interaction
among our homeowners More than
27600 sgcial events were held in our
managed developments during FY17,
averaging mare than seven events
per development per month

Agreed Disagreed

| feel safe and secure in my property 96% 2%
My praperty 15 easy 1o maintam 94% 1%
My praperty is easy to ive In / suitable for my needs 93% 3%
| have good access to local amenities and facilines 91% 3%
| feel "at horne' In my property 89% 3%
| find the communal areas homely and welcaming 85% 5%
I make use of the communal areas to socialise 80% 5%

“ McCarthy & Stone pic

Social events are organised in our
homeowners’ rounfges and range from
coffee mornings, filrn and quiz nights,
music evenings, exercise and craft
classes to local interest talks and events

Our homeowners have been especially
supportive of our 40th year celebration

RVS fundraising challenge, holding coffee
rmarnings and bake-off competitons

DD YOuU
KNOW?

27600+ [

SOCib e Ve

develapr

Our homeowners tell us what
they think of McCarthy & Stone
In August 2017 we commisstoned our
second homeowners’ satisfaction
survey, conacting homeawners in
our developments which have been
open for atleast 18 months We
undertook the survey to see how
our scores compare to the NHBC
surveys, which are undertaken at
aight weeks and at nine months

Over 4,200 homeowners (51%)
responded and the results compare ve
favourably with the NHBC survey Overall
satisfaction had improved siightly from
85% to 86% Feedback around the
quality of ife in qur developments was,
on the whoie, positive as indicated by
the responses shown in the table below

Wwe will use the feedback from

the survey to inform discussions
across the business on how we
can improve the design, layout and
management of our developments

Helping our homeowners to
reduce their carbon footprint
During 2016, we began a roll-out

of smart electricity meters across
our developments These aliow us
to monitor usage an a real-ume
basis, both in terms of kwh and cost
of electncty used within shared
areas on a half-hourly basis As at

31 August 2017, 98 developments
had these smart meters installed,
representing approximately 31% of
the Group's managed developments



The data from the new meters has
been recevec enthusiastically by
homeowners with energy savings
already starting to be seen Some of
the benefits nciude: lzundry facilities
being used outside of peak hours
when electricity is cheaper, windows
and doors being kept shut when the
heating 1s on, and the heatng being
turned down when not required

We will start our rofl-out of smart
gas meters across the Group's

Retirement Liming Pius developments
which use gas, during FY18
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Becoming Dementia-Friendly
In March 2017, we welcomed the
publication of the Dementia-
friendiy housing charter that has
beenintroduced to inform housing
organisations, corporate bodies
and sector professionals on how
housing, 1ts design and supportng
services can help improve and
maintain the well-being of people
affected by dementia

The charter, which we played a role in
drafting, 15 @n important and influentiai
document that will inspire the housing
sector o make a valuable contribution
to suppart pecple with dementia

We have already 1dentfied areas
where we can improve our products
to make thern mare dementa-friendly
and we have made it a priority to
continue to make key changes across
our organisation to help rmprove the
lives of people living with demenoa
We have introgduced "Designing

for Dementia” gurdance far our
architects and Intenor designers

In October 2016 we arcuiated our
own Becoming Bementia-Friendly
- Achieving Excellence in our
Developments document to all our
Retirement Living Pius developments
Qur aim 1s to encourage staff and
horeowners to commit to working
together for people with dementia,
and to provide the famiies and friends
of people with dementia access to
more structured and personalised
support for their loved ones

7
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Qur subsigiary, YourLife Management
Services Limited, YLMS, 15 a member of
the National Bementta Action Allance,
which brings together organisations
and indmvduals across England
committed to improving health and
sacial care outcomes for people Iiving
with dernentia, and those who care
for them YLMS has produced an
action plan representing our stance
natondlly to achieve better standards
for people ving with dermentia

We are striving to ensure that all of
our developmerits, both existing and
new builds, will incorporate elements
and pnnaples of dementia-friendly
design We have developed a McCarthy
& Stone guide that promotes a
technology sclution for the needs

of our homeowners this includes
the new 'Care Clyp’ that can enable a
person o leave a development safe
i the knowledge that we can track
ther whereabauts as needed

The more our business knows about
dementia, the more we can do to
help and understand the disease
Appropniate traiming is therefore vital
and we have redesigned and lengthened
the dementia awareness course
offered to our estate management
teams and our house managers to
help thern understand the basics

of dementia, and the response
needed to support pecple ving with
dementia in our develcpments

Avirtust dementa tour has been
delivered to all of our estate
management teams The aim of this
training 1s for individuals to experience
what it's ke to have dementia and
put that learn:ng into practice in their
developments by improwving standards

We are encouraging all of our staff to
became Dementia Friends o learn

a litde bic more about what it 15 ike
0 hve with demenua and then turm
that understanding Into acticn

Qur gverarching aim ¢s to meet the
challenge of supporting peaple with
dementia and ther famly members
Through this challenge, we aim to
create an environment that 1s inclustve,
accepting and promotes gua!tty of

Iife for people Iving with dementia
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report continued

Our RVS fundraising challenge |_ _]
Qur desire to support and ennch
the hives of older people has been
the drang force behind our 40th
Anniversary charity partnership
with RVS In 2017 Events have been
: held across the business to raise
money for RVS to support the
fantastic work it does in helping
older peaple live better at nome

Our employees have particpated

in cycle rides, charity walks,

sponsored events, marathons and

even g parachute Jump in Duba Graphic removed

DID You
KNOW?

>£200,000

Ruyiseed far R
Janua: y ;

3 i S

Graphic removed

Graphlc removed

| L L _

We had a dragon boat race in the West We are delghted that we surpassed

Midlands region, whilst the North our £130,000 target by early September Graphi "

East region organsed a chanty ball 2017 wWith events stll being organised raphicremave
and maney still reling in, we are J

Qur homeowners have also tremendously proud of, and grateful

been extremely supportive of for the achievernents and support

our fundrasing challenge and of our employees, our homeowners

have organised events across cur and our suppliers, who have all

developments during the year contributed to this wonderful cause

images
1 Saurh West Region Sky Dnee
! 2 North London Chaniy wolk
3 Norr Wesi Reglon of Haydock Ruces,
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CSR KPIs

<P FY17 sutcome ~Y1 W conn:
Planning and design

Consultations and exhibinons 292 133
Number of attendees who found this informative 84.4% 796%
Construction and emvironmentad

Greenhouse gas emission per managed development - 1onnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent (1C0,e) 52.5 n/a
Waste ro landfill 1.7% 5 6%
BSG construction site audht {average score} 86.1%’ 98.7%
Smart meters in our developments 31% 22%
Emgployees

PRIDE awards 674 572
Percentage of fernale Breciors 28.6% 14,3%
Percentage of ferale employees 66.6% 63 B%
Training courses (employees) 13,500+ 8,200
Percentage of employees over 50 42.7% 45.9%
NHBC Pride mihe 1ob awards 15 0
NHBC Seal of Excellence awards 7 2
Heaith and safety

RIDDCR inadents - construction sites/offices? 23 ]
NHBC Health and Safety awards (commended) 2

856G Health & Safety award winners 3

In-house training courses for contractors 21 178
Customer satisfaction

HEBF Five Star award Yes Yes
Annual number of sogial actmties in cur developments 27,600+ 16,500+4

T The reducton s due 10 @ recthbiation of the s(orng crrend fo provide more medrmagful feedaace
2 ihe percentage hos reduced post year entf to 259 fol'owing the gppovtinect of fohn Corter

3 inviudes RIDDORS i cespert of sub-c0ontrodiors of aur saes

4 he number of socisl acimibtes a5 oy repurted for eight ionths of FY16

Our Strategic Report, on pages 4-67 has been reviewed and approved by
the Board

On behalf of the Board

Clive Fenton
13 November 2017

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts a7
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Graphic removed

mage coptions
1 View of Poole Hurbour frem Horszons

2 Beccon Court, Fife
3 Mr & Mrs Mangell, Fim Tree Court, Huntmgdan
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Board of Directors

Graphicremoved

L J

John White
Group Non-Executive Chairman

Graphic removed

L |

Clive Fenton
Chief Executive Officer

John was appointed as independent Non-Executive Chairman
of the Group in September 2013 and s also Chairman of

our Nomination Committee He was Group Chairman of
Persimmon pic, a positon he held between April 2006 and
Aprit 2011, having previousty been Group Chief Executive
Officer since 1993 He has spent all his working Iife in the
housing industry and has unrivalled experience of working
within the sector

Ioh is alse Chairman of Northamptan Saints plc and
a director of Narthampton Rugby Football Club Limnsted
and Premier Rugby Limited

On S November 2017, the Company announced John's
nteriion (o redre fallowing the conclusion of the Cormpany's
AGM on 24 January 2018 and the appointment of Paul Lester
as Charrman Designate

Chve joned the Group as Chief Executive Officer in February
2074 He has a wealth of both housebutlding and business
experience, having spent almost 30 years with Barratt
Developments plc He joned Barratt i 1983 and worked

In a number of finance and operauonal rales befare

being appointed to the Group Board in 2003 with overall
responsrgllaty for alf operations in the South of England

He was also respensible for group strategic land, partnership
housing and retirement homes More recently he was

Chief Executive Officer of Mount Anwil, a development
company specahsing in the residential property market

n central tondon

Committees
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee

70 McCarthy &Stone plc
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Graphic removed Graphic removed

L . L |

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

John foneed McCarthy & Swne in February 2014 and joined the Rowan Joined McCarthy & Stone in January 2012 and was
Board n Novernber 2015 He was appointed as Chief Operating  appainted as Chief Finanaial Officer en 6 January 2017

Officer on 1 June 2017 John previpusly held the roles of having prewously held the role of Group Financial Controller
Operations Director - Noith and Business Transformation Rowan played a wead role in the Cormpany's successful IPO
Director, and became Group Natonal Operations Directar m in November 2015

September 2016 He 1s responsible for the Graup's nine operatng
reglons and alse leads the mpravement change programme 10
accelerate business growth, enhance customer expertence and
improve operating performance

Before Joming McCarthy & Stone, Rowan held various roies in
industry and private pracuice, most notably at Barclays Bank
plc and PricewaterhouseCoopers Rowan s a Chartered
Accountant and a Chartered Tax Adviser

Johnwas previously Chief Executive Officer of Human
Recognion Systems, the UK's leading brometric saluttons
provider Priar ta that, he worked for ten years for The Unite
Group, the UK's largest provider of purpose-built student
accommodanon, becoming Group Chief Operating Officer

In 2008
Committees Committees
Mernber of the Allotment and Health & Safety Committees Member of the Disclosure and Allotment Committees

McCarthy & Stona plc Annual Report and Accounts k



Board of Directors continued

Graphic removed
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Frank Neison
Senior Independent Director

Graphic ramoved

L ]

Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director

Frank joined the Board in Nevember 2013 and s the Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the Risk and Audit
Comrmittee He 15 a qualified accountant with 30 years’
experience in the housebuilding, infrastructure and energy
secrors He was Finance Director of Gallford Try plc from
2000 until 2012 and was also responsible for its PR/PPP
actvibies. He was previously Finance Divector of Try Group plc
from 1987, leading the company through its flotation in 1989
and subsequent merger with Galiford

Frank is currently the Senior Independent Director of
HICL Infrastructure Company Limited, Telford Hormes plk
and Eureceli plc Frank alsc acts as an adviser to certain
private businesses

Mike joined the Board in Novernber 2013 as a Non-Executive
Director and 1s Chairman of the Remunerauon Committee
He founded Barchester Healthcare 23 Zlears ago, following

a successiul career in adverusing Barchester s one of the
largest ndependent healthcare providers in the UK

Mike 1s chairman of Breezie and Qomph, vice charr of

Care England, the care sector trade association, and a
Non-Executive Director of Connect Physiotherapy He also
charrs Albion Care Communities, who are developing the
next genergtion of care homes, and 1s a director of Martha
Flora, the Durch dernentia speaalist

Committees
Chawrman of the Risk and Audtt Committee, and & member
af the Remuneration and Nemination Committees

k3 McCarthy & Stone pic

Committees
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a memiber
of the Risk and Audit and Nominaticn Committees
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Graphic removed
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Graphic removed

L |

John Carter
independent Non-Executive Director

Geeta joined the Brard m April 2015 as 3 Non-Exgcutve
Director She has more than 28 years’ expenence in the
housing sector and has recently served as Chief Executive
Officer of Thames Valley Housing Association Limited (TVHA?Y
Geeta joined TVHA N 2008 and in 2013 was awarded an OBE
far her achiavements to sooal housing

Geeta s a Director of Fizzy Enterprises (a joint venture

with Silver Arrow, 8 subsidrary of the Abu Dhab Investment
Authority} which she launched in 2012, as a branded
market rent proposition She has 23 years' experence

n non-executive roles and has served on the Boards of
twa housing organisations and nationat and local charites
Geeta moved to Metropolitan Housing Asscoaton as Chief
Executive Officer in Qctaber 2017,

John was apuuinwed ¢ Non-Executive Director ot McCarthy &
Stone n Septermber 2017 Hes currently the Chief Executive
of Travis Perkins plc, & position held since January 2014
Having joined T-avis Perkins in 1978, he was appointed 1o the
Boardin 2001 John has been the drving force behind

the growth of Travis Perkins plc, the No 1 supphier of building
matenals in the UK, and respensible for the growth of 20

UK and Eurgpean business brands serving retall and B2B
customers with wternational global sourang eperatvons

John managed and integrated a number of key strategic
acquisitions over the IEast 20 years, induding Keyline In 1999,
Wickes in 2005, and the BSS Group john was previously a
Trustee of the Briush Research Establishment for three years
from 2013 to 2016

Committees
Member of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration and
Nominatien Committees

Committees
None

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Repart and Accounts
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Corporate
Governance

[ ~] “l'am pleased to present the
Corporate Governance section
of our FY17 Annual Report. We
believe that a solid corporate
governance framework is
essential for upholding our
core business values and
delivering our strategy and it is
my responsibility to promote
high standards of governance
and business practice
throughout the organisation”

Graphic ramoved

L A

John White, Group Non-Executive Chairman
We continue to strive [0 ensure that our practices and

procedures are appropnate for 2 publicly isted company
and reflect our commitment to good corporate governance
and effective leadership

I this section of the Report we expiain how we manage our
business and promote high standards of governance acrass
the Group We describe our governance structure and explain
how we have apphed the main prinaiples of the UK Carporate
Governance Cade 2016 ('the Code’} and the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority (DTR Rules’) over the past year A copy of the Code
can be found on the Financial Reporting Counal’s websie
www.frc.org.uk

74 McCarthy & Stone plc
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Compliance with the Code

The Cempany has complied with the main princples

of the Code for FY17 The following paragraphs set out
how we have complied References are (o the orinciples
of the Code

A. Leadership

The role of the Board (A1)

The Board 15 responsible for operabonal control of the Group,
ncluding all strategic, financial, orgamsational, legat and
regulatory maiter s and the Directors meet regularly to enable
them to discharge their duties The Company Secretary (Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary) is responsible for
ensunng that Board procedures are followed and that
apolicable rules and regutarons are compled with [0 addition,
the Directors may take independent professional advice as
required

Tnere is 2 formal schedule of matters specfically reserved
for Board deusion wihich s kept under Tegular review

Matters reserved for the Board include:
Approval of the Group's objectives, values ang standards
Approval of the business medei and strategy

Oversight of the Group’s operatons (e ensure sound,
competent and prudent managerment

Approval of major changes to the Group's strugcture
and control

Approval of maior land acquisitions
tnternal controis and a souna system of #sk management

Approval of shareholder communications

In accordance with the Code, the Board has established three
formal Board Commitrees Risk and Audit, Remunerghion and

Nomination The membership of each of the Commiitees)sin
complance with the requirements of the Code and the terms

of reference of the Comnrmitiees are inciuded on our corporate
webstte

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deralls of the responsibilities of each of the Cammittees

and tharr actwibies duning the year are set out on the following
pages of this Report The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to each of the Committees

In addinon, the Board has established a Disclosure Committee,
whose role 1s to ensure timely and accurate disclosure of
information that we are required (¢ publish in accordance with
our legal and regulatory obligations 1t meets on an ad-hoc
basis and its membership 15 the Chief Executive Officer, the
Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Director
of Communications

The Board has established a sub-committee called the
Allotrment Cornrnittee, whase role 1s to approve the allotrment
and 1ssue of shares in the Cempany within the Imits
authorised by shareholders at each AGM The Aflotment
Commitiee, whase members are the Executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, meet on 2n ad-hac basis

The role of the Executive Leadership Team Is to support
the Chief Executive Officer iIn implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day operauans of the business

{t meets each month As weill as the Executive Leadership
Team, the ather members of the Executive Board are the
L.and & Pranring Director, the HR Director, the Director

of Cormmunications, the Group Marketing & Customer
Expernence Directar and the Group General Counsel &
Campany Secretary

The role of the Executive
Leadership Team is to support
the Chief Executive QOfficer in

implementing Group strategy
and managing the day-to-day
operations of the business

Decisions on nvestments and development activities are
made by the Group Investment Committee which meets
weekly and 1s charred by the Land & Planning Director, with
major investrient decisions beaing referred on to the Board
far final approval

The gevernance structure for the Group 1s set out on page 79
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Corporate Governance continued

Graphic ramoved

L _

Patrick Hole
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary

Patnck joined McCarthy & Stone in July 2014 Patnicks
responsible for the legal and company secretarial functions
of the Group He 15 a qualified solicitor with more than 20
years' post qualification experience Patrick was a partner
In 3 prvate practice for many years and also has a broad
range of in-house experience, including Ntenm rales

at both 0T 2 and Keepmoat

Committees
Member of the Disclosure Committee

During FY17 there were nine Board meetngs and one Strategy
Day The Directors' attendance at those meetings, as well as
the meeungs of the three main Board Commuttees, are shown
n the table below

Riskard

Audlt  Remuneration  Nomination
Dwvector’ Board  Commiee Committes  tommittee
Number of
meetings 9 3 3 1
John White 9/9 n/a 33 171
Clive Fenton 9/9 nia nfa 11
John Tonkiss UG nfa nfa nfa
Rowan Baker? W7 nfa n/a nfa
Geeta Nanda 89 3/3 /3 71
Frank Nelson 9/% 373 33 il
Mike Parsons 9/9 373 3/3 11
Nick Maddock* 2/2 nia nia nfa

1 Exsluges jobn (arrer who was appoinied pral year eod
Appantedto the Board on b January 20 7
3 Revwgnedonb|anuary 2017

~

76 McCarthy & Stone plc

Division of responsibilities {A2, A3)

The Board has adopted role profiles for the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer, which clearly set out therr distinct roles
and responsibiines

1, as Chairman, am responsibie for leadership of the Board
and for ensurtng that the strategic direction and objectives

of the Group are relevant to deliver sharehalder value and to
promote the long-term success of the Group | lead the Boarg
In its construcnve challenge of the Executive Leadership Team
and ensure that Board discussions are searching and forward-
thinking | am alsa responsibte for[Promotmg high standards
of corporate governance and good business practice

Clive Fenton, our Chief Executive Officer, 1s respansibie for the
day-to-day management of the operational actvities of the
Group and the development and mnovation of the Group's
business With the support of the Executive Leadership Team,
he implements the strategies and objectives agreed by the
Board o deliver operational performance and success

Non-Executive Directors (A4)

The Beard currently has four Non-Executive Directars -
Frank Nelson, Mike Parsons, Geeta Nanda and John Carter -
who have ail been appoinied during the past five years
Their previous experience of the construction ndustry,

the hausing sector or providing servces to the elderly

add valuable skills ang input to the Board

Frank Nalson 15 the Semior Independent Director

His responsibihties include the annual appraisal of my
performance He adds support te the Chair and deputises
for me in my absence and 1s available to communicate with
shareholders

B. Effectiveness

Board ition and indep (a1

The apponiment and reglacerment of the Caompany's Directors
15 governed by the Company's Articles of Assoaiation, the
Companies Act 2006 and the indwidual service contracts and
terms of appomtment of the Direclors The Articles permit 3
maximum of 12 Direciors

o

The Board currently comgrises the Chairman (wha was
wndependent on appointment), three Executive Directors
and four Non-Executve Directars Al of the Non-Executive
Directors are ingependent john Carter 15 considered to be
independent notwithstanding his directorship with Traws
Perkins plc, a suppler to the Group, as the level of business
between McCarthy & Stone plc ang Travis Perlans pic s not
deemed 1o be material Relevant safeguards are being put n
place to ensure that John will not influence any cansideration
of such business Short biographical details of each of the
Directors are set out on pages 701073
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Arits meeting In june 2017, the Nominaction Committee
considered the independence of the indvidfual Directors

on the Board a1 that stage and confirmed that there were ne
Independence 1ssues, notwithstanding the fact that two of the
Non-Executive Directors, Frank Nelson and Mike Parsons, had
been ncuded in the Cornpany’s Management Incentive Plan
which was put in place in 2013 and was wound up in November
2015 Ther parapation in the plan s a reflection of the
different ownership structure of the Company at that ume
Since Admission, the Non-Executive Directors have not

been included in any of the Group's share plans or bonus
arrangements John Carter was appointed after the year end
and his independence was reviewed gduring the Nominzton
Committee meeting on 8 Novemnber 2017

Appointments and commitment (B2, B3, B7)

The date of appointment of each of the Directors I1s set out on
page 8% - none of the Directors has served for more than six
years Nick Maddack, wha was Chuef Finanaal Officer, resigned
with effect from 6 January 2017 and Rowan Baker, who was
the Group Financiaf Controffer, was promaoted to the Board as
the new Chief Financial Officer on the seme date John Carter
was apponted ta the Board on 1 October 2017

As announced on 9 November 2017, Paul Lester will ba joining
the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman Designate
on 3 January 2018 and, subject to his election by shareholders,
will take over as Chairman from me at the conclusion of the
Company’s AGM on 24 January 2018

Appointments fall under the remit of the Nomination
Cornmittee, which ieads the process in selecting any new
Directors before makng reccmmendations ta the Board The
Nomination Committee s working with seruor management
to ensure that satsfactory succession pfans are 1n place

The Board is satisfied that each
of the Directors has committed
sufficient time and input during
the year to enable him/her to fulfil

his/her duties as evidenced by the
high attendance at all the Board
and relevant Committee meetings
throughout the year

The Directors' service contracts and letters of appoinmiment

set out the ume commitment expected to fulfil therr roles

The Board Is satisfied that each of the Directors has commitied
sufficient time and input durng the year to enable him/her

to fulfil russher duties as ewidenced by the high attendance at
all the Board and relevant Committee meetings thraughout
theyear

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Mon-Executive Directors' letters of appomtment are
for three-year terms, which can be renewed for a further
two three-year terms

In accordance with the Code, all of the Directors are required
1o seek re-election at each AGM The resolutions for the
re-election and election of the Board members will be
included in the separate Notice of AGM

Induction, development and support (B4, B5}

On joining the Board, each Director 1s provided with a full
introduction to the business In order o assist the Directors
in ther ongoing understanding of the Groyp, some of the
Board meenngs are held at the regional offices to provide

an opportunity for the Directors o meet local management
and to visit some of the Group's developments Papérs

are circulated 1n 3 urnely manner ta enable the Directors to
undertake full and detaied consideraten of the agenda items
in advance of the meeting and each of the Directors has access
to the services of the Comgany Secretary

In order to assist the Directors

in their ongoing understanding
of the Group, some of the Board
meetings are held at the regional

offices to provide an opportunity
for the Directors to meet local
management and to visit some
of the Group’s developments

Board evaluation {B6)

An evaluation of the performance of the Board, 1s
members and Committees was carried out durn

F¥17 by the Nomination Committee and details of the
internal evaluation process and findings are included in the
Nomination Cormmittee section on page 81 It s anticipated
that the evaluation during FY18 will be externally facilitated

C. Accountability

Reporting {C1)

The Staterment of Directors’ Responsibilities is on paﬁe 109
The wiability statement 1s on page 57 The report of the
independent audftor 1s on pages 112 to 117 The statement
on going concern 1s on page TO8 Detatls of the Board's
arrangements to ensure that the information presented in
this Report s far, balanced and understandable is set out
on page 109
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Corporate Governance continued

Risk management and internal controls (C2)

Details ofthe risk managemen: process and the prnapal fisks
facing the Group are set out on pages 54 10 57 The Board

15 vesponsible for the systern of snternal cantrals, which are
designed to manage the business nsks faced by the Group,
andior reviewing the effectiveniess of those controls Business
targets are set within appropriate iimeframes, polices,
procedures and control pracesses for managing the Group’s
Dusiness actvities have been put in place, ang key financial
risks are controlled through clearly laid down authorisation
levels and segregation of accounting duties

The Risk and Audit Committee,
together with the internal Audit
function, has identified the principal

risks facing the Group and has
established systems for evaluating
and managing those risks

The Risk and Aucit Cormmittee, together with the internal Audit
function, has identified the principal nisks faang the Group andg
has estabiished systems for evaluating and rnana%lng thase
nsks Thase systems have been in place for the whole of the
year under review and up to the date of this Report Further
nformation can be found on pages 54 to 57

Audit and Auditor {C3)
Detalls of the work of the Risk and Audit Cornmittee and the
auditor are set out on pages 82 to 85

D. Remuneration
Detalis of Executive Directors’ remuneration and the Group's
approach to remuneration policy are set out on pages 86 to 105

E. Relations with shareholders

Although most direct shareholder contact 1s by the Chief
Executve Officer and the Chief Finanaial Officer, feedback

1s communicated back 1o the other Direciers pnmarily through
reparts to the Board and copres of analysts’ presentations

All of the Directors whe were members af the Board at that
tme attended the AGM in January 2017 and it 1s anticipated
that all the current members of the Board will attend the
AGM n January 2018 and that the meeting will be organised
in compliance with the Code

On behatf of the Board

John White
Group Non:Executive Chairman

13 Novernber 2017
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Governance Structure and Delegation of Authority

The Beard of Directors
Chair: fohn White

The Board is ultimarely responsibie for all activiues of the Group It has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for
1ts attenuon and has delegated some of 1ts responsibilities to Commuttees of the Board In addipon, certain Executive
Committees have been established to aversee some of the operational activites of the Group All Committees report
back 1o the Group Boara either directly or indirectly via the Chief Executive Qrficer or the Chief Operating Officer

Principal Board Committees

Principal Executive Committees

Risk and Audit Cormnmittee

Chair: Frank Nelson

See pages 82 to 85 for areport from the
Risk and Audit Committee

|¢|

|<:I

Executive Leadership Team
Chair: Clive Fenton
Suppores the CEGQ in implementing Group

strategy and management of the actvities of
the Group

Remuneration Committee

Chair: Mike Parsons

See pages 86 to *05 for arepoit from the
Remuneration Commitree

Normination Committee

Chair: John White

See pages 80 and 81 for & report from the
Nomination Committee

Group Investment Committee
Chair: Gary Day

Respansible for reviewng and approving all
land acquisitions Major investment decisions
are referred up to the Group Beard

Disclosure Committee

Chair: Clive Fenton

Responsible for timely and accurate disclosure
of all information required Lo be disclosed to
meet its legal and regutatory obligations

Health & Safety Committee
Chair: John Tonkiss
Responsible for all aspects of health and safety

across the Group ncluding relevant policies
and pracedures and regulatory compliance

Allotment Committes

Chair: Clive Fenton

Responsible for the approvat of allotrments of
shares within the lmits approved by shareholders

CSR Committee

Chair: Gary Day

See pages 58 to 67 for a report from the
CSR Commutree

MecCarthy & Stone plc Annuai Report and Accounts
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Nomination
Committee Report
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“Maintaining the right balance
of skills and knowledge is key to
achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives. One of the main
activities during the year was
the selection and appointment
of a new Chief Financial Officer”

L _

John White, Nominanon Committee Chairman .
| am pleased to present the Nomination Committee’s

report for FY17

Membership and tenure
Members of the Committee are appoinied by the Board
The members of the Committee during FY17 were

* John White (Chairman}
* Clive Fenton

* Frank Nelson

« Geeta Nanda {sppointed on 24 January 2017)
* Mike Parsons

There was one formal meeting of the Comrrittee during
the year which all the members of the Committee attended
Twao further meetings have been held since the year end

Responsibilities and terms of reference

The Nomination Committee’s key duties are 1o review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and its Committees,
ensurng that the skills and expenence of the Board remains
appropriate and balanced, to recommend appointments and
re-elections to the Board, succession planring for the Directors
and semor management, and the annual evaluation process

The terms of referance, which are available on our website,

were adopted with effect from 11 November 2015

" McCarthy & Stone pfc
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Activities during FY17

Ore of the main actraties during the year was the selection
and appaintrment of a new Chief Ainancial Officer, following
the announcement In October 2016 of Nick Maddock's
mtention o resign The Commuttee aporoved the process
to find his replacement with consideration being gven
bath internal and external candidates Russell Reynoids, an
ndependent external search agency, was appointed to run
the process on behalf of the Group Foilowing condusion of
that process, the Committee recommended Rowan Baker as
the preferred cardidate to the Board, which subseguently
approved her appointment

During the year the Committee also carried out the annual
evaluation process This was done iternally and it s
antiapated that external facilitators will be used to assist
the process in FY18

The Committee also reviewed the succession planning,
especally at the main Board and executive and senior
managemerit levels The Group's Equality and Diversity policy
and the Committee’s terms of reference wei e also reviewed

Evaluation process and results

The Commiitee carred out a thorough, In-house evaluation
of the Board and each of the Risk and Audit, Remuneration
and Nominauon Committees, as well as the performance
of each of the Directars This was carned out by way of 2
guestrannaire as well as one-to-one meetings between

tne Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors on the
performance of the indwiduat Directars The review of the
Charman’s performance was led by the Senior independant
Director The effectiveness of the Board was assessed ir
respect of its structure, organisation, reporting and
commJmications Directors were also invited 1o make
recommendanions on how the performance and operation
of the Board could be improved

The Chairman was sausfied with the performance end
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees One of the
areas highlighted for improvement refated to communication
with regional and senior managerment As 3 rasulf, more Board
meetings will be held at the Group's regional offices and the
rumber and frequency of presentatrons from regional
management and function heads will be increased Another
area that was highlighted was the need to focus more closely
on succassion planning

Board compaosition and succession planning
The current composruion of the Board 1s set out In the
table below Further details are on pages 70t 73

Date of appaintment

Director Role tothe Board

John White Chairrman 23 September 2013
Clive Fenton  Chief Executive Officer 17 February 2014
JehnTonkiss  Chief Operating Officer 5 Novemnber 2015
Rowan Baker  Chief Financial Officer 6 January 2017
Mike Parsons  Non-Executive Director 4 November 2013
Frank Nelson  Non-Executive Director 18 November 2013
GeetaNanda Non-Executive Director 1 April 2015

John Carter Non-Executive Director 1 October 2017

Although the Board has been compietely refreshed in the past
five years, the Board evaluation process dentified that the
composition should be kept under review by the Committee in

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

order to ensure that the mix and experience remains relevant
to our business Following the Board evaiuation process, the
Commmittee cammenced the process to appoint two additional
Non-Executive Directors ta strengthen the current mix

of skills and experience In June 2017 a beauty parade af three
firms was held 1o assist with the recruitment process Zygas,

a firm of Independent advisers, was selected, subject to the
Group retaiming the right (o Introduce candidates directly
Foliowing year end, fohn Carter was introduced and brought
forward for consideration by the Nomination Committee His
candidature was recommended to the Board, who approved
his appantment in October fohn brisgs with hem strong
industry experence, which wili help to strengthen the Board

As announced on 9 Novemnber 2017, Paul Lester will be
Joining the Board as a Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Designate on 3 January 2018 and, subject to his etection by
shareholders, will take over as Chairman from me when | step
down at the conclusion of the Company’s next AGM tn January
2018 The Commitee undertook a search to identify a sutable
candidate for the role of Chairrnan The Company did not
Instruct an external search agency or use open advertising
for the search, given the strength of potenttal internal and
external candidates who had been dentfied for the role

The Committee cancluded that, after interviewang a sharthst
of three candidates, Paul Lester was the most appropriate
candidate for the role 1 did not charr or attend any meetings
of the Committee which refated 1o the appomtment of my
successor

The Group is conunuing 10 develop succession plans for
senigr and executive management, which are reviewed and
monitored by the Cormmittee

Retirernent and re-election of Directors

In accordance with our Articles of Association and as a
FTSE 250 cormpany, all of our Directors are required to seek
annual re-election by our sharehalders All the Directors
who saught re-election at last year's AGM were re-elected

As part of s evaluation process, the Committee reviewed the
performance of each of the Directors duning the past year and
has recommended that all those Directars wishing to continue
to stand should seek re-election at the 2018 AGM They
indnadually and as a Group continue to provide invaluable
experience, challenge and contribution to the leagersiip of
the Group John Carter and Paul Lester will also seek election
at the 2018 AGM

Diversity

The Group has an Equalty and Oiversity Policy, which commits
us ta zero tolerance of unlawful discrimnation and encourages
diversity 1n our werkforce The Committee reviewed the Policy
durmng the year and will continue to keep this under review to
ansure that it remains appropriate for the business

Although the Group has not set specific gender targets,

as we believe that appaintments should be based cn mertt,
we support the principle of diversity, ret just at Board level
but throughout the Group At year end we had two femaie
members of the Board {representing 28 6%} and 66 6% of our
total workforce were female Further breakdown 15 pravided
on page 61

John White
Nomination Committee Chairman

13 Novernber 2017

McCarthy & Stene plc Annual Report and Accounts [ 1]



Risk and Audit
Committee Report

[ 1

Graphic removed

L

Frank Nelson, Risk and Audit Comemittee Chairman
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“The key responsibilities of
the Risk and Audit Committee
are to review the integrity of
the Group's annual and half
year financial statements.
The Committee is confident ;
that it has carried out its

duties in the year under

review effectively and to

a high standard”

The purpose of this report is to describe how the Cammittee
has carried out its responsibiities during the year

In summary, the key responsibiliues of the Risk and Audit
Commiitee are to review the integrity of the Group's annual
and half year financial statements and the relationship with
the external auditor, to monitor our internal controls and risk
management systems and our Ikernal sudit activities, and
to provide independent oversight of our business canduct,
including our whistleblowng and ant-bribery procedures

Membership and tenure

There has not been any change to the members of the Risk and
Audit Committee during the financial year and up to the date of
this report The members of the Committee are

» Frank Nelson (Chairman of the Committee) Semor
Independent Director

« Mike Parsons, Independent Non-Executive Director

» Geeta Nanda, independent Non-Executive Director
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I was previously Finance Director of Galiford Try plc, the
FTSE 250 housebwlding and construction group, for 25
years prior 1o joining McCarthy & Stone My extensive
financal experience, particularly in the housebuwlding and
construction sector; have proved invaluable n chairing
our Risk and Audit Commities

The Comnmittee as a whole has competence relevant to

our business As stared above, | have spent most of my
career in the housebuilding sector, Geeta Nanda has

more than 28 years' experience in the housing sector and
maore than 23 years' experience as a Non-Executive Director
and Mike Parsons has spent the last 23 years working with
businesses providing care and support for elderly peaple

Further detalls of the background and expenence of the
Committee members are set out on pages 700 73

Respoensibilities and terms of reference
The key responsibitiies of the Committee are ro

Monitor the integrity of the financial statements
and any other formal announcements relating
to the Group's financal position and performance

Assess whether management has made approprigte
estimates and judgements ang te provide advice to
the Board on whether the Annual Report and Financial
Staternents are farr, balanced and understandable

.

Keep under review, and monitor the effectiveness of, the
Group's internal contrels and risk management systems

Monsor and review the effectiveness of the nisk and
internal audit function

Monitor and review the effectrveness of the services of
the external audnor, induding negotiauon of the audit fee

Develep and impiement the policy on the supply of
non-audit services by the external auditor

Rewtew the adequacy and secunity of the Group's
procedures on whistleblowing, anu-bnbery and
corrupiran and ant-money laundening

The Commutiee has formal terms of : eference which are
reviewed annually to ensure they remain appropriate No
changes were made to the terms of reference during the
year. A copy of the full terms of reference can be viewed
on our website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance
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Activities during FY17

There were three Risk and Audit Committee meetings durnng
the finanaial year, orgamised to e in with the annual audit
cycle The tatle on page 76 sets out attendance of the
Committee mermbers at those meetings N accordance wath
the Comimittee’s terms of reference, meetings ¢an also be
attended, by Invitztion, by other Directors and members of
the internat audit and external audit teams, when deemed
appropriate The Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Risk
and Internal Audit, the Group Financial Controlier and the
external audit partner attended all three meenings during the
year The members of the Committee meet with the external
auditer without Executive Directors or management at every
meeting attended by the external auditor

During FY17 the key areas of focus for the Committee were
as follows

s In November 2016 we reviewed the FY15 financial
statements and the draft Annual Report We discussed
the audit with Delonte, our external auditor, and reviewed
1tS report and s audit work The Commutiee also
considered the going concern and viability statements
of the Group We also considered end concluded that the
F¥16 Annual Report and Finanaal Statements gave a farr,
balanced and understandabie view of the Group's
performance and position

In February 2017 we reviewed the proposed audit fees
and the scope of the external audit in relation to the
FY17 financial statements

In Apri 2017 we reviewed the FY17 half year results,
incluging the review undertaken by the exiernai audror,
before recormmending that the half year results
announcement be approved by the Board

At each meeting we received reports from the Internal
Audit team on Group risks and risk managerment, and

at the Novernber 2016 and Aprd 2017 meetings reviewed
the Group risk heat map

At each meeting we also recerved reports on the internal
audit programme and findings of internal audits carned
cut during the year

We undertock our annual review of the Group’s systems
of internat cantrols We continue to monitor their
effectiveness throughout the year

At each meeting we recewved reports on the effectiveness
of aur whistleblowing and anti-bnbery and corruption
procedures and were adwised f any notifications had
been raised under those policies

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Raport and Accounts



Risk and Audit Committee Report continued

During the year we met with the “inancal Reportng
Courcl {FRCywhick conducted its review of the guaiity
of Desoitte LLP's audht procedures applied during the
FY16 audr

Significant financial reporting issues

significant financial reporting 1ssues, jJudgements and areas
of estimation uncertainty reviewed by the Committee during
FY17 were

Shared equity receivables

The Committee reviewed the accounting treatment of future
recevables gue under the shared equity schemes that have
been used over the years by the Group The assumptions
used I estmaning the value of the future recenvables are
reviewed haif yearly and relate to the date of the anucipated
fuaure recespt, bouse price nflabion, the discount rate and
the new buid premium

Cost capitalisation of overheods

The Cammittee received a prapesal from management
analysing the spilt of overhead costs relating to design,
planning, commeraal, construction, procurement and
healtn and safety betwean those that could be atuributed
1o the cost g the developments Lo Inventory and those
that relate to general business overheads to expenses
The assumptions are reviewed annually with the funcion
heads before being propused to the Committee

Risk management and internal controls
Our Risk and Internal Audit functior was established in the
sirmmer of 2014 with the following key areas of respansibility

= The design and implementation of 3 rabust risk
managernent framewaork across the Group 1o identify,
mMoniEor and manage key business risks and ro establish
a risk appette for each key risk beyond which correcuve
action s required

The development of an assurance programme to ascertain
whether the controls around our key business risks are
designed and operating effectively

Details of how the Group manages the risk process are
sei out on pages 54 and 55 The Director of Risk and
Internal Audit reports at each Commitiee Mmeeting on
any changes o the msks faced by the business and any
areas for improvement

An annua) nternal audie plan, focusing on the key risks to the
business, Is reviewed and agreed by the Commuttee Its cycle
15 driven primartly Dy risks idennfied in the nisk heat map A
separate commergial internal audit plan has been putin place
speciically to investigate the management of our construction
activities Aseparate sales nternal audit pian was estabiished
and completed in 2017 to specifically focus on the sales
process of core stock

“ MeCarthy & Stone plc

Findings from mternaf audits and recommended
improvernents are reparted 1o the Commuttee |regularly meet
with the Director of Risk and Internal Audst Other members of
the Commuttee and the Board will also meet with the Director
of Risk and incernal Audit periodically during the year

The Board of Directors recognises 1ts overall respansibility
for the Group's system of internal controls and for manitoring
1ts effectiveness There s an gngoing process for identifyng,
evaluating and managing sigruficant nsks However, n
reviewing the effectiveness of internal contrals, any internal
control system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assuUrance aganst materisl misstaterment or Joss

The Board, on the recommendation of the Risk and Audit
Committee, has remained sansfied that the systemn of internal
controls continued to be effective In idenufying, assessing and
ranking the varous nisks facing the Group, and in monitonng
and reporting progress in mitigating the potential mpact on
the business Systems have been in piace for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and finangial Statements The Board has approved the
staternent of the Princpal Risks and Uncertaimties set out on
pages 56 and 57 of this Annual Repart

The Board of Directors recoghises
its overall responsibility for the
Group's system of internal controls

and for monitoring its effectiveness.
There is an ongaing process for
identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks

External auditor
The Commuttee s respansible for the appaintment of the
external auditor, 1ts fee and the scope of the annual audit.

Auditor independence and performance

Deloitte LLP has been our external auditor since FY0S,

the first audit of the Company We have had the same Audit
Partner since 2013 but the Audic Director has changed dunng
that penod In line with rotation guidelinas a new Audit Partner
will lead the FY18 audit The next audit tender will take place
no later than the summer of 2018

The performance, effectiveness and independenice of the
auditor and the work it performs are reviewed annually
following completion of the external audit Delonte are
required to disclose any significant facts and matters that
rnay reasonably wnpact ot their ndependence or on the
objectivity of the lead partner and the audit teamn in addition,
the Committee considers and approves all the fees that the
Group pays for audit, audit-refated and nan-audit services
from Deloitte Detals of the Company's policy on non-audi;
services are detaled in the following section That policy was



drafted in line with the reguirements of the EU Audit Directive
(2014/56/EU) and Audit Regulation (537/2014) which came
into force in the UK on 17 June 2016

The Audrt Committee assessed the performance of the
external auditor and the effectiveness of the external audit
for FY17 In coming 1o ts conclusion the Audit Committee
reviewed amongst other matters

+ Feedback on the effectiveness and verformance of the
external gudit from Group, regional management and
the Director of Risk and Internal Audit who were closely
nvolved .n both the balfyear and full year reparting process

Delotte LLP's fulfilment of the agreed audit plan for FY17

Reparts mighlighting the material issues and accounting
judgements that arase during The conduct of the audit

+ Deloitte LLP's objectivity and indeperdence durng
the process

The Aud:t Commitiee concluded that the audit process as
a whole had been conducted robustly and that the team
selected to undertake the audit had dane so thoroughty
and professionally Delaitte LLP's performance as audrtor
ta the Carnpany duiing FY17 was therefore considered 10
be satisfactory

Buring the year, the FRC also undertook a review of certam
aspects of Delotte LLP's audit of McCarthy & Stone plc for
the year ended 31 August 2016 We nave reviewed the =RC's
findings in assessing the performance and effectiveness

of Celoitte LLP's audit work

Tahing im0 account our and the FRCs findings in relation to
the effectiveness of the audit process and in relation to the
independence of our external auditor, tne Committee 1s
sausfied that Deloitre LLP'S audit continues Lo be effective and
ndependent As a resuk, the Commmttee has recommended
o the Board that Deloitte be propased for reappointment at
the 2018 AGM

The Comnpany has comphed throughout the reporting year
with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services far Large
Companies Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processas and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014

Policy on non-audit services

[t1s the Group's practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit
work out to tender The Board only appoints Delottte LLP

to provide non-audit services if the Directors have sausfied
themselves that the auditor's objectivity and independence
have not been compromised A palicy on non-audit services
has been approved by the Committee, which incorporates
the provisions aof the EU audit reform

The external auditor s apponted to provide audit and
audit-related services, nduding annual audit of the Group,
Farent Campany and non-dormant subsidiary financial
statements as wef as the half year review

FINAMCIAL STATFMENTS
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The external auditor 1s prohibited from prowiding services
which involve

= Bookkeeping and other services relating to accountng
records and corporate financial statements

Design and implementarion of financial
information sysiems.

Any valuation that could have 2 matenal effect on
the financial statements

Tax services that depend on a particular accounting
treatiment,

Recruiing executives or proviging advice on
remuneraton packages

Actuaria! services

Management functions

Internal audit services

+ Legal, broker, iInvestment adviser or nvesiment
banking services

Corporate finance or ransaction services where the
outcome I1s dependent on accounting treatment, or on

a conungent fee basis If matenal to the audit firm, or the
outcome involves a future or contemporary audit judgement
relaung to a maternial balance In the financizi staternents

Any other work that 1s profubited by UK ethical guidance

The external auditor may be selected to provide any

other services that do not fall within audit and audd-related
services or that are not prohibited, subject to a cornpetitive
selection process

Fees payable to Deloicte in FY17 1n relation to the mtenm
review, year end audit and statutary audits of subsidaries are
detaled i note 6 tothe consohdated financial stacements
There were no nen-audit fees paid guring the year

Whistleblowing, fraud and anti-bribery and corruption
During the year, the Commitiee receved regular updates from
the Company Secretary an compliance with the policies across
the business on whistleblowing, ant-bribery and carruption,
fraud and anti-money lzundering In agdition, the Committee
and the Board reviewed! and approved the Group’s new
conficts of Interest pohcy

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman

i3 November 2017
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Directors' Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee Chairman’s Annual Statement
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Mike Parsons, Remuneraton Committee Charrman
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“As Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee,

| am pleased to present,

on behalf of the Board, our
Directors’ Remuneration
Report. This report lays

out the core elements of our
policy and its implementation
during FY17”

The Annual Report on Rermuneratian 1s set out on

pages 94 to 105 It details decisions and actions taken by

the Remuneration Commuttee based on the performance

of the Group and the Execunive Directars, the changin,
corporate governance landscape and in the context of pay

in the Group as a whole The Annuat Report on Remuneraton
15 subect to an annual advisary vote and 2 resolution will be
put to shareholders at the AGM in January 2018 for its
approval The wording of the resolution s set out Inthe
separate Notice of AGM
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Remuneration policy

In creating our remuneration policy [ast year, our objective
was to create a policy which supports the Graup's strategr

to create an efficient and scalable business capable of building
and sellng more than 3,000 units per annum (e enable us
target tap-guartile sector margins and returns on caputal over
the mediurm term

Our remuneration pelicy was appraved by sharehoiders

at our AGM on 25 January 2017, receiving over 92 8% of the
voles hat were cast The policy 1s intended to apply for up
to three years and is therefare designed to incentivise and
mouvate the leadership team to mplement the Company's
strategic goals and alsc to ensure they are aligned with
shareholder expectations This has been 2 guiding principle
for the Committee

We are not proposing any changes te the remuneration policy
far the forthcaming year A surmmary of our Remunerat:on
Palicy is included at the end of this Remuneration Report on
pages 101 to 104, while the full text of the Remunerauon Policy
can be feund on pages 63 to 74 of our FY16 Annual Report
The FY16 Annual Report can be downloaded from

our website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Remuneration Committee

There has not been any change to the membership of the
Comrmittee during the year and up to the date of this report.
The members are all of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Board, namely

* Mike Parsons {Chatrman of the Committee, and
Independent Non-Executive Director)

= Geeta Nanda (Independent Non-Executive Dirertor)

* Frank Nelson {Senicr independertt Director)

= John White [Non-Executive Drector, and Chairman
of the Board)

Other indwnduals, nduding the Chief Executive Officer and
external advisers, may be invited to attend meetings of the
Committee The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to
the Committae

As well as the Group's rermuneration policy, the Remuneration
Comrmattes’s other mam respensibiles include the
remuneration and terms of engagement of Executive Direclors
and the Chairman, averseeing any major changes to the
Group’s employee benefit structures; approval of any
performance-related schemes, share incentive schemes

and deferred bonus arrangerments The Committee provides

a report to the Board onits activinies and decisions

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Major remuneration events during FY17:

« Continued development of our Board
Nick Maddodk resigned as Chief Financial Officer on
1 October 2016 and stepped down from the Board
with effect from 6 january 2017 Rowan Baker, who was
previously the Group Financial Contrelier, was promoted
to the rofe of Chief Financial Gfficer and joined the Board on
6 January 2017 1 would ke to welcome Rowan to the Board
and once agan thank Nick for his service

The Committee aporoved the terminaton arrangements for
Nick and the new terms for Rowan Nick did not receive any
ermnatton payments, he was not ebgible for the bonus
plan in respect of FY16 or FY17 and his LTIF awards lapsed
on tis departure

When Rowan was apponted 1o the Board, her salary

was sef at £225,000 - a conservative level, significantly below
that of her predecessor with the intantion that it would be
kept under review and over time based on performance
would be brought up to a market level Based on her strong
performance and developrent in the role to date and her
crivical rale in delivering the strategy of the business the
Committee deterrmined to increase her salary to £285,000
effective 1 September 2017, the next planned review will be
in Novernber 2018 The Committee notes that the increased
satary remains below the lower quarile of the FTSE 250 and
housebulder peers (the two external benchmarks the
Commitiee uses as a guidelne when setting pay for
executives)

On her gppeiniment to the rofe, Rowan's bonus apporturity
was set ol 100% of salary I cash, recognising that FY17 was
a transitory year, rather than the policy level for Executive
Directors of 150% of satary For FY18, Rowan’s bonus
opportunity will be increased to 150% of salary with
one-thurd deferral in kne with the other Executive Directors
Rawan's full remuneration terms are set gut in the fallowing
Annual Report on Remuneration

The Cammittee proposes to increase john Tonkiss' salary oy
109 from £300,000 to £330,000 effecove 1 November 2017,
The proposed increase recognises his strong performance
and the increased responsibility following his appainiment
te the role of Chief Operating Officer in June 2017

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report and Accounts 7



Directors' Remuneration Report continued

-

The Committee s mindful of the sensitmity to large
Increases in Gase pay levels ano considered s proposed
approach carefully in this context The intenuon of the
salary increase is to bring the COO and CFO's salaries 1o
alevel that the Commuttee considers appropriate given
therr performance and critical importance o the business
The Carnmitiee will continue w0 mannor Executive Diector
salaries and will consider whether further above average
employee Increases are required

Chve Fenton, our CEG, will receve an increase of 3 26b:in
hine with the increase for the average employee population

Determination of the FY17 bonus payments

The Group completed Ks first full year of traging since
joining the Main Market in Novemnber 2015 and the
Executive Directers and the broader executive team have
delivered performance in ine with market expectations
despite continued economic uncertainty following the
outcome of the EU referendurn in 2016

The Group delivered a 4% mncrease in revenue 1o £660 9m
(FY16 £6359m), although underlying operating profit
dacreased by 10% (0 £96 Zm (F¥16 £107 2m} at a gross
profit margin of 20% (FY16 21%), reflectng the mix afunits
sold, increased costs and our continued INvestment in
regional operational infrastructure o support our growth
strategy As aresult, the threshold of £108 6m operating
profit (equating to 70% of the total bonus opportunity)
was not achieved and no bonus was swarded against

this measure

During the year the Group invested inlsnd and build

and added a further 75 figh-quality sites with attractve
embedded margins nto the land bank (FY16 65), equivalent
to ¢ 3,164 additonal plots (FY16 ¢ 2,614) As a result, the
honus target for land exchanges of 3,133 plots was shghtly
exceeded resulting 1n 55% of this eiement of the bonus
{accounting for 10% of the total bonus opportunity)

being earned

The Group continued to maintan a robust financal position
with a net cash balance of £30.7m (FY16 £52 8m) ai the year
end Strong cash generation resulted in a positive cash
inflow of £49 2m excluding the balance sheet impact of

the In-house part-exchange mitiative, against a target of
£273m The Exacutive Directors were therefore awarded
82% of the bonus (accounung for 10% of the total bonus
opportumty) in relaban to this measure

McCarthy & Stone plc

The continued focus on homeowner
satisfaction has led to us in the

twelfth consecutive year being
awarded the Five Star rating for
customer satisfaction by the HBF

The continued focus on homeawner sausfaction has led
to us i the twelfth consecutive year being awarded the
Five Star rating for customer satisfaction by the HBF This
sustaned recognition by our customers of the quahty

of product we delwer resulted in achievement of the
customer sanhsfaction target of 93% fwe achieved 93 4%)
and as a result 60% of the bonus in relation ta this element
(which accounts for 10% of the totak benus opportunty)
was earned

The Group continued to maintain a
rebust financial position with a net

cash balance of £30.7m at the year
end. Strong cash generation resulted
in a positive cash inflow of £49.2m

tn respect of Y17, the bonus for the Executive Directors,
was therefore 19 7% of the maximum opportunity This
equates to 29 6% of salary for the CEC and COQ and

19 7% of salary for the CFQO The Commitree believes that
these pay-outs reflect the performance of the Group over
the year

Remuneration approach for FY1a

Nan-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees bave not been increased
since Novernper 2015 I has been agreed that the Non-
Executive Directors will recerve a 3% increase in thewr basic
fees with effect from £¥18 The Chairrnan, john White, has
wanved his increase There will not be any change to the
tevel of additicnal fees paid for the Senior Independent
Birector or for Commiitee membership

FY18 bonus objectives
The annual bonus plan measuras and their weightings for
FY18 will be

» Group profit before tax (70%)
*  Group full year cash flow (T0%)

» Group customer satisfaction (10%)
¢ Group land exchanges (10%)
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Changes to the FY18 Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP}

The Commitiee reviewed the appropriateness of the LTIP
arrangements and the associated performance targets

As g result of this review, the Remuneration Comnitee
proposes to maintan the current guantum of 1509% of salary
for the Executive Directors The apgproved policy allows for, but
does not require, an addinonail post-vesting holding period

to apply to the awards Whilst this provision was niot used for
previous awards, the Committee recogrises the imgortance of
Inking executive pay to long-term and sustained sharehalder
value and therefare has decided te add a two-year holding
period for FYi8 awards Dunng the holding period, executives
will not be allowed to sell vested shares (other than {or tax
purposes), meaning the overall tme horizon of the FY18
awards will be five years This approach s in line wth the
expectation/preferences of many of aur shareholders and
additionatly reflects the Government's response to the green
paper on corporate governance and executive pay

The Remuneration Commuttee decded to retain the

existng performance measures (earnings per share, return
on capital employed and taotal sharehalder return), wihich
focus executives on maximising returns ta shareholders
through growth i sustainable earnings and efficent capial
management Irline with the approved policy and prévious
awards as detaled on page 91 and 92, threshold performance
will resuit in 25% vesting aganst each element, with 100%
vesting ar or above the maximum performance target
However, the Committee proposes te amend the weightings
and targets for the FY18 awards, as detailed on page 92 The
changes we are proposing do not reguire formal sharehclder
approval However, we believe that itis imporiant to seek Uhe
views of our shareholders Prior to the publication of our
Annual Report we consulted with our major shareholders and
would like ta thank them for their posiive engagement dunng
the process which helped shape these changes

No ather changes are propased In respect of the remuneraticn
elements in FY18

Qur goal has been to be thoughtful and dear in the layout of
this report and | ook forward to your support anthe
resolubion

twelcome any feedback from the Company's shareholders

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 November 2017 )
W "M/‘”i_»-
Notes

Thes Report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 81w The Large

and Mediume-sized Companies and Groups {Accounis and ReporLs) Regulations

2008 as amended In 2013, the provisions of tne UK Corporate Governaree Code

and the Listing Rules The Report consists of two sections

- The Annuai Statement by the Remuneratian Committee Chairman and
associsted ‘At a glance section

¢+ Tre Annual Repnrt an Remuperaron wh ch se*s out paymeants made
10 The Jrectars and detaik the | ok betweer Gioup par‘armence and
remunereion or FY1/

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANC AL STATEMENTS
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

Ataglance

introduction
In this sectton, we report on the remuner ation outcames for FY17, which have been implemented in accordance with our
remuneration policy

Our remuneration policy was designed to align remuneratior: of our Executive Directors with Group strategy and ta drive
contuinued success withie 3 remuneration framework that meets the shareholder and governance expectations of 3 FTSE
250 company The Remureration Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM in January 2017 and 1s set out in full
on pages 63 to 74 of cur FY16 Annual Report

Qur core principles of remnuneratian are

+ Toensure (op executives are attracted, retained and motivated to drive the Company forward
» Toncentivise management in creating an efficent and scalable business 1o support the graowth strategy
= To delver long-term sustainable value to shareholders

FY17 autcomes
The outcomes outlined in this section reftect the remuneration and perforrmance measures and targets in place durng Fy17
ard therr level of satisfaction These were i ine with the Remuneration Policy approved last year

The table below shows the total remuneration paid or payabile to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY17
These amounts include the bonus amounts payable as detatled 1 the following table

Total Remuneration for our Executive Directors FY17 Fri6
Clwve Fentoan - CEQ £753,169 £628,024
John Tonkiss - COO £462,231 £324,617
Rowan Baker - CFC! £223,594 nia
Nick Maddock - forrmer CFO? £133,702 £364,933

1 Rawvdt1 Baker berare an Sxgoul ve Dvortor or 6znuary 201/
2 NickMaddock rewigned rom tre Boara with ¢ Yect fromr @ |anuary 2017

Annual bonus outcomes:

The strategy and KPis of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there 1s alignment between performance and reward The
erformance measures used durning the year were (a} Group operaung profic (70%), {b) Group full year cash flow (109%), {c) Group

and exchanges (10%), and (¢) Group custemer satisfaction (10%)

The table below shows the tatal bonus payable to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY17 outcomes Further detatls
of how the performance measures for our annual bonus plan and LTIP 2lign 1o our strategy are outlined on page 63 of the FY16
Annual Report

Annual benus outcomes for gur Executve Diréctors FY17 Ma
Clive Fenton - CEQ £143,412 £61,750
John Tonkiss - COO £38,800 £36,400
Rowan Baker - CFQ? £29,631 n/a

Nick Maddock - former CFC? - -

i Rowvain Baker became an cxecutive Directar o 6 Jamuary 2017
7 Nics Maddock resigned [-om the Boarc with e™ect lrare G January 701/

Equity exposure of the Board

The Executive Directors are required to build up over a five-year period, and then subsequently hold, a shareholding equivalent ta
200% of therr hase sakary As a result of the IPO in Navernber 2815, Clive Fenton and fohn Torkiss have significant shareholoings in
the Company, providing them with a matenial stake in the business Rawan Baker, who was appointed to the Board on 6 Januar
2017, has not yet met her shareholding requirement The table below shows therr interest in the Company as a percentage of their
salary as at 31 August 2017

Clrve Fenton John Tonkiss Rowisn Baker
Shareholding requirement 200% 200% 200%
Value of benefinally owned shares 564% 319% 3%
Value of/gain on interests over shares (i.e. unvested/urexerased awards) 255% 253% 132%

The table on page 97 shows the interests of each Executive Director i the shares of the Company at year end
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implementation of the Remuneration Policy in FY18
For F¥18, the proposed remuneration will pe as 5et out below This is in accordance with our remuneraton policy

Base salary

For FY18, the base salaries for the Executive Directors will be

Clve Fentan £500,000 (3 2% increase with effect from 1 November 2017)
John Tonkiss £330,000 {13 0% increase with effect from 1 November 2017)
Rowan Baker £285.000 (26 7% mncrease with effect from 1 September 2017)

The Committee has increased john's saiary by 10% from £300,000 ta £330,000 effective
1 November 2077 to recogrise his strong perfarmance and the increased respensibility following
his appointment to the role of Chief Cperating Officer in June 2017

Rowan was promuoted ta the Board w1 January 2017 on a salary below the targeted policy level The
Committee has increased Rowan's salary from £225,000 to £285,000 effective from 1 September
2047 1o recogmse her sirong performance and developmentin the role and her crincal role m
delivering the Group's strategy. In accordance with our remuneration pelicy, the Committee has
flexibility to increase Rowan's salary from time Lo time as she gains experience in her role The
Commuttee has therefore agreed the above increase to take effect from 1 September 2017 and will
keep her salary under review

Pension

The maximum contribution into the defined contribution plan or a szlary supplement
in lieu of pension will be 20% of gross base saiary

Benefits

Standard benefits will be provided including private medical insurance, fe insurance
and a car or car alowance

Annual Bonus Plan ('ABP*)

Cash and deferred shares

Far FY18 the maximum honus opportunity is 150% of salary.

The performance conditions and thewr weightings for the Fy18 annual benus are as foilows:

* Group profit before tax (70%)

= Group full year cash flow (10%)

* Group customer satsfactian {10%)
» Group fand exchanges (10%)

One-third of any bonus earned will ke in the form of deferred shares, which will be
deferred for three years.

The prease defails of the targets themselves are deemed to be commercially sensiive
as they relate to the current financial year. The Committee therefore does not consiger
It appropriate to disclose annual bonus targets during the year. However, details of
the performance targets will be disclosed on a retrospective basis in next year's
Remuneration Report.

The Annual Sonus Plar {ABP') cortains clawback and malus provisions.

Long Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP}

The perfermance conditions for the FY18 LTIP awards are earrungs per share (EPS7, return on
capital employed (ROCE') and relatve total sharehelder return (T5R'} against the comparator
housing group and FTSE 250 {exct Financial Services and investment trusts). Aflthree measures
are assessed over a three-year performance period.,

For the achievement of threshold performance, 25% of the element wilt vest with straight-line
vesting in between to maximum performance, The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions,
Please see the fuft Remuneration Policy as set out on pages 63 to 74 in our FY16 Annual Report for

further details.

In FY18 an LTIP award up to a masimum of 150% of salary wiil be awarded to the Executive
Directers, As stated m the Chairman’s letter, the FY18 LTIP wiil have a two-year post vesting
holding pericd duning which executives cannot sell vested shares other than for tax purposes
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Directors' Remuneration Report continued

FY1BLTtP targets

The previous LTIP performance measures and targets were set in ine with market practice,
investor expectations and the mediurn-term business plan following the IPO In hight of the current
economic and poitical uncertainty, the Remuneration Commuttee concluded that a review of the
current structure was appropriate from a business perspective and necessary i order to mamtam
the incentive effect of LTIP awards and hence motivate and retain the Executive Directors and

other senior executives aver the near future

The Remuneration Committee decided to retain the existing performance measures ('EPS', ‘TSR’
and 'ROCE"), which focus executives on maximising returns to shareholders through growth in
sustainable earnings and efficient capital management In ine with the approved policy and
previcus awards, threshold performance will result in 25% vesting against each element, with
100% vesting at or above the maximum perfermance target However, the Committee proposes
te amend the weightings and targets for the FY18 awards,

The FY18 LTIP proposed performance measures, weightings and targets are outlined in the table
below alongside those operated in respect of the previous LTIP award in FY17,

Perfermance measures

FY17 weightings and targets

FY18weghtings and targets

Earmings Per Share ('EPS)

Weighting 33.3%
FY19 EPS
Threshold: 21.8p
Max, 27 8p

Weighting: 37 5%
FY20 EPS
Threshaid 21 8p
Max 278p

Relatve Total Sharehclder
Return {'TSR')

Weighting: 33.3%

Measured against housebuider
peer group

Thresheld: equal to index

Max index + 7,58 p.a

Weighting 25 0%

Measured against two groups (equally
weighted}, housebuilder peer index
and FTSE 250 constituents

Threshold equal to index / median

of FTSE 250

Max: index + 7.5% p.a /upper quartile
of FTSE 250

Return On Capital
Employed (‘RCCE)

weighting, 33.3%
Threshold® 22 0%
Max: 25 0%

Weighting 375%
Threshaold: 20 0%
Max. 25.0%

Changes to FY18 performance measures and rationale for change

Increase EPS weighting to 37.5%

= Profitability s a key driver of the business and EPS as a performance measure motivates
and prowides a strong ‘lne of sight' to management as they have a greater influence aver

the outcome

* The EPS targets are set based on the three-year business plan and analyst consensus

Increase ROCE weighting to 37,5% and reduce threshald target to 20%
* Managements' forus on capital effictency remains an imporiant performance indicator of the
business and its business plan as set out on IPO Therefore it 1s approprate to increase the

weighting of this measure

» The Commuittee believes that the maximum target of 25% ROCE remains a suitably stretching
target and that achieving this within the performance period would represent exceptional
performance and hence justify full vesting of this element of the LTIP In order to improve
alignment with the Company's business plan for FY20, the threshoid target will be set at
20%, The Committee considers this level of perfarmance to be reabstic yet challenging,
and representative of the Company's medium-term business plan
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Reduce Relative TSR weighting to 25% and split comparatar group into two groups

» Qur largest shareholders have a strong preference for shareholder return measures and
relztive TSR best reflects how the Company 15 performing against its peers Therefare it1s
appropriate to retain TSR as a performance measure

= The unigue busmess profile of the Company means that while Braxit had an impact on all
housebullders’ performance, other housebuilders have recovered largely as a result of the
Gavernment's help-te-buy scheme which 15 not sppiicable to the Company. Notwithstanding
this, the Committee feels that housebuilders remain an appropriate comparator group for TSR
hut that this should be balanced aganst the breader market by the intreduction of a FTSE 250
comparator group, The use of twe peer groups would provide a more hobistic assessment of
performance against both a cycheal industry and performance agamst the broader market
Constituents of cur housebuilder peer group are set cut ot page 95.

The Committee believe that the additional two year holding period and the new weightings and
targets will create the nght balance between supporting a successful execution of the three-year
business plan and incentivising the Executive Directors.

NED fees The fees for FY18 for the Non-Executive Director roles are:
» Charman: £230,000
s Board fer £54,600
* Senior Independent Director’s additional fee; £10,000
« Commutee Chairman fee {per Comrmttes). £10,600
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited)

single total figure of remuneration (audited)

Tne taple below sets out the single tatal figure of remuneration for each Executive Director in respect of FY17 and FY16
Further explanauons of each of the elements are set out below in the following sections of this report

Base Annual
Narma Periacd salary Benhefits bonys? LTIP* PensenS Tatal
Clwa Fentan Y17 £482,917 £30,257 £143,442 None £96,583  £753,169
FY16 £467,617 £27407 £61,750 None £71,250  £628.024
John Tenkiss FY17 £296,667 £24,626 £88,800 None £52,138  £462,231
FY16 £229.445 £15,.782 £36,400 None £42950  £324617
Nick Maddock' FY17 £105,769 £8,231 - None £19,702  £133.702
6 £288,781 £21156 - Nene £54,996  £364.933
Rowan Baker? FY17 £151,641 £6,183 £29,631 Nane £36139 £223,594

1 Ve Maddock resigned f-om 1-e Bogre wirh e ect from & january 2017

2 Rowan Baker was apponted (0 be Bo rd with effecr 'ram & [a7 jaty 017 The 4ma nls e ik s Lable relate anly 10 tre per ad wace she aned the Board ar d co nt
cover The per ad rrom ° August 206,05 January 201/

3 Cne-(wraof be annual ponus oayable @ Clive enton are Lo john Tgnkiss 150 -h. funm ot deforreg shares to tre valye of £4/804 and £ 28,600 respoclively Trese
Amo Nty are Nctuged in-he ann sal 0ENUS “grres n (Fis table The snares are de’erred for [~ree yeary, 3m0 are NoT sUD T fo any perfermance conding™s Rowar Baker s
Dorus is 4t cashwith o delerren shares

4 NoUTIPs were due or eligiblatovese ir TYF7

b Lommprises i-e value 0" Groug Persor 3 Persion sche € contrbuduny an selary sopplements in ey of persian

Base salary

As reparted in the Annual Report fast year, the base salary for the CEQ and the (GO0 were increased with effact fram

1 November 2016 The table below shows the base safary for each of the Executive Directors during the year As Rowan Baker
was only appointed to the Board on & January 2017, her salary prior to that date has not been disclosed Nick Maddock resigned
frorm the Board with effect from 6 January 2017

Execltive Directar fosition Perad Annual salary

1.0996-311016 £475,000
Chve Fenton Chief Executive Officer 11116 31.08 17 £484.500

1.0916-31.1016 £280,000
John Tonkiss Chief Operating Officer 11116 -31.0817 £300,000
Rowan Baker Chief Financial Officer {current) 6,0117-31.0817 £225,000
Nick Maddock Chief Financial Officer (ormer} 10816 -6.0117 £300,000
Benefits (audited)

The Executive Directors typically receve private medical msurance, ife .nsurance and cash for car alfowance, although
the Committee retains the flexibility to provide other beriefits The amounts shown in the table above are the gross
(before tax) amounts

Annual bonus (audited)
The strategy and the KPIs of the Group are primary factors In ensurng that there s alighrment between performance and reward
For FY17 the performance conditions and their weighungs for awards under the ABP were

+ Group operating profit (70%)

+ Group full year cash flow (10%)

» Group langd exchanges (10%)

« (roup customer satisfaction {10%)

Under the terms of the FY17 annual bonus, 25% for each element is payable for achieving the threshaeld performance, 50%

15 payable for achiewing target performance, increasing to 100% for achiswing maxmum performance Achievernenis between
these points are caiculated on a straight-ine basis The maximum opportunity for Clive Ferten and Jobn Tonkiss was 150% of
salary and one-third of any bonus earned was in the form of deferred shares, which is deferred for three years Rowsn Baker
was appointed in the %ear and her maximum bonus opportumity was set at 100% of salary in cash, recognising that FY17 was
a transitanal year rather than the maximurm pohicy level for Executive Directors of 150% of salary For FY18, Rawan's bonus
opportumty wall be increased 1o 150% of salary with ore-third deferral m fine with other Executive Directors

The bonus awards payable t0 the Executive Directors in respect of FY17 were agreed by the Remuneration Cormittee, having
reviewed the Company's results and the extent to which the performance onditions were met The results are shown in the
following table As at 13 November, no awards have been granted m respect of F¥18
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Performance targets Annual borus value acheved
Percentage of
Werghting Maxirurm Maximum
of sach Parformarce weighting Actual performance Clive John Rowan
Performance conduons condition targets required per iarget performance achieved Fenton Tonkiss Baker
Underlying Threshold £108 6m 17.5%
operating 700% Target £113.6m 35.0% £56.2m 0.0% - - -
profit Maximun £123.6m 70.0%
Threshold £2.0m 25%
Cashflow 10.0% Target £27.3m 5.0% £49.2m 820% £55694 £36962 £12334
Maximum £615m 10.0%
Land Threshold 278 25%
exchanges 10.0% Target 3133 50% 3164 56.0% £40,039 £24,792 £8,273
2 Maximum 3,446 10.0%
Threshold 10% 25%
Customer
satisfachon 10.0% Target 93 0% 50% 93 4% 60.0% £43,679 £27.046 £9,024
Maximum 95.0% 10,0%
Total 100.0% 19.79% £743,412 £88,800 £29,631

LTIP awards (audited)

During FY17 LTIP awards of 1509 of salary were granted to Clive Fenton and John Tonkiss, and 106% of salary to Rowan Baker
The awards were made as ni--cost options and the number of shares over which each nil-cost option was awarded was calculared
by reference [0 the closing price of the shares as derved from the Daily Offical List of the Londen Stock Exchange on the day
before the date of the award.

These nil-cost options will vest depending on performance aganst a challenging shding scale of Earnings per Share {EPSY, Return
on Capital Employed (ROCE) and relatve Total Shareholder Return (TSR') agamst a bespoke group of housebuiders The TSR
comparator group iIndex comprises the unweighted average TSR of the following housebuilders Barratt, Bowis, Bellway, Crest
Nicholson, Persimmon, Redrow and Taylor Wimpey Al three measures are assessed over a three-year performance period and
are equally weighted The LTIP contains clawback and malus provisions

The performance conditions and targets for the FY17 LTIP awards are set out below For the achieverment of threshoid
performance, 258 of the element will vest with straight-ine vesung in between to maximum performance

Measure Weighting Threshold perfermance Maximum performance
EPS 1/3rd 21.8 pence 278 pence
FY19 ROCE 1/3rd 22% 25%
Relatrve TSR 1/3rd Equal to Index Index + 7 5% p.a.

The following LTIP awards were made during FY17

Maxmum

Number Basis of % of award percamage of
Grant of shares award granted Face vaiue westing at the face valug Performance
Execunve Cirectar date awarded (% of baskc salary} of award2 thrashold chat could vest penod?
Clive Fenton 221216 471916 150% £726,750 25% 100% 3years
John Tenkiss 221276 252,208 150% £450,000 25% 160% 3years
221216 40,584 n/a £62,500 25% 100% 3years

Rowan Baker'

270197 105,520 75% £176,957 25% 100% 3 years

Rewean Ba<er was granted an LTIP awara n Becember 2070 onorio aoeng promoted [0 the Beard “he was gwardec 2 top up LTIP uware njenuary 20 7sollowing
mer appointnien as MO Hhe face value of the second award was cale laeo ssig rhe closir g share price on 26 atilary 1017 being £1 677 Tre cambined ~wards
represe~t 06% cfhet base salary

The face value is calculzied using i~= closing s~are prca on 21 Dacember 2076 (£1 54) and on 26 JanJary 28 7,£1677)

The paformarce periad runs for three years from the date of grae- Relative TSR will ne theavy ed *e1m 32 Decemiber 2016 over 2 “~res-gear nencd “FS ang ROCT
will be measured at 37 M gust 2019

W

As at 13 Novernber, no awards have peen granteg in respect of FY18
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Pension entitlements {audited)
The Group operates a Group persanal pens.on scheme under which Executive Directors are entitled to recewe contributions
of up to 20% of salary The Group does not currently operate a defined benefic scheme

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration
The Company’s Articles of Assocration restricl the annual fees that may be paid to the Non-Executive Directars in aggregare
1o £10m This amount may only be increased by ardmary resolution of the shareholders

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)
The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Dwectors’ Period Fees Benefits? Total Rale
John White FY1? £230,000 £2,670 £232,670

FY16 £209,083 £2,334 £211,417 Group Non-Executive Chairman
Frank Nelson Y17 £73.000 £107 £73,107

FY16 £68,360 - £68,360 Seniar Independent Director
Mike Parsons FY17 £63.000 - £63,000

FY16 £60,322 - £60,322 independent Non-Executive Director
Geeta Nanda Fy17 £53,000 - £53,000

FY16 £52,283 - £52,283 Independent Non-Executive Directar

1 johnCarler was apoon ed dfier yee’ end 50 has nat revaved any remuneratior for | Y1/
7 Bingdits reiatr (0 ouesioe of policy ravel exper diture

Nan-Executive Directors fees
The Non-Executive Directors’ fees which apphed during FY17 were

Rale Fees
Chairman £230,000
Non-Exeoutwe Director's Board fee £53,000
Senior Indepéendent Director's additional fee £10,000
Commuittee Chairman's addiional fee {per Committee) £10,000

The Non-Executive Directors are not entited ta parucipate in the Group's Pension Scheme, ABP. LTIP or the Sharesave Plan

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

Directors’ interasts in share awards (audited)

The outstanding interests in share awards for the Executive Directors as at 31 August 2017 are shown in the table below
The Non-Executive Directors are not permitted to participate in any of the Group’s share pfans or ncentive arrangements

Director! MNumber Vested during Lapsed dunng Exercise Vesting

Plan Date of grant of share awards the year the year price(gr date Expiry date
Clive Fenton - CEO

LTIP 251115 263.888 - - il 5118 251325
TP 221218 471316 - - ol 221219 221226
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - - 1674 230119 280719
John Tonklss

LTIP 251115 155555 - - nil 251118 251125
LTIP 221216 292,208 - - al] 221219 2212 26
Sharesave 101215 10752 - - 1674 280119 280719
Rowan Baker

LTIP 251115 22,222 - - alll 251118 251125
TP 221216 40,584 - - il 221219 221236
LTiP pricinig 105,520 - - ol 270120 270127
Sharesave 101215 10.752 - - 1674 280119 280719
Nick Maddoci!

LTiP 25115 166,666 - 166,666 ol lapsed lapsed
Sharesave 131215 10,752 - 10,752 1674 lapsed lapsed

1 NickMaddock [ef .he Campany 0n b |antary 2017 ang R § LTIP af 0 Wnaresave optans lapses or that dare

There were no outstanding ABP share awards as at 31 August 2017
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Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

The Executve Directors are required to build up over a five-year period, and then subsequently held, a shareholding equivalent
ta 200% of their base salary At the end of FY17 Clive Fenton and Juhn Tonkiss had rmet thewr shareholding requirement Rowan
Baker, who was appointed to the Board on 6 January 2017, has not yet met her sharehalding reguirement, but she 1s aware she
will need to increase her shareholding to meet this requirement by 6 January 2022 Non-Executive Directors are not subject 1o
shareholding requirernents

The table below shows the interests in shares in the Companﬁ, including unvested awards, for each of the Directors as at
31 August 2017 No aptions were exercised duning the year There has not been any change since the year end

Shares Shares. Shares

Shares sublactto not subject to Options Cptions optians benefically  Shareholding
oensficlally performance performance wvested but unyasteg urwested owned as reguirement
Direcror owned conditions <onditions unexercrsed [LTiPsy (Sharesave) %of salary’ met?
Executive Directors
Clve Fenton 1,651,345 - - - 735,804 10,752 564 1% Yes
John Tonkiss 578,719 - - - 447,763 10,752 319 3% Yes
Rowan Baker 3,78¢ - - - 168,326 10,752 2.8% Ne
Nick Maddack? 825,361 - - - nfa n/a nfa n/a
Nan-Executive Directors
John White 1,650,192 n/a n/a nfa n/a n/a - nla
Frank Nelson 173,270 nia n/a nfa n/a n/a - n/a
Mike Parsons 173,270 n/a n/a nfa n/a n/a - n/a
Geeta Nanda - nfa nfa n/a n/a n/a - n/a

t  Tiwsis oased on a dosing share price of £1 655 and the year-end salzries of the Execurive Director s Shares used for the abave calcuiatio™ excl ude unvesied and
unexercied aptions Theyindude shares whare the Executive Director nas aenefioal ownarship, shares imcepesaentty accired In tae rare” andg thase nela oy
a spause or ovil partner or dependent chid dnderrhe 2ge of 18 years

2 Nick Maddock [efl the Company on & Janusry 2017 The beneficiafly owned shares represent his rolding on s dale of ~esignatien 1l TIP ang Sharosave opugns
lapsed on that date

Payments to past Directors (audited)
There were no payments in the finanaal year

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were ne payments in the financial year No payments were made to Nick Maddock for loss of office

External directorships

Execulive Directors may hold pesitions in other companies as Non-£xecutive Directors and retain their fees

Clve Fenton, John Tonkiss ang Rowan Baker do not hold any externat directorships

Comparison of overall performance and pay

The graph below shows the value of £100 invested in the Company’s shares since listing campared with the FTSE 250 index
The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the movernent in share value and reinvestment over the
same period of dvidend incorne

As the Company 1s currently a consttuent of the FTSE 250, the Committee considers this 1s an appropriate index The comparison
s frarm the date of istng on 11 November 2015 1o 31 August 2017

r 1

Graphle remaved

L _
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Chief Executive Officer’s historic remuneration
The following table shows the total single figure “ar the rofe of Ctuef Executive Officer as well as the annual borus and LTP vesting
level achieved for each of the periods covered by the graph on the previous page

Y17 Fr16
LEG total single figure £753,169 £628,024
Annual bonus payment level achieved (% of maximum opportunity) 19.7% 100%
LTIP vesting level acheved {% of maximum apportunity)' 0% 0%

1 o award ~gs vested under the L TH

Statement of considerations of employment conditions efsewhere in the Group
The policy for all employees 1s determined’in terms of best practice and ensuring that the Group 5 able to attract and retain
the best people This pnnaple s follawed i the development of aur palicy

The remunerat:on strategy of the Company has been designed to ensure all employees share in 0s success trough
performance-related remuneration and share ownership On iPO the LTIP was introduced for Executive Directors and
other selected members of serior maragement Awards under the LTIP wil provide aligniment between sensor feaders
and our sharehoiders based on overall performance of the business

For all employees, the Company has adopted the Sharesave and the Share Incentive Plan {'51P7) Under these Plans, alt employees
have the apportunity to purchase shares in the Company subject to certam restricuons

The Company does not use remuneration comparson measurements nor have employees been consulted directly on the policy
In setting the remuneration pohcy for Directors, the pay and condiions of other employees of the Group are taken L accaunt,
including any base salary ncreases awarded

The Commuttee 15 provided with data on the remuneranon structure for management level tiers below the Executive Directors,
and uses this Information to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group

Change in Chief Executive Officer's remuneration pared with employ

The foliowing table Hlustrates the change in CEQ salary, benefits and bonus between FY16 and FY17 comparea with other
employees in the Group taken as a whole

% change FY16t0 FY47

Base salary Benafics Annyal honus
Chief Executve Officer 2% 10% 132%
Cther Group employees 3% 14% 146%

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the relative smportance of spend on pay 1n companson o profit distnibuted by way of dividends

FY17 FY16 % changes
Cverall spend on pay including Executive Directors £80.0m £68.3m 13%
Profit distributed by way of dividends £29.0m £24.2m 20%

There were no distributions by way of share buybacks durng the year
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Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Committee, under agreed terms of reference, responsibility for the policy and for determining
specific packages for the Execulive Directors and other selected members of the senior management team FPrior to the
establishment of the Committee, remuneration decisions were made by the Board The Company consults with key shareholders
n respect of the pelicy and the introduction of new Incenove arrangements

The members of the Committee during FY17 and up to the date of this Report are Mike Parsons (Chairman), john White,
Frank Nelsor and Geeta Nanda

The terms of reference for the Commitiee are avaliable an the Company’s website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance, and from the Company Secretary at the regisiered office

Our main responsibiiuies are o

» Determine and agree with the Board the broad Paolicy for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the serar
Mmanagement {eam

+ Undertake penodic reviews 10 assess the appropriateness and relevance of the Policy ensuring alignment with best practice
principles of the UK Carperate Governance Code

« (onsider the relative impertance of the Group's expenditure on pay comparad to the Group's profits, dvidends and tax paid

s Rewiew any maor changes in empioyee benefit structures throughaout the Company or Group and to agmaruster all aspects of
any share scheme

The Committee recewes assistance from the HR Director and the Company Secretery, who will attend meetings by invritation,
except when ssues relanng to their own remuneration are being discussed The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Fimanaal Officer
and the Chief Operatng Officer attend by invitation on occasion

Adviser to the Remuneration Committee

Following 3 selection process carried out by the Beard prior to and then following the IPO of the Compary. the Commuttee has
engaged the serwices of PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pw() as independgent remuneration adwiser

During FY17 Pw(C has provided advice, primarily in respect of the remuneration policy and LTIP awards.

PwC also provides certain other non-audit senaces In respect of tax and internal audit to the Group The Committee 1s sausfied
that no conflict of interest exists or existed in the prowvision of these services and that the adwvice recenved fram Pw( is ghjectve
and independent PwC s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and 1s a signatory to s voluntary code of conduct
which is designed 1o ensure objectve and independent advice 15 given to remunerauon commitiees

Frxed fees of £36,000 (FY1& £24,000) were paid to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration advice given to the Commuttee.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Shareholder engagement and statement of voting at the AGM

The Comimittee beleves itis very important to mantain an open dialogue with sharehalders on remuneration matiers
Sharehoiders' views were sought arid considerad when we set the remuneration pohey last year as well as cansulting on the
changes to the incentive arrangements as cuthned earlier in this report The Committee commigs [o consuliting with oLr major
sharehalders ' respect of any tuture changes to the remuneration poiicy and any rmatenal changes to Incentive arrangements

We put resclutions 1o approve the remuneration policy, s set out n fast year's Annuai Report, and to approve the FY16
Annual Report on Remuneration ta our members at cur AGM in [anuary 2017 The voting outcome of those twa resolutions were

Total votes cast
FY17 Resoluton Vates for

Votes against (excluding withheld) Votes withheld
Directors’ Remuneration Policy:

Number of votes cast 320,184,871 24713722 344,898,593 3,773,564
Percentage of votes cast 92 8% 7.2%

A | Repart on :

Number of votes cast 345,465,429 1.642,446 347307875 1,564,283
Percentage of votes cast 99.5% 0.5%
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The followtng table sets out the elements of remunerauon permitted under the remuneration policy which was approved by
shareholders in January 2017 The full policy 1s set outin the FY16 Annual Report on pages 63 (0 74

Howit supports the

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Element of Company’s short and Performance
ramuneration long-term strategic abjecuves Operatlon Mawimum opportunities metrecs
Basesalary  Provides a base level of Set on appomntment and The Comnmuttee ensures None.
remuneration to support reviewed annually or when that maximum salary
recruitment and retention there 15 a change n position levels are set in line with
of Executive Directors with — or responsibirty, companies of a similar
the necessary experience size ta McCarthy & Stone,
and expertise to deliver When determining an aperating In a similar secter
the Group's strategy. appropriate level of salary,
the Committee considers: The companies in the comparator
* Remuneration practices group are the constrituents of
within the Group the FTSE 250 and sector peer
= The general performance argamsations of a similar size.
of the Group
* Salaries within the ranges The Caommittee intends to
paid by the compantes in review the comparator groups
the comparator group each year and may add or
used for remuneration remove companies from the
benchmarking group as it considers appropriate.
* Any change in scope, Any changes 1o the comparator
role and responsibilities group will be in the section
» The econormic environment headed mplemerntation of
Remuneration Policy, in the
Individuals who are recruited or fallowing finanoial year
promoted to the Board may, on
occasion, have their salaries set In general, salary increases for
below the targeted policy leves Executive Directors are inine
untl they become established with the increase far employees,
in their role, in such cases
subsequent increases in salary The Company sets outin the
may be higher than the generat section headed Implementaton
rises for employees until the of Remuneration Policy Executive
target positioning is achieved. Drrector salanes for that year
and the following year
Benefits Provides a benefits Executive Directors typically The maximum is set at None,
package in ine with recelve private medical insurance,  the cost of providing the
practice relative toits life insurance and a car or car benefits described
comparator group to atlowance, The Committee
enable the Company retains the fixbility to provide
to recruit and retain other benefits.
Executive Directors
with the experience The Committee recognises the need
and expertise to delver 1o maintain suitabie flexibility in
the Group’s strategy. the benefits provided to ensure it
1s able to support the objective of
attracting and retaning personnelin
order to deliver the Group strategy
Additional benefits may therefore
be offered such as relocatian
allowances on recruitment,
Pensions Provides a pension provision  The Company offers a Group The maximum contribution None

1n hne with practice relative
to its comparator group to
enable the Company

to recrut and retan
Executive Directors with the
experience and expertise to
deliver the Group's strategy.

Personal Pension scheme. The
Executive Directors are entitled
to receive a maximum employer
contribution into the Group
Personal Pensior scheme or

a salary suppterent in lieu of
pension of 20% of basic salary
perannum.

inta the Group Personal Pension
scheme or a salary supplement in
lieu of pension is 20% of gross basic
salary

The Company sets outin the
section headed Implementation

of Remuneration Policy, in the
following financial year the pension
contributions far that year for each
of the Executive Directors.

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Hew it supports the

Element of Company's shart and Perfarmance

remuneraton long-term sirategic abjeciives Operation Maxmum opportunities metrics

Annualand The ABP provides a The Commuttee determines The maximum bonus  An award under the ABP is
Deferred significant incentive to the bonus to be awarded (ncluding any partaof  subject to satsfying financal
Bonus the Executive Directors  following the end of the the bonus deferred and strategic/operational

Plan (ABP'} linked ta achievement relevant finanaal year,
in delivering goals that

into shares) deliverable performance/personal
under the ABP does performance cenditions

are closely alignedwith  The Company will set out notexceed 150% of @ and targets measured over
the Group's strategy In the section headed participant’s annual a penod of one financial year,
and the creation of implementatian of base salary.

A rminimurm of 50% of the
Percentage of borus bonus shall be based on
maximum earned finanaial performance

value for shareholders.  Remuneration Policy,
n the following financial
In particular, the ABP year, the nature of the

supports the Company’s targets and ther weighting for fevels of measures The Commuittee will

objectwes allowingthe  for each year. perfermance determine the bonus to be

setting of annual targets = Threshold 25% of  delivered following the end of

based on the business  Detals of the performance maximum bonus the relevant financial year

strategy at the time, conditions, targets and their s Ontarget: 50% of

meaning that a wider levet of satisfaction for the maxmum bonus The Committee is of the

range of performance  yearbeingreportedonsset  +  Maximum: 100% opinicn that given the

metrcs can be used outin the Annual Report of maximum bonus commercial sensitivity arsing

that are relevant on Rernuneration n relation to the detalled

and achievable The annual bonuswill  financial targets used for the
The Commuittee can determine  be paid s cash and bonus, disclosing precise

The Committee has that partof the bonus earned  deferred shares. targets for the ABP in advance

discretion to defer part  under the ABP 15 delivered as
of the bonus earnedn  an award of shares.
shares under the ABP.

would not be in shareholder
mterests, Targets, performance
achieved and awards made

The maximum value of will be published at the end

The advantage of deferred shares 1s 50% of of the performance period so
deferral 1s. the banus earned. shareholders can fully assess
+ Increased alignment the basis for any pay-outs
between Executive  The portion of bonus earned under the ABP.
Directors and to be deferred into Company
shareholders created  shares for the year being In exceptional crcumstances
through deferred reported on will be set out Inthe the Commuttee retains the
shares and the Annual Report on Remuneration. discretion to:
increased equity + Change the performance
stake of management The main terms of these awards measures and targets and
in the Company are the weighting attached to
» Vestingof deferred  » Mimimum deferral peried the performance measures
shares are subject of three years, duning which and targets part-way
to an Executive ne performance conditions through a performance year

Director’s continuinNg will apply
employment, which = The partiapant’s continued
provides an effective employrment at the end of the

if there 1s a significant and
matenal event which causes
the Committee to believe

lock-in

deferral period unless he/she
1s a goad leaver

The Cammittee may award
dividend equivalents on those
shares to the particpants to the
extent that they vest.

The Commmuttee has the
discretion to apply a helding
peried of two years post vesting
of deferred shares

The ABP contains clawback and
malus provisians. Please refer
to page 69 of the 2016 Annual
Report for further details.

the original measures,
weightings and targets are
no longer appropriate

* Make downward or upward
adjustments to the amount
of bonus earned resulting
from the application of the
performance measures, if
the Committee believes that
the bonus outcomes are not
a fair and accurate reflection
of business performance

Any adjustments or discretion
appled by the Committee

will be fully disclosed in the
following year's Annuai report
on Remuneration,
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Element off Company's shortand Perfarmance
remuneration long-term strategic abjectves Oparation Maximum opporturnities metrics
LTIP The purpose of the LTIP - Awards are granted annually  Normal annuat The performance conditions

is to Incentvise and
reward Executive
Directarsin relation to
long-term performance
and achievernent of
Group strategy.

This will better align
Executive Directars’
Iinterests with the
long-term interests of
the Group and actas a
retention mechanism

The use of relative TSR,
measures the success
of the implementation
of the Group's strategy
in delivering a return
above our peer group.

The use of three-year
EPS and ROCE, ensures
Executive Directors are
focused on sustainable
fong-term financial
performance.

to Executive Directers in the
form of a conditional share
award ar a nil-cast option,

Details of the performance
condstions for grants made
n the year and the future
financial year are set out
in the Annual Report on
Remuneration,

Awards wil! vest at the end of

a three-year period subject to;

» The Executive Director's
continued employment at
the date of vesting

= Satisfaction of the
performance conditions

The Committee may award
dividend equivalents on
awards to the extent that
these vest.

The Committee has the
discretion to zpply a holding
period of two years post
vesting of LTIP awards.,

The LTIP contains clawback
and malus provisions.
Please refer to page 69 of
the 2016 Annual Report for
further details.

maxmum value of
150% of annual base
salary based on the
market value at the
date of grant setin
accordance with the
rules of the LTIP

{n exceptional
arcumstances the
Committee may grant
an award with a
maximum of 200%
of annual base salary
25% of the award
will vest for
thresheld
performance
100% of the

award wiil vest

for maamum
performance

There 15 straight-
line vesting between
these points

for the FY17 LTIP awards are
cumulative EPS, ROCE and TSR.
The weightings of which are
outlined on page 95.

The Committee may change
the balance of the measures,
or use different measures
for subsequent awards,

as appropriate.

No material change will
be made to the type of
performance conditions
without prior sharehoider
consultation.

In exceptional arcumstances
the Commuittee retains the
discretion to:

* Vary, substitute or waive
the performance conditions
applying to LTI awards if
the Committee considers
it appropriate and that
the new performance
canditions are deemed
reasonable and are not
materially less difficult
to satisfy than the
onginal condsticns

*+ Make downward or

upward adjustments to

the amaunt vesting under
the LTIP resuiting from

the application of the
performance measures if
the Committee believes that
the outcomes are not a fair
and accurate reflection of
business performance
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Hiw it supports the
Element of Company's shortand Performance
remunaration lang-term strategi objectrves Operation Maximum oppartunities metrics.
Allemployee The SIF and Sharesave  Executive Directors are ehgible  The maximum levels In accordance with the
shareplans are allemployee share  to partiapate in both the 5P of participation setby  legisiation the Company may

-SIPand ownership planswhich  and Sharesave legsiation from time impase obyectove performance
Sharesave  have been designed to ttme condhtions and/or length of
to encourage all The Executive Directors are service/haurs worked/level of
employees to become  entitied to participate in any remuneratien to determine the
shareholdersin the other all employee arrangement level of awards made under
Company and thereby  implemented by the Cempany. the SIP,

algn their interests
with shareholders

Minimum The Committee has adopted formal shareholding gudelines that will encourage the Executive Directors to builld

shareholding up over a five-year period and then subsequently hold a shareholding equivalent to a percentage of base salary.

regquirement Adherence to these guidelines is a condition of continued participation in the equity incentive arrangements,
This requirement ensures that the interests of Executive Directors and those of shareholders are closely abigned

Currently the requirement is for all Executive Directors te buiid up a sharehelding equal to 200% of salary.

The Committee retains the discretion to increase the shareholding requirements,

Executive Directors’ contracts and letters of appeintment for Chairman and Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors
Notice penads

Date of MNature & Provisions
Name service contract of contract From company Director far early termination
Clive Fenton 30 January 2014 Rolling, 12 months 12 months At the discretion
JohnTonkiss 21 January 2014 Rolhing 12 months & months of the
Rowan Baker 6 January 2017 Ralling 12 months 6 months Commttee
Non-Executive Directors
Name Date of letter of appolntment
John White 24 September 2013
Frank Nelson 11 Novemnber 2013
Mike Parsons 28 October 2013
Geeta Nanda 4 March 2015
John Carter 18 September 2017

The Committee’s policy for seting notice periods s that @ 12 month pertod will apply for Executive Directors

The Nan-Executive Directors of the Company (including the Chairman) do not have service contracts The Non-Executive
Directors are appeinted by letters of appointment Each independent Non-Executive Director's term of office runs for a
three-year period which can be renewed for twa further three-year terms The terms of the Non-Executive Directors’
positons are subject to their re-election by the Company's shareholders at the AGM and to re-election at any subseqguent
AGM at which the Non-Executive Directors stand for re-electon

All Directors will be put forward for re-election by shareholders or an annual basis

The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Cirectors are availabie for inspection at the Company's registered
office during normal office hours
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Hlustrations of the application of the Remuneration Policy

The charts below llustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based an salaries at the start
of Y18, under three different performance scenarnos (1} minimum, (i} on-target, and (19 maximum The table below these charts
sets out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these scenaries The elements of
remuneration have been categorsed into three components () fixed. i1} annual bonus (deferred bonus), and () LTIP

Chief Executive Dfficer (Clive Fenton) (£'000) Chief Operating Officer {John Tonkiss) (£'000)
Maximum E 30% las% [ 35% | 2030 Maximum | 20% ] 5% | 35% l 1,410
On-target rié% | 27% | 27% | 1,380 On-target I 46% | 27% I 27% —! 915

Minimum 630 Mimmum | 100% 420
Actual | B1% 753 Acual | 819 262

BFxed WBonus ELTIP E-ixed WBonus BLTIP

Chief Financial Officer {(Rowan Baker) (000}

Mammum| 30% I 35% ‘ 350 | 1,215

On-target|46% |27% |27% ‘789

tMimnimum | 100% 351

We nave not nciuded the *Artual” bar for Iowan Fa<er
as she was orly 3 Direr tor for part of he year

Actual

WFxed WBornus WLTIP

Element Description Mimmum Target Maximum

Fixed Salary, benefits’ ncluded Included Included
and pension

Annual bonus  Annual bonus (including Mo annual vanable 50% of 100% of
deferred sharesp? maximum bonus maximum bonus

Masmum opportunity
of 150% of salary

LTiP Award under the LTIP? Ne multiple year vaniable  50% of the 100% of the
Maximum annual award maximum award maximum award
of 150% of salary

Notes
Based on "¥17 benafits paymants as per the 37zl Migure Table Tme actual benefits paid fer FYT8will anly be knowet 4t the end arthe fnancal yaar Ses page 94 tor the
Simgle Ngure “able and the accampanying ncees

2 Inarcordanco w hrhe seg lations share price groweh has not beenincluded sdtitior dividerd equivalents have noy teen added to 11 » ceferred shares ar a LTIP awards

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman

13 November 2017

AR 2 "";’,,M..-—
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Directors’ Report

The Directors prasent thaw report for the financal year ended
31 August 2017

Corporate governance statement

The mformation that fulfils the requirements of the corperate
gavernance staterment for the purposes of the FCA'S Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules can be fourd in the
corporate governance information on pages 74 to 105 (ail

of which forms part of (s Directors' repord end n this
Directors’ report

Crass-references to other sections of the document
Disclosures that are n other sections nclude
SubpCtmatter

Employee diversity and inclusivity
Employee Involvernent

Section and page reference

Strategic repart, page 63
Strategic report, page 63

Greenhouse gas emissions Strategicreport, page 60
Likely future developments Strategic repart,

pages 56 and 57
Dividends

Anrnterm dividend of 18p{FY16 1 Op) per ordinary share was
paid on 9 june 2017 10 tnose sharehoiders on the register on
28 April 2017 Subject to sharehalder approval at the 2018
AGM, the Directors are proposing 5 final dwdend for the
financal year ended 31 August 2017 of 3 6p (FY16 3 Spjper
ordinary share This brings the total dwidend for the year 1o
54n{FY16 4 5p)

Directors

The names of the Directors who wera Directars at year end
and up to the date of this report are on pages 70to 73 Nick
Maddock served as a Director until 6 January 2017 when he
resigned fram the Board Rowan Baker was appointed to the
Board on & January 2017 John Carter was appomted tethe
Board on 1 October 2017

Details of the Directors' interests in the share capital of the
Comparty are set out in the Directors’ Rermuneration Report
on page 57

The powers given to the Directors are contained in the
Company's Articles of Association {the ‘Arudes’), subect
to ihe Corpames Act 2006, and any direcuons gven Dy
members In general meetings

The Board, who 1s ulumately responsible for the management
of the business aof the Campany, may exerase ail powersto
borrow money, ta pay ntenm dwidends, 1o mortgage or
charge any of Its undertakings, to Issue securittes and to give
security for any debt, lability or obligation of the Company

to any third party
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The appontment and replacement of drectars s governed
by the Arucles and the Board may appoint any person
be a director {sc long as the total number of directars does
not exceed the Iimit prescribed in the Articles, which s
currently 12

Jnder the Arucles, any such director shaft hold affice only
until the next AGM and shall then be eligibie for election by
ihe mernbers In hing with the UK Corporate Goverrande (ode
all directars are required Lo reure and, if they so wish, the:

may stand for annual re-election All current directors wil

be seeking re-election at the 2018 AGM

The Artcdles may be amended by a spedal resolution of the
shareholders

Articles of Association

The Articles of Association may be amended in accordance
with the provisrons of the {ompanies Act 2006 by way of a
special resolution of the Company’s shareholders

Share capital and contral
Detais af the Cornpany's share capital are an page 137in note
25 to the consehdated financial statements

Ar 31 August 2015 there were 537,314,069 25 ordinary shares
of Bp nominal value in issue Following approval at the AGM,
the quarter share was bought back and cancelled or

25 January 2017 No other shares have been bought back
and cancellied

Durng the year 15,365 new ardinary shares have been issued
and allotted to satisfy early exercises of options under the
Group's Sharesave Plan by good leaver employees, who are
entitled to exercise thew pro-rata options withm six months
of leaving the Group

The Company nas ong class of shares oftinary shares of 8p
nominal value, each of which carries the right to ene vote at
general meetings of the Company and to an equal proportion
of any dwvidends declared and paid

Shares may be issued with such nghts 2nd restnictions as the
Company May, by ordinary resolution, decide or, if there is no
such resolution or 50 far as it does not make speafic provision,
as the Board may decde

There are na restrictions on the transfer of our ordmary shares

and there are no shares carrying special rghts with regards

control of the Comparty The Company s not aware of any

agreements Deiween shareholdel s that may result in

restnicoans on the transfer of shares or on vating rights There !
are no specic restrictions on the size of a holding or on the

exerase of voting rights which are governed by the Articles of

Association and prevaihing legislation No perscn has any

special nghts of contral aver the Company’s share capual and

all issued shares are fully paid
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Resolutions to allot, issue and buy back shares
Sharehofder authority will be sought each year to authorise
the Directors to allot new shares and to dlsappg/ pre-emption
rights and o make market purchases of our ordinary shares

We intend (o renew our powers to 1ssue and buy back shares
at each AGM At our AGM on 25 January 2017 the Directors
were authorised to 1ssue shares up to a maximum nominal
ameunt of £14,328,360 and empowered to issue shares on 3
non pre-emptive basis up to 2 maxmum nominal amount of
£2,149,256 for general use and a further £2,149,256 for use
In connection with an acquisition or other capital Investment

The Directors were also autherised o buy backup to
53,731,406 shares This authority has not been used
The Directors are seeking renewal of this authonty at
the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with refevant
institutional guidelines

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2017, we had been notfied, in accordance
with the rules set gut It the FCA's Bisclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules sourcebeok, of the following nterests in
aur grainary share capital

Number % interest
of shares nvetng
Name of notifying entity/nature of ho'ding disclosed rights
Anchorage Caprtal Master
Offshore Limited (indirecty 134,695,393 2507
Prudentiai pk group of
comparues (indirect)? 55,140,163 10.26
The Goldman Sachs Group,
Inc {incirecty 52,870,054 9.84
Avivaplcand
subsidiaries (indirect) 3,024,245 D.57
Aviva plcand
subsidiaries (directy 31,165,914 S.BC
Canada Pension Plan
Investmant Beard (direct) 29,084,092 54
Royal London Asset
Manapement Limited {direct} 27,045,491 5.03

1 Includes contracts for aifference (CfDs) representing 48,785 237 voung righes

2 Includes rght o recall 1,059,084 loaned snares

3 Includes open stockioan of 80,314 shares and waos/(IDs repraseling
42,031,714 voung rights

4 Includes right 1o recall 4,111,585 loaned shares

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the periad from 31 August 2017 to the dare of this report,
we recerved the foliowing notifications

Numberaf % nterestin

Name of not/fylng entity/nature of halding shares disclosed  vohing nghts

Anchorage Capital Master

Offshore, Ltd (indirect)’ 140,595,070 2617
Prudential plc group of

companies (ingirect? 70,235,186 1307
The Goldman Sachs Group,

In¢ {indirectP 54,462,421 1004
Awiva plc and its subsidiaries {direct) 14,851,688 276

1 ircludes fnancal Instruments representing 48,785,237 votlng ngris {3 08%)
2 Includes finandal Instrements representng 235,415 vating rights (0 04%)
3 Indudes Mmannal instr.ments represenyng 44 433,355 voting rights (8 27%)

Inforrmation provided to the Company under the Oisclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules 1s publicly available wia the
regulatory informatron service and on the Company’s website

Significant agreements with change of contral
provisions

The Cornpany has i place a revolwng credit faahty

dated 19 December 2014 (35 amended by an amendment
letter dated 10 February 2015 and further amended ty a
supplemental agreement dated 23 May 2016) The revolving
credit facility and our joint venture with Somerset Care relating
to YLMS both contain termination pravisions that could be
triggered in certam croumstances, including n‘anr person
or group of persons acting 1n concert gan control of

the Company

There are no agreements between the Group and its Directors
and employees providing for compensation for oss of office or
employment {whether through resignation, purported
regundancy or otherwise) in the event of a takeover bid

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Group maintans Directors and Officers” hability insurance
which provides cover for any legal acacn brought agamnist

the Directors

The Group has also granted indemnities te each of the current
Directors of the Company and its main trading subsidiary to
the extent perritted by law Qualifying third-party inderminity
provistons werein force dunng the year ended 31 August 2017
and conunue to remain in force

Political donations

By way of a specal resclution approved at the AGM on
25 january 2017, shareholders authorised the Company
to make polrticai donations and political expenditure ug
to a maximum of £100,000 During the year the Group
did not make any pohtical donauons or incur any palitical
expenditure The Directors are seeking renewal of the
authority at the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with
relevant instiiutional guidelines

Financial instruments

Details of the Group's finanaal instruments and iis exposures
to price nsk, credit sk, hquidity risk and cash flow nisk are set
out In note 3010 the financial statements on pages 13910 143

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 107



Directors' Report continued

Gaing concern

The Directors have assessed the Group's business actvites
and the factors ikely ta affect our future performance inlight
of current and ant:Cipated economic conditions The Directars
are confident that they are satisfied that the Group has
adequate resources 111 place to continue in operational
existence for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements. For this reason, they have
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
Annual Report and financial statemenis

The Directars are also required to provide a broader
assessment of viability over a longer period, which can be
found on page 57

tn making the going concern statement and the wabnlty
statement, the Diréctors have taken o account the ‘Guidance
an Risk Managemen, Internal Cortrols and Related Financia!
ang Business Reparung’ 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Coungl in September 2014

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each person wha is 3 Director of the Company as at the daie
of approval of this report confirms that

(a} so far as the Director s aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware,
and

(b) the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought €0
have taken as a Director in order o make himseliherself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information

Annual General Meeting

The 2018 AGM wilt be heid on Wednesday 24 January 2018

Full details are contained in the Notice convening the AGM,
which 1s being sent to shareholders with this Annual Report
On behaif of the Board

Patrick Hole
Company Secretary

13 November 2017

f /’/{/%//
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Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records The Directors are responsible far keeping adequate accounting
The Directars are responstble for preparing the Annual records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
Report and Financial Statements in accordance with fransacnans and disclose with regsonable accuracy at any
applicable law and regulations ume the financial postion of the Company and enabie

them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
statements for each finanaal year Under that law the safeguarding the assers of the Company and hence for taking
Orrectors are required to prepare the Group financiat reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
staternents in accordance with International Financsi and other irregulanies
Reporting Standards (IFRS's) as adopted by the Furopean
Union and Artidle 4 and have elected to prepare the The Cirectors are responsible for the mantenance and
Company finanazt statements in accordance with United integrity of the corporate and financigf informat:on ncluded
Kingdom Generafly Accepted Accounting Prachee (Linired on the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
Kingdom Accounting Standards), mcluding FRS 102, the governing the pr:{efaratlon and dissermmnation of financial
Financizl Reporung Standard apphcable in the United staternents may differ from legsslation in other jurisdictions.

Kingdom and Republic of Irefand, and applicable law.
Fair, balanced and understandable

Under company law the Directors must not approve the The Board confirms that the Annual Report and Financial
financial statements unless they are sanisfied that they give Statements, taken as a whale, 1s fair, balanced and

atrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and understandable and prowides the information necessary
the Company and of their profit or loss for that period for shareholders to assess the position, performance,

strategy and business model af the Company
In prepanng the Parent Company financial statements,

the Directors are required to Responsibility statement
The Directors confirm tha, to the best of each person’s
« Select sumable accounnng palicies and then apply knowledge

them consistently
» The financial statements, prepared n accordance with

+ Make judgerments and accounting esumates that internatienat Finanaial Reporting Standards as adopted
are reasonable and prudent by the Eurgpean Union, %rve a true and fair view of the
assets, habilines, financal posiwon and profic or loss of
» State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards the Company and the undertakings included in the
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures consclidation taken as a whole

disclosed and explained in the finanaal statements
+ The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the

» Prepare the finanaal statements on the going concern development and performance of the business and
basis unless i 1s Inappropniate to presume that the the position of the Company and the undertakings
Company will continue i business ncluded in the cansclidation taken as a whole, together

with a description of the principal risks and uncertanties

In preparing these financial statements, Internatioral that they face

Accounting Standard 1 requies that directors
Thisresponsibility statement was approved by the Board of

« Property sefect and apply accountng palicies Directors o 13 November 2017 and 15 signad on its beha¥ by
* Present nformation, including accounting policies, in
a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
and ungerstandable informagon Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
13 Novernber 2017 13 November 2017

* Provide additional disclosures when compliance with
the specific requirernents in IFRSS are insufficent to
enable users to understand the impact of particular ,/7
transactions, other events and conditions on the g/q‘ ’@‘\ P

+ ,."ﬂ ™
LIRS

]
/

entity’s financial position and financial performance

» Make an assessment of the Company's ability to
continue as a going cancern
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Independent Auditor's
Report to the Members
of McCarthy & Stone plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Cpinion
In our opirion

.

Tne financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 Augusr
2017 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended

» The Group financal statements have been oroperly prepared in accergance with Internatonal Finanaial Reporung Standards
{1FRS's) as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board {|ASB)

The Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practce, iInciuding Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financal Reporting Standard applicabie in the
UK ang Repubhe of Ireland’

= The financial staterments have been prepared m accordance with the requirernents of the Companies At 2006 and, as regards
the Group finanaal siatements, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

We have audited the finanaal statements of McCarthy & Stone pic (the 'Parent Company’) and iis subsicianes {the ‘Group’} which
comprise

The Consahdated Staternent of Comprehensive Income

The Conschdated and Parent Statements of Financial Position

The Conselidated and Parent Statements of Changes in Fquity

The Consalidared and Parent Cash Fiow Statements

The statement of accounung polices

The related notes 1 1o 34 of the Group statements and 110 11 of the Parent statements

LIE I I )

The finangal reporting framework that has been applied in the preparancn of the Group financial statements 1s apphicabie law
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The finrancial reporting framewark that has been applied in the preparation of
the Parent Company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, ncluding FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard apphicable 1n the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing {UK) CISAS (UK) and applicable law Our
responstbilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements sectian of our report

We are independent of the Group and the Parenr Company In accordance with the ethical requirernents that are relevant to our
audit of the financial staterents in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied  listed public mterest entities, and
we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements We confirm that the non-audit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or Parent Company

We beleve that the audir evidence we have obtained 1s sufficlent and approprare to provide a basis for our opiniarn

Summary of our audit approach

The key audit matters that we identified in the currentyear related to cost capitalisation of overheads and certain shared
equity recenvables We have idenufied fewer key audit matters in the current year, due to the non-recurring nature of two
key nisks identified In the prior year arising from the Iniiad Public Offering {1PO') being the accounting treatment applied in
respect of transaction casts and incentive scheme arrangements

The materrality that we used In the current year was £46m [FY16 £5 2m)which was determined on the basis of 5% of
pre-tax profit

We have performed full scope audits on the Group's four largest entiues McCarthy & Stone ple, McCarthy & Stone
{Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirerment Lifestyles Lirmited and McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited

We have performed an audit of select account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests} Limited and McCarthy
& Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review procedures over highly immater:al subsidianes
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Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statemant

We have reviewed the Directars’ siaternent regarding the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounuing contained
within nate 1 to the financial statements and the Direciors’ statement on the longer-term viability of the Group contained within
the Strategic Report section on page 57

We are reguired to state whether we have anything matenal to add or draw attention to in relation (¢

s The disdesures on pages 56 and 57 that describe the principal nsks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

* The Directors’ confirmation on page 55 that they have carmed out a robust essessment of the principal nsks facng the Group,
including those that woukd threater its business madel, future performance, solvency or hquidity

The Directors’ statement in note 7 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting m preparing therm and therr identification of any material uncertainties to the Group and
the Parent Company's ability to cantinue o go so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
finanaal staternants

The Drrectors’ explanation on page 57 a5 to how they nave assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they

have done sc and why they cansider that period o be appropriate, ard ther statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue In operation and meet ns liabiliuies as they fali due over the perod of
therr assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary quabfications or assumptions
Whether the Directors’ staternents relaning to going corcern and the prospects of the Company required in accordance

with Listing Rule 9 8 6R(3) are materially nconsistent with our knowledge obtained i the audit

We confirm that we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in respect of these matters

We agreed with the Directors’ adoption of the going concern basis of accounung and we did not idenufy any such material
Jncertainnies However, because not all future events or canditions can be predicted, this statemeant 15 not a guarantee as o
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those ratiers that, in our professtonal jJudgement, were of most significance n aur audit of the financial
statemnents of the current period and include the most significant assessed nsks of matenal misstaternent (whether or not due to
fraud) that we idenufied These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as @ whole, and in forming our opimon
therean, and we do not provide 3 separate opinion on these matters The accounting treatment of Incentve schemes was
included as a key audit matter in our prior year repart but has not been included In 2017 due to now being immater:ai to the
ﬁrr‘lanmal statements Similarly the treatment of transacuon costs on IPO was specific to aur 2016 audit only and so 1s not included
thisyear

Key audit matter How the soepe of qur audit responded to the key audit matter Key observations

Cost capitalisation of overheads We challenged the reasonableness of the We did not identify

Refer to page 84 (Report of the fisk and Audit allocanion and the accuracy of costs capitalised any Issues o

Committee) and pages 128 and 129 (Cntreal for each category of inventory Our wark involved report in the

accounting judgements and key sources of the followng course of our wark

estimation uncertanty) Accordingly, we are
= Assessing the design and implementatcn of satisfied as to the

Inventory comprises land, work n progress relevant controls surrounding the formulation reasonableness of

and finished stock The value of inventory as at of the percentages applied the allocation

31 August 201715 £760 4m (FY16 £685 8m) and and accuracy ol

15 the most significant tem on the Consoldated + Liaising with senior deparimental management Cosis capitalised

Statement of Financial Postion Overhead costs to understand the process employed in N the year

capralised at 31 August 2017 amount to £23.2m determining the cost allocation

(FY1e £257m) representing 51% (FY16 4 9%) of
stock addibons Amounts released to cost of sales Performing sensitvity anatysis on the
totaled £207m (FY16 £13 2m) proportion of costs capitalised i the year

Management perform a detaled exercise to Checking the mechanical accuracy of the
analyse by department the proportion af costs calculations o idenufy any anomalies
releting directly to site development versus general
business overheads

Per forming tests of detal over a sampie of
cosis ansorbed to assess whether these are
We consider the allocation and recognition valued and allocated correctly

of overhead costs INto Inventory to represent an

area of risk and an area where potenual fraud Perfarming a recaiculation based on the final
could occur as itrequires a signdicant fevel of percentage allocation and audied cost Inputs
udgement identified in to establish whether the amounts capitalised
are accurate

= identifying which ¢osts, based on their nature,
should be capitalised into inventory rather than
expensed
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Key augu, matter

pe af out ¥ marter

Key ohzervamans

Cost capitalisation of overheads continued

* Determining the proporuon of Planning, Design,
Commercial, Canstruction and Health & Safety
casts incurred i bringing the inventaries ta thew
present location and condiion as per IAS 2
‘Imentones’

The judgement above Impacts the carrying

value of inventory in the Consolidated Staterment of
Financial Positton and the gross margin recognised
on each apartment sold

Shared equity receivables

Refer ta page 84 (Report of the Risk and Augit
Commuttee), pages 128 and 129 (Critical accounting
Judgements and key sources of estmation uncertanty)
and page 136 (financil statement disclostires)

During the year the Group offered shared equity
based arrangernents Lo buyers The present value
of total shared equity recevables as at 31 August
201745 £28 Sm (FY16 £29 3my Of this amouit,
£193m (FY16 £18 9m) was attributable ta the New
Shared Equity Scheme

The Group’s assessment and supportng calculanion
of the New Shared Equity Scheme 1s dependert

an a number of assurnptions, which are inherently
Jjudgemental due to therr forward-looking nature
Key assumpticns include

Property price projections
Expected matunty date

Discount rate

New build discounts and property
sdle premums

The above assurnptions are dependent an
management’s abiity (o estimate market actmicy,
future rrends and fluctuatons Changes to these
assumptions could result n a material change

in the value of the recevatile recogmsed within

the Consolidated Starement of Firancial Position
and the assocated movements recarded n the
Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive income

We crincally assessed the accuracy of the mnputs
and the reasonableness of the assumptions
apphed n the Group's fair value model of the
New Shared Equity Scheme Our work involved
the following

Assessing the design and implementaton
of relevant controls over the determinatian
of the assumptions apphed

Consulting with our incernal Real Estate
spectalists to challenge the rates and
methodologes applied through companson
with the market

Qbtaning relevant sector data (e g Office for
Nauonal Statstics and the latest indices) to
challenge the reascnableness of house price
nfianon and new puwld prermiums

Performing tests of detad to assess the
integrity of inputs and recalculate the relared
far value adjustrments

Performing sensitivity analysis over the
assumptions both indmdually and collecuvely ta
understand whether materia! differences arrse
as aresult of changes I these assumptions

Comparing the cash receved on redemprion
during the year as an indicator of whether
carrying value reflacts faw value

Checking the mecharmical accuracy of the fair
value calcuiation and assessing the adequacy of
adisclosure In the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of 1AS1
‘Presentation of Financal Statements’

We dud nat identify
any 1ssues to
report in the
course of our work
Accordingly we are
sausfied as to the
regsonableness
ofthe carrying
valuation of shared
equny recenables
recognsed
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Qur application of materiality

We gefine materrahity as the magnitude of misstatement in the finanoial statements that makes 1t protable that the econormuc
deasions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influences We use materiabty both in planning the scope
of aur audit work and in evaluaung the results of our work

Sased on our professional jJudgement, we determined matertality for the Group financial statements as a whole to be £4 6m
which is based on 5% of pre-tax profit for the year

Pre-tax profil nas been cnosen as the basis for materiality as this 1s the measure by which stakeholders and the marker assess the
wader performance of the Group

We determine performance matenabty at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undefected misstatements excead the materality for the financial staterments as a whole Group performance mateniality
was set al £3 2m (FY16 £3 &m), representing 70% of Group materiality for the 2017 audit

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Cormnmittee that we would report to the Cornmittee all sudit differences in excess of £0 2m
(FY16 £0 3m), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitagve grounds We also
report 1o the Risk and Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we dentfied when assessing the overall presentation of the
firancial staternents

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group has cperations across the United Kingdom, split petween three geographic divisions and nine regional offices.
All subsidiaries of the Group are managed from the head office in Bournemouth and are subect (o a common congrol
ervirgnment Qur Group audit was scoped by cbtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including
Group-wide controls, and assessing the nisks of material misstaternent at the Group level

Based on that assessment, we focused our audit scope on the four largest entities in the Group McCarthy & Stone pic, McCarthy
& Stone {Developments) Limited, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited and McCarthy & Stone {Extra Care Living)
Limited These entines represent the principal entities and account for 98% (FY16 98%) of the Group's net assets, 100% (FY16
100%) of the Group's revenue and 98% (FY16 98%) of the Group's profit before tax. They were alsg selected ta provide

an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work (o address the risks of material misstatement identtfied above

2% 2%

Profit Net
before tax assets

Revenue

® Full audit scope ® Full sudit scope ® Full audit scope
& Specfied audit procedures ® Speofied audst procedures ® Specified audit procedures

Qur aucht work on these entibies was executed at levels of materiality applicable to each indnsdual Company ranging from £3 5m
to £4 1m which were lower than Group matenality

We have performed an audit of select account balances on McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited and
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited and desktop review pracedures over highly immaterial subsidiaries

Al the Parent entity level we also tesied the ronsolidation process and carnied out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant risks of matenal misstatement of the aggregated financial nformation of the remaining components
net subject 1o audit or audit of specified account balances

The Group audit 1s performed centrally and includes coverage of all nine regional offices within the Group As pait of our audit we

wistt a sample of three regional offices each year on a rotavenal basis with reference to size and complexity among cther factors
The purpose of these visics 15 to conduct procedures over selected controls that are In place at each regional office
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Independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Other infarmation
The Directors are responsibie for the other 'nformation The other information comprises the informaton included m
the Annual Report, other thar the finandat statements and our auditor’s repart thereon

Our opinion on the finanaai statements does nat cover the other Information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our auditor's report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with cur audit of the financial statements, our responsibibty 1s to read the other infarmatcn and, :n doing so,
consider whether the other information 1s mater.ally nconsistent with the financral statements or our knowledge oibtained
In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially rmisstated

If we identify such material Inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a matenai misstatement of the ather information If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a8 matenal misstatement of this gther information, we are
required to report that fact

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report to you as uncorrected material misstatements of the othen
information Include where we conclude that

= Fair, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report and Finanaal

Staternents taken as a whole 1s fair, balanced and undersiandable ang prowdes the information necessary for shareholders

10 assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, s materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in

the audit

Risk and Audit Commitiee reporung  the secuon describing the work of the Risk and Audit Committee daes not

appropnately address matters communicated by us to the Committee

= Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts of the Directors’ statement required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code contaimng provisions
specified for review by the auditor in accardance with Listing Rute 9 8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Responsibilities of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Drrectors are responsible for the preparaton of the
finanaial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine 18 necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free rom material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error

in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as apphcable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounung unless the Directors either intend to kquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, of have no
realistic alternative but to de so

Auditor's responsibillties for the audit of the financlal statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale are free from matertal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that Includes our opinion Reasaonable assurance
1s @ high level of assurance, but 1s not a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with [5As (UK) wilf always detect a
material misstatement when 1t exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error ang are considered matenial f, indiwvidually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economuc decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements A further description of our responsibriities for the audit of the finanaial statements is located on
the Finanaial Reporung Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our
auditor's repert

Use of our report

This report 1s made salely to the Company's members, 35 a body, tn accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we right state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
o state to themt in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, of far the opmions we have formed

186 McCarthy & Stone plc



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPQRATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions an other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

I our cpinen the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repoit to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006

In eur opinian, based on the work undertaker in the course of the audit

» The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
* The Strategic Repart and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with apphicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the Parent Company and their enviranment obtained i
the course of the audit, we have not idenufied any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired ta report ta yau if, in our opinion

« We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audic
= Adequate accountng records have not been keot by the Parent Company, or returns adequate ‘or our audif nave not been

recerved from branches not visited by us
» The Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounung recards and returns

We nave nothing to reportinrespect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are also required 16 report «f in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration
have ot been made or the part of the Girectars’ Remuneration Report (o be audited 1s not it agreement with the accounting

records and returns
We have nothing [o repart IN respect of these rmatlers

Other matters

Auditor tenure
Followng the recornmendation of the Risk and Audit Commrmittee, we weare appointed Dy the sharenolders on 25 January 2017

to audit the finanaial statements for the year ending 31 August 2017 The period of total uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is 9 years covering the years ending 31 August 2009 to 31 August 2017

Consistency of the audit report wilh the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additicnal report to the Risk and Audit Commattee we are required to provide in

accordance with 1SAs (UK}

G €112

Gregory Cuishaw ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

13 November 2017
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Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 August 2017

2007 2016
Notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 660.9 635.3
Cost of sales {530.2) (499 5}
Gross proflt 130.7 1364
Other operating income B 89 85
Administrative expenses (32.8) 447}
Cther operating expenses {6.6) {5.1}
Operating profit 94.2 951
Amartisation 2.1 {2.1)
Exceptional admiristrative expenses [} - {100y
Undertying operating profit 96.2 1072
Finance Income 9 1.6 27
Finance expense 10 3.7 {49)
Profit before tax ] 921 929
Income tax expense n (17N {19 4}
Prafit for the year from continuing operations and total comprehensive income 74.4 735
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 74.2 731
Non-controling interest 0.2 04
44 735
Notes 1 to 34 form part of the finanaal statements shown above All trading derves from continuing operatons
Earnings per share
Basic (p per share} 32 13.8 139
Diluted (p per share} 12 13.8 139
Adjusted measures
Underlying operaung profit & 96.2 1072
Underlying profit before tax 6 94.1 105.0
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

As at 31 August 2017/

CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017 016
Notes £m Em
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 41.7 a1.7
Intangible assets T4 276 296
Property, plant and equipment 15 24 29
Investments in joint ventures 17 04 0.4
Investment properties 0.2 0.2
Trade and other receivables 15 321 327
Total non-current assets 164.4 1075
Current assets
Inventories 18 760.4 6858
Trade and other recevables 19 9.5 7.5
Cash and cash equivalents 28 407 119.0
Total current assets 810.6 8123
Total assets 915.0 9198
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Share capital 25 43.0 43.0
Share premium 26 1016 100.8
Retained earnings 6001 533.5
Equity attributzhble to owners of the Company 744.7 697.3
Non-controllng interests 1.0 8}
Total equity 745.7 6981
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 85.4 98.7
UK corporation tax 6.7 84
Short-term borrowings 23 - .3
Land payables 22 67.4 49.3
Total current liabilities 159.5 162.7
Noh-current liabifities
Lang-term borrowings 23 8.0 52.5
Deferred tax hiabihity 20 1.8 15
Total llabilities 169.3 7
Total equity and liabilities 915.0 919.8
Nates 1 to 34 form part of the finanaal staternents shown above
These finanaal statements were approved by the Board on 13 November 2017 and signed on its behalf by
Clive Fenton Rowan Baker
Director Director
I
4
NA% A
j'\”tﬂl ‘ &(‘J \'L)
z .
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Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 August 2017

Non-
Share Share  Retained (ontro\l!on; Total
capital  premium  sarmings Total interest aquity
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 September 2015 38141 564 1043 5418 07 5425
Profit for the year - - 731 731 04 735
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 731 7131 04 735
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Issue of ordinary shares 49 1048 (19.4) 903 0.3) 90.0
Capital reduction of share capital and share premium {343.00 (56.4) 3994 - - -
Share-based payments Eil - - 15 15 - 15
Share 1ssue related costs - 4.0) - {4.0) - (4.0}
Dwvidends - - (5.4) {5.4) - (5.4)
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 1008 5535 6973 0.8 6989
Profit for the year - - 742 742 02 744
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - - 742 742 02 744
Transactians with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments k2l - - 09 0.9 - 0.9
Dwidends 25 - - (285) (28.5) - (28.5)
Share 1issue related costs - tax credit - 0.8 - 0.8 - 0.8
Balance at 31 August 2017 43.0 1016 6001 7447 1.0 745.7

Notes ¥ to 34 form part of the inancial statements shown above
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Consolidated

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2017

2017 016
Notes £m £m
Nat cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities 28 (3.8) 183
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (0.7} (1.5)
Burchases of intangibie assets 0.4} (0.9
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment o4 o1
Net cash used in investing activities 1.m 18}
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share 3pital - 86 C
Repayment of long-term borrowings (45.0) (35.0)
Diwidends pand {28.5) 54
Net cash {used in} / from Knancing activities {73.5) 456
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (78.3) 62.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 119.0 569
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 40.7 119.0

Nates 1 to 34 form part of the financial statements shown above
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Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies i
The principal accountng palicies applied in the preparation of these consclidated financial statements are set out below
These palicies have been consistently apphied o all the years presented, urless otherwise stated

Basis of preparatian

McCarthy & Stome plcis 3 Company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act The Group financial staternents
consohdate those of the Company and Its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and nclude the Group's Interest N
jontly controlled entities The Parent Company finanaal statements present information about the Company as 8 separate entity
and not about the Group

The Group financial staternents have beer prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with Internanoral Financial
Reportng Standards as adapted by the European Union (EUIFRS') and nave been prepared under the historcal cost convention
as modified by finane al assets and financial habilities (ncuding dervattve Instruments) at fair value through profit or loss

Going concern

The Group maets its day-to day working capital requirements through cash in hand and s bank faclkues The Group's ferecasts
and projections, taking Into account reasonably possitle changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to
operate within the level of its current faciiitiés After making endquines, the Diwrectors have a reasonable expectaucn that the Group
has adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future The Group therefare conunues to adopt
the going concern basis in prepaning its financial staterments Further nfarmauion on the Group's borrowings 1S given in note 23

Basis of consolidation

The comsolidated financial statements incorporate the results of the Company and 1ts subsidianes For the purposes of
consoldation, subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating polices
s0 as to obtain benefits from its activities

Where necessary, adiustments are made 10 the financial statements of subsidianes to pring the accounting policies used Inla line
with those Used by the Group All ntra-Group transactions, balances, mcome and expenses are eiminated in full on consclidation

Non-contraling interests in subsidiaries are idenufied separately from the Group's equity thelen The interests of nan-controlling
shareholders may inmally be measured at fair value or at the nen-controling inerests’ propartionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets The choice of measurement I1s made on an acquisition-oy-acquisition basis Subseguentto
acguisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the ameunt of those Interests at yniual recognition plus the
non-controling mterests’ share of subsequent changes in eguity

Goodwill

Goodwill arising In a business cominatien s recogmised as an assel at the date that control is attaned (the acquisition date)
Goodwili 15 measured as the excess of the surn of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controfing imeresi in the
acquires and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest (if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisivon-date
amounts of the identfiable assets acquired and the liabihties assumed

Goodwill s nor amartsed but s reviewed for impairmient at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill

15 aliocated to the Group's cash-generating umit (CGUY expected to benefit from synergies ansing from a business combination
The CGU to which goodwill has been attnbuted is tested for /mpairment annuatly, or more frequently when there s an indication
that the CGU may be impaired 1f the recoverable amourt of the CGU 15 less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the impairment
loss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the umit
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset i the CGU

Revenue recegnition
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received of receivable and represents amounts recenvable for goods
suppiied stated net of discounts, rebates, VAT and ather saies taxes or duty

The Group recogrises revenue when all the followng conditions are satsfied

+ The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods

» The Group retains neither conanuing Managerial involvement ta the degree usually assoctated with ownership nor effective
contral over the goods sold

The amount of revenue can be measured rehably

It 15 probable that the ecanomic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity

+ The costs ncurred or to be mcurred w1 respedt of the transaction can be measured relizbly
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1. Significant accounting policies contnued

Revenue recognised in the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income but nat et invoiced 15 held on the Consolidated
Statement of Financ:al Position within Trade and other recervablas’ Revenue nvoiced but not et recogrised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income 1s helo on the Consolidated Statement of Financiat Positior within ‘Deferred revenue’

Revenue is classified as follows

Unit sales

Revenue represents the consideratien recerved from the sale or leasehold interests i retirement apartments and freehoid
rterests in houses, cottages and bungalows and 1s recognised on legal completion Where the Group commuts on complesion
to provide an additional cash amount above an offer given by a third-party part-exchange provider, this additional cash
amoeunt s recogrised as 3 deduction from revenue Cash incentives are considered ta be 3 discount from the purchase price
offered to the acquirer and are therefore accounted for as a reduction of revanue

Freehold reversionary interests ('FRIs’) and house manager flat freehold interests ["HMFIs')
FRIs and HMPFs in respect of developed sites are periodically sokd zo third parfies Revenue anising from these saies 1s
recogmised only to the extent that the underlying teasehold interest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sclg

Other operating income
Other operating ncome includes Managemenl Seivices income, net rental income, profits arising fram the disposal of
undeveloped land sites, VAT refunds and profits ansing from the realisation of shared eguity recelvables

Finance income
Revenue is recogrused as Interest accrues, using the effective interest rate method, being the rate used to discount the
estimated future cash receipts aver the expected hfe of the financial instrument

Cost of sales

Costs directly atrributable ta the unit sales are inciuded within cost of sales This includes the cost of bringing the mventory
Ntc use and regional marketing costs that are directly atiribtable 1o sales, including show flar runming costs and estate agent
referral fees

The gain or loss arising on the sale of part-exchange properties are not ncluded In revenue and are recordes as a reduction 1o
cost of sales as they are seen as a sales incentive

Build-related rebates are recarded as a reduction to cost of sales

From 1 September 2016, the Group has refined its esttmate of Lnit cost wher units are sold and the cast 1s released into the
Cansolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income  Cost of sales 1s now recognised on & uri-by-unit basis, by reference to the
forecast future margin across the development The rnpact of the change in estrmate on gross profit and inventory for the year
ended 31 August 201715 an increase of £41m (0 8% of cost of sales) being a 0 6% increase to gross margin

Exceptional items

Exceptional iterns are defined as items of incorne or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material, non-recurring
and unusualin nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure Exciusion of these balances allows review of
the underlying trading position of the Group These are detailled further in note 6

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanually all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straght-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakehokder retirement benefit scheme

Areurement benefit scheme 1s a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fied cortributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation 1o pay further amounts Obligations for contributions to benefit schemes are
recogrised as an expense in the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the years during whicn services are
rendered by employees
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting poHcies conunued
Taxation
Incame tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Current tox

Tax currently payable 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxabie profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income because It excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and 1t fur ther excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s lability for
current tax 1s calculated LsINg tax rates that have been enacted or subsiantively enacred by the year end

Deferred tox

Deferred tax s the tax expected (o be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amouns of assers and
lhabihties in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and 1S
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogrised 1o the extent that 1t s probabie tha raxable profits will be
avaliable against which deductble temparary differences can be utlised Such assets and habilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference anses from the iniwal recogniuon of gaodwill or from the inital recogmtion (other than in a business
cambinanon} of other assets and habilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arsing on nvestments in subsidiaries, where the
Group s unable to control the reversat of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse In the foreseeable future

The carnying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporung period and reduced ta the extent that
115 ne langer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aflow alt or part of the asset to be recovered m the
foresesabie futue

Deferred (ax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the pernod when the lability 1s settled or (he asset
5 realised Dased on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the year end Deferred tax is charged or credited nthe
{Consolidated Staternent of Cormprehensive Income, except when it relates (@ items charged or credited in other
comprehensive income, i which case the deferred taxis alsa dealt with in other comprehensive incame

Deferred rax assets and habiities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tex assets against
current tax labilities and when they relate 1o incame taxes levied by the same taxation authorny and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

Tangible and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Praperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less sccumulated deprectation and any recogrised Impairment 10ss

Depregatron is recognised $o as to write off the cost of assets less ther residual value over their useful lives, using the
straight-ine method, on the {ollowing bases

Fixtures, fitings and equipment 3-10years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recagrised 1 income on the transfer of the nisks and rewards of ownership

The Grewp has no dass of tangible fixed asset that has been revaived On transition to IFRS the net pook values recorded a
1 September 2012 have been apphed and these are based on historic cost or farr value recognised at the date of acquisition

intangible assets - brand

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost Brands have a finite useful Iife and are carnied at cost less accumulated
amortisation Amartrsation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over their useful ives, estimated at
20 years
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1. Significant accounting pelicies contnued
Internally-generated intangible assets - research ond develfopment expenditure
Costs assoclated with maintaimng computer sofiware programmes are recognised as an expense & mcurred Development
Cos(s that are drectly attributable to the design and westing of identifiable and urigue sofrware products controlled by the
Graup are recogrised as miangible assets when all the following criteria are met

» It s technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use
* Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it
= Tnere s an abifity 1o use or self the software praduct
= {tcan be demonstrated how the software praduct will generate probable future economic benefits
*  Adeguate technical, financial and ather resources ta complere the development and to use or sefl
the software product are available
= The expenditure actributable to the software product dunngits development can be reliably measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitahsed as part of the software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overbeads

Other development expenditure that does not meet these critena is recognised as an expense as incurred Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent year

Computer software development costs recagnised as assets are amartised over therr estirmated useful ves, which do mot
exceed ten years

Development expenditure relating to sofiware nas been capitaised and is detaded in rote 14 to ine financial statements

Impairment of tongible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

AL each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the carrying amounts of Its tangibre and intangible assets to determine
whether there 1s any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such mdication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is esumated (o deterrmine the extent of the imparrment loss {f any) Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amaunt of the CGU
to which tne asset belongs

Recoverable amount s the higher of () fair value less costs to sell, and (1} value In use In assessing value in use, the
estimared future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of maney and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of fture cash flows have
not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) s esbmated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amouni of the
asset {or CGU)1s reduced 1o 1ts recoverable amount Animparrment loss 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset s carned at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease o the
extent that the revaluabion balance 1s greater than the impairment loss

Joint ventures
The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with other parties which represent joint ventures These take the form
of agreement to share control over these entities jomnt ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

The Group Cfassifies Its interests in joint arrangerments as erther joint operations (if the Group has rights to the assets, and
obhgations for the liebiities, relaung to an arrangement) or joint ventures (if the Group has rights only to the net assets of an
arrangement) When rmaking this assessment, the Greup considers the structure of the arrangements, the legal form of any
separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements and other facts and arcumstances

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct materials and, where apphicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the Inventones to ther present locayon and condition
The cost of sites n the course of construction and fimshed stock comprises the cost of land purchases, which are accounted

for from the date of contract exchange, when the Group obtains the effective control of the site, building costs and attributable
construction overheads Net reahsable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution, completion and disposal

Part-exchange properties are stared at far value, established by iIndependent surveyors, less a provision for costs 1o sell

Lard nventores and the assocated land payabies are recognised in the Consciidated Statement of Finanaal Posivon from
the date of unconditional exchange of contracts Where, through deferred purchase credit terms, cost differs from the nominal
amount which will be paid i settling the deferred purchase terms Lability, the intial cost of the land 15 discounted 1o fair value
The land payable 15 then increased to settlernent value over the period of financaing, with the financing element being charged
to the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a finance cost
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Naotes to the Consolidated Finandial Statements continued

1. Significant accounting palicies contmued

Options purchased in respect of land are capitalised inally at the cost ofthe oprion Regular reviews are completed for
tmpairment in the vaive of these optuons and provisions made accordingly Lo reflect loss of value The impairment reviews
consider the period elapsed since the date of purchase of the optian given that the option cortract has not been exercised at

the review date Furthermore, the impairment reviews consider the remaireg Iife of the optian, L2king Nty account any Goncerns
over whether the temaining bme will allow successful exercise of the option The carrying cost of the option at the date of exercrse
15 Included within the cost of land purchased as a result of the option exercise

Expendtiure on land without the benefit of detailed planning consent, either through purchase of freehold land or non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to detalled planmirig consent, are capitalised intially at cost Regular reviews,

are completed for impairment in the vaiue of these investments, and provision made to reflect any irrecoverable elerment The
impairment reviews consider the existing value of the and and assess the kkelihood of achieving detalled planming consent and
the value thereof

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalerits comprise cash and short-cerm bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
net of cutstanding bank overdrafts

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Ananaal Position when the
Group becomes a party 10 the tontractual provisions of the Instrument

Financial assets

Allfinanciat assets are normally recogrised and derecogrised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where the
purchase or sale of a financial asset s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the finanaal ssset within the timeframe
estabhshed by the market concerned They aremvally measured at fair vahue plus Iransacuion costs, except for those finanaial
assets classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at far value

Financial assets are classifred into the following specified categonies financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' (FYTPL),
‘held-ro-matunty’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ {AFS) firanciat assets and ‘loans and receivables’ The dassificanon depends
an the nature and purpase af the financial assets and < determined at the tme of rugial recagneitan The Group held ng financal
assets dassified as held-to-maturity ar AFS guring the reporting perigds presented heremn

The effective interest method 1s a methad of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest Ncome
over the relevant periad The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash receipts (induding all
fees and pomnts pard ar received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premums or
discounts) through the expected Iife of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
oniniuial recognition

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt nstruments other than those financial assets classified as at FYTPL
Classes of financial asset

Financial assets at FVTPL
Pinanciat assets are classified as at FYTPL when the financial asset s either heid for trading or s designated as at FYTPL

Afinanciat asset 1s dassified as held for trading if

= lthas been acquired principally for the purpose of sefling in the near term

*  Onnitial recognition 1115 a part of a partfalio of iderbfied financial nstruments that the Graup manages wgether
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-iaking

* Itisadenvative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A finanoiat asset other than a finanaal asset held for rading may be designated as a1 FYTPL upon initial recognition if

= Suchdesignation eliminates or significantly reduces @ measurement o recognition iNconsistency that would
atherwise arise

* The financal asset forms partof a group of financial assets or financiat habiktes or both, which s managed and its
pesformance is evaluated on a far value basis, n arcordance wih the Group's dotumented nsk management or
invescment strategy and information abaut the grouping s provided internally on that basts

+ [tforms part of a contract containing one or more embedded dervatves and 1AS 39 Financial instruments
Recognition and Megsurement” permits the entire combined contract {asset or habuliny) to be designated as at FYTPL

126 McCarthy & Stone gl



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Significant accounting policies continued
Firancial assets at FYTPL are stated at fair value, with any gaims or losses arising on re-measurement recagnised in profit or
loss The net gain or loss recogmsed in profit of 053 Incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the finanoal asser and
18 included i the other operating income line 'tarm in the Consohdated Statermnent of Comprehensive Income Fair value 1s
determined in the manner described in nate 30

The Group uses derivative financial :nstruments te reguce exposure 1 INGEresr rate movements The Group does ot 1ssue
or hold dervative financial nstruments for speculative purposes

Shared equity receivables

Shared equity interests anse from sales incentive scharnes under which the Group acquires a contractual entilerment to recewe
a proporuon of the proceeds of sale of an apartment These interests are normally protected by a legal charge over the relevant
apartment andsor a restriction on tle

The value of the shared equity recevaples changes in response to an underlying vaiiable and therefore 1s accounted for as a
dervative The shared equity recewvables are 'nitially recognised at fair value, being the estimated future amount recevable by
tne Group, dscounted to presentvaie The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes irto account the Directors’ view
of future house price moverrents and the expected timing of recepts The Directors revisit the future anticpated cash receipts
from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the anocioated future receiprand the imual far vatue 1s
credited ta finance iIncome/expense

Loans and receivables

Trade recetvabies, loans and other recervables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted it an acove
market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effecoive
nterest method, less any imparment Interest income Is recognised by applying the effective mterest rate except for
shortterm receivaioles when the recogniticn of interest would be rmmaterial

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and eguity instruments are classified as ether financal iabiities or as equity i accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity Instrument s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an enuty after deducting all of its habilittes
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct Issue costs

Financial liabilities
Finanaal iabilities are classified as 'other financal labines’

Other financial ahilities
Other finanaal habilities, including borrowings, are inmally measured at fair value, net of Iransaction costs

Cther finanaal habilites are subsequently meesured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with ntersst expense
recegnised on an effective yield basis

The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cosi of a firancial lzbiity and of ailocaung interest expense
over the relevant periad The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts esomated future cash payments through the
expecied lie of the financial iability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, ta the net carrying ameount on initial recogniion

Land-related promissory notes
Land-refated promussory notes are treated as finanaal habilities and are classified as land credreors or borrowings depending on

the substance of the contractual arrangerments

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the far value at the date at which they are
granted and Is recagnised as an expense pver the vesting period Invaluing equity-settted transactions, no account 15 taken of
any non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense is recagnised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a
faiture to satisfy a non-market-based vesurig condiion

The cost of cash-settled rransacuans 1s measured ar far value Fair vafue 1s esumated intally at the grant date and at each
reporting period end thereafter until the awards are settled Market-based conditions are taken inta account when determining

farr value

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in note 31
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Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements continued

2. Qutlook for adoption of future standards (new and amended)
There have not been any new standards and amendments adopted for ihe first ume for the finanoal year ending 31 August 2017

At the gate of approval of the financial statements, the “olfowing standards and wterpretations wiich have not been applied by

the Group In Ihe finannig) statements were 1n Issue Dut not yer effective {and 1n some cases had not yet been adopied by the EL)

» IFRS 9 ‘Anancial instruments' was issued in final formincorperanng the impairment, classification and measurernent requirements
1 July 2014 and 15 scheduled to replace IAS 39 ‘Fnoncal Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ far the Group from

1 Septemper 2018 The Group conunues to assess the Impact and application of the new standard However, we do not currently
expect the standard to have a matenal impact on our reported resulis and finanual positian

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Custormers’ was issued in May 2014 and amended 1n September 2015 This standard sets out
reguirements far revenue recognition from contracts with customers under a five-step model to apportion revenue against
performance obligauons within a contract The Group continues 1o assess the impact of the standard and has wdentified two key
areas, part-exchange properties ang FRI revenue, where the standard wall impact the nming of recogrition and presertation

of balances in the financial statements

Part-exchange properties - Currently under [AS 18 Revenve’ the inceme and casts assooiated with part-exchange properues

are recogrised on a net basis within cost of sales Under IFRS 'S the reguirement will be to present the non-¢ash constderation
recaived from a customer within revenue measured at fair value The subsegquent sale of the property receved from the
customer in part-exchange will be accounted for a5 a separate ceniract, with the revenue and costs being recognised in other
operaung ncome and expenditure The netimpact an the Graup for FY17 € IFRS 1% was adopted would be a decrease to cost of
sales of £1 0m and ret decrease i gther income of £10m

FRi revenue - Under the Group's current accounung pohcy, revenue ansing from the sale of FRis vecognised only o the extert
that the underlying leasenhcld interest in the retrement spartment has been contraciually sold Under the new iFRS 15 standard,
revenue would ikely be recognised at the point of sale to the third party This would accelerate the recognitian of reverue and
elminate the deferred income balance currently held on the balance sheet

The full 'mpact of this change on reverue and margins 15 still being assessed by the Group

The above items will have no impact on the Group's cash flows This standard wil be applcabie to the Group from 1 September

2018

IERS 16 Leases was publishied i lanuary 2016 and is expected to be effecuve far the Group from 1 September 2019 This standacd
1s a replacement of the current leases standard IAS 17 teases’ and brings significant changes to the accounting of leases by
fessees IFRS 16 requires the recogniion of a ‘nght-of-use’ asset and a corresponding lease hability or the Balance Sheet of the
lessee In the Income Statement, the exisiing operating lease changes, the majonity of which 15 currently recogrised within
operating profit, wilt be replaced by 3 depreciation charge against the 'nght-of-use’ asset Additionally there will be an interest cost
in relavon to the lease iabiity which will be recognised within finance costs The IASB has inchuded an opuonal exempton, for
lessees, for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, hewever, this exemnprion can only be applted by lessees The
impact this standard will have on the Group continues ta be assessed However, we do not currently expect the standard 1o have
2 matenal impact on our reported results ard financial position

= Amendments ta 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows” was ssued In Jarwary 2016 and will be applicable to the Group from 1 September
2017 The Amendment requires enhanced disclosures of changes i finanong habiiues

Arnendments 101FRS 11 Acgusitions of interests in Jowtt Cperations’

Amendments to |AS 16 Property, Plart and Eguipment’ and 1AS 38 Intangible Assets’

Amendments to tAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Equity Method in Separate Finonciol Statements’

Amendments (o IFRS 10 and 1A5 28 ‘Saile af Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate of foint Venture”

Amendments ta IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’

Annual improvements to IFRS 2072 - 2014 Cile

The potential impact of the above standards and interpretations 15 still being assessed by the Group

3. Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the applicabion of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estmates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habihties that are not readily apparent from other sources
The estimates and assecated assumptions are based on histoncaf expenience and other factors thar are considered to be relevant
AcCtual results may differ from these estmates

The estrraies and underying assumpiions are reviewed on ar oNEoE Hasis Revisions 10 actounting estmates are recognised
n the period 10 which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that period, or i the peniod of the rewsion and future
periods if the revision affects both current ang future periods

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

Na cnincal judgments have been made in the pracess of apphang the Group's accounting palicies thathave a matenal effect on the
amowunts recognised in the iinanaial statements
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

The follawing are assurmptions the Group makes about the future, and other major sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a sigrficant risk of resultng in a material adjustrent to the carrying amounts of assers
and habilines at the year end and within the next financeal year

Fair value of shared equity receivables
Shared equity recevables are recogrised ai the fair value of future anbaipated cash receiprs that takes into account the
Directors view of an approprate discount rare, a new buld premium, future house price movements and the expected

uming of receipls

Shared equity recenvables are reviewed at each reporting date using & varrety of estiimates that anucipate future cash flows
from the assets Further informat on regarding the assumptions and sensiuvity effects of a reasonabie possible change can

be seen within note 3G

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Imventory mcludes a proparior of design, procurement, construction, healtn & safety, commeroal and planning costs
Costs assocated with these functions are réviewed by management to atiibute thase costs relaung directly 7o the cost
of the developrrents to Irventary and those [hat relate (o general business averheads Lo expenses The assumplions
used are reviewed annually by the function heads before baing propased to the Risk and Audrt Comemitiee

Cost capialisation involves estimates of the propartion of costs that are directly attnbutable te sites The key source of
esmation uncertainty in this area relates to the percentage of tme spent by our regrons on directly attributaile site
actvities The percentage of their tirme which s capitalised ranges betweer 70-93% for the vanous functions QOverhead
costs capitalised at 31 August 2017 amount te £23 2m (2016 £257m)

Change of estimate
rom 1 September 20716, the Group refineo its #stimate of unit cost when urits are sold and the cost 1s released (o the

Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive income  Cost of sales 1s now recogrised or a unit-by-unit basis, by reference (o the
farecast future margin across the developmery The impact of the change i estimate on gress profit and mventory for the year
ended 31 August 2017 1s an increase of £4.1m (¢ 8% of cost of sales)

4. Revenue

Continuing operations

Year ended 31 August
2017 2016
£m £m
Unit sales 631.8 608.2
FRIrevenue 291 227
660.9 635.9

All unit sales revenue arose from the sale of properues and 1s atirntbutable to continuing operat:ors All revenue was generated
within the UK Noindiedual customer 15 signficant to the Group's revenue in any period All reveriue 1s explained within note 1

Sroceeds received on the disposal 6f part-exchange properuves, which are not included in revenue, were £11 6m (2016 £ni)
These are recognised on a net basis within cost of sales on the basis that they are incidental to the main revenue-generating
activites of the Group The net profit on disposal of these properues was £0 1m {2016 £nil}

5. Segmental analysis

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ estabilishes standards for reporung information about eperating segments and related disclasures,
products and services, geographic areas and major customers Operatng segments are compoenents of an enterprise about
which separate financial information s avallable that 1s evaluated regularly by the chief operatng deasion-maker in deciding

how 1o allocate resources and in assessing performance

The Group conducts its acuvities through a single operating segment Consequently, no detailed segment nformation has
been presented

None of the Group's customers repiesented mere than 10% of she Group's revenue generated from the buitdirg of retirement
apartments for any reporung perod presented herein
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6. Profit before tax
Profit before tax has been arrived ar after chargingd(crediting)

Contuiumg operations
“aar endet 31 August

w7 6
Notes £m £m
Amortisatron of intangihles 14 24 2s
Depreaation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 1
Operating lease rental expense 27
Land and buldings 14 a3
Ptant and machinery 2.5 2.3
Cost of inventories recagnised as an expense 4571 4360
Staff costs 7 92.6 730
Change in fair value of derivatives - 0.3
Share-based payments charge ta prafit and loss 31 a3 1.5
Movemnent in inventary provision {including part-exchange properties) 1.2 {03}

Reconciliation to underlying operating grafit and profit before tax
The following tables present a reconcitation between the statutory profit measures disctosed on the Consolidated Statement
of Comprenensive Inceme and the underlying measures used by the Baard to appratse perfarmance

Exceptional wems are tems which, dup to their one-off, non-trading and non-recurming naiure, have been sepafately Classvied
by the Directors in order to draw them to the attention of the reader

Adjusted cost items are items which are materral and are presented separately within the Consoiidated Stacermnent of
Comptehensive Income The Directors are of the opinion that the separale presentation of these lems provides neipful
information about the Group’s underlying business performance Amorusanon of biand has been adjusted in order (o recorcile
the underlying operating profit and urderlying profit before tax given the Directors do nat beheve these costs reflect the
underlying trading of the business

Exceptiorals Excepnional  Agjusted cost
Administrative Amartsation
Statutory costs ot Drard Underyng
Year ended M August 2017 Nares £m £m £m
Operatng profit 54.2 - 290 96.2
Finance income 9 16 - - 1.6
Finance expense 0 (3.7) - - (3.7)
Profit before tax 921 - 24 84.1
Income tax expense {177) - {0.4} 1a.1}
Profit for the year from cantinuing operations and total
comprehensive income 74.4 - 1.6 76.0
Earnings per share
Basic [p per share) 13.8 - 04 14.2
Diluted (o per share) 13.8 - 0.4 14.2
Exceptional Adjusted cast
Admimistrative  Amortisation
Stawtory costs efbrang Underlying
Year ended 31 August016 Motes im £m £m £m
Dperating profit 95.1 100 FAl 107.2
Finance income 9 27 - - 27
Finance expense 10 {4.9) - - 4.9
Profit before tax 929 10.0 2.1 105.0
Income tax expense (19.4) o7 {0.4) (20 5)
Profit for the year from conbnuing operatons and tota
comprehensive ncome 73.5 9.3 17 84.5
Earmngs per share
Basic [p per share} 13% 18 04 160
Diluted (p per share) 139 18 04 16.1

The exceptional admimsirative ceses in 2016 primanly relate (o the transaction fees and oiher costs of liskng (£8 5my Other costs
recagnised within exceptionals relate to redundancy and restructuring casts (£0 9mj), Management Incentive Plan payments
{ED 4rmy and refinanong and other costs (50 2m)

30 MeCarthy & Stonhu pic



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Profit before tax continued

Auditor's remuneration
Cononuing cperations

Year ended 31 August

2007 2016
£m Em
Fees payable to the Graup's auditor
Annual audit a.2 02
Transaction related audit and advisory Services - 7
0.2 0.9
There were no oTher non-audi fees payahe (0 tha Group’s Juduor iInthe year
Audit fees in relation to joint ventures audited by the Group's auditor were £3,000 (2016 £3,000)
7. Staff costs
Staff costs for the year include Directors emoluments, which are detaied below
Continuing operations
Year ended 31 August
2017 e
£m £m
Wages and salaries £20.4 674
Social security costs 8.0 71
Cther pension costs 2.6 21
Share-based payments 0.9 1.5
Termination payments a7 0.5
92.6 79,0
The average number of persons, induding Execuove Drectors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows
Continuing operatians
‘Year ended 37 August
2017 2016
Number Nurmber
Office management and staff 902 900
House managers 1,024 827
Construction staff 219 211
2,145 1,968
Staff costs include an average of 823 persons employed guring the year from YLMS (2016 679}, a 50% owned subsiciary held
by the Group
At 31 August 2017 the Group employed 2,264 people {2016 2,054)
Directors’ emoluments
Amounts recogrised n respect of Directors’ emoluments
Continuing operations
‘Year ended 31 August
2017 ma
£m £m
Wages and salaries 17 15
Social security costs 0.2 02
Share-based payments 0.3 06
Gther pension costs' 0.2 02
2.4 25
I Includes salary supplements it lieu of pension
The emoluments of the highest pard Director was £10m (2016 £09m), including pension contributions of i (2016 mil)
The number of Directors in the Company pension plan was two (2016 Two)
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8. Other operating income

Continuing cperatians
Year ended 31 August

2017 2016
£m £m
Net reptal income 0.3 [+1.3
Other income 77 59
NOn-core busingess revenue 0.9 21
Land sales profit / (foss) B @n
8.9 85
Qther weome anises an the servides provded by Group subsidianes to manage certan developments Non-core business
revenue relates to other Income swch 3s customer exrras
9. Finance income
Canynulng aperations
Year ended 31 August
7 2016
£m Em
Change in fair vatue of shared equity recevabies 15 25
Interest income received 01 02
1.6 2.7
10. Finance expense Contlnuing operaons
Year ended 31 August
o7 016
£m £
Loans and overdraft fees 31 15
Prormissory note interest and fees 0.1 0.5
Amaorusation of refinanang issue costs 4.5 as
Fair value mavement on interest rate cap - 03
37 4.9
11, Tax
2017 206
Notes £m £m
Corporation tax charges
Current year 177 18.6
Adjustments mrespect of prior years 0.3) {04}
Deferred tax charges
Current year 20 0.3 12
12.7 19.4
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11. Tax contnued
The tax charge for each yaar can be reconciled to the profit per the Consolidated Staterent of Comprenensive Income as fallows

2017 016

£m £m

Profit before tax on contnuing operations 921 929
Tax charge atthe UK corparation tax rate of 19 58% (2016 20.00%; 18.0 186

Tax effect of

Expenses that are not deductible in determeuing taxable profit 0.1 15
Income not taxable In determining taxable profit .1 0.3
Adjustrments in respect of prewious periods 0.3) 0.4}
Share apuons uming difference 0.2 -
Cther reconaling items {0.2} 02)
Tax charge for the year 17.7 19.4

Reductions in the rate of corporation tax to 19% and 18% from 1 Aprl 2017 and 1 April 2020 were substanually enacted

on 18 November 2015 A further reduction in the corporation tax maim rate from 1 April 2020 1o 17% was fully enacted on

15 September 2016 The deferred tax assets and habilities at 31 August 2017 have been calculated based on the appropriate
rate abwhich the asset/hzbidy will unwind

12, Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculared as the profit for the financial penod attributable to shareholders of the Company dided
by the weighted average number of shares nssue during the periad The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares
during the full F\iszar ended 31 August 2017 was 537 3m for the basic and 537 6m for the diluted calculations, gving a statutory
earnings per share for the year ended 31 August 2017 of 13 8p for basic and 13 8p for diluted

aMmy 2016
Profit attributable to shareholders {£m) 74.2 731
Weighted average no. of shares (m} 537.3 h25.6
Basic earnings per share (p) 13.8 139

For dduted earmings per snare, the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue 1S adjusted to assume the conversion of alf
potenuially dilutive ordinary shares At 31 August 2017, the Company had two categories of potentially dilutive ardinary shares
3.9m nif cost share options under the LTIP ang 4 1m 167 4p share opticns under the Sharesave plan

A talculation is dore to determine the number of shares that coldd have been acquired at fair value based on the aggregate of
the exercise price of each share option and the fair value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which 1s the unamorused
share-based payments charge The difference between the number of shares that could have been acquired at far value and the
total number of opricns s used in the diluted earmings per share cakulaticn

2017 016
Profit used to determine difuted EPS (£m) 74.2 731
Weighted average number of shares {m) 537.3 525.6
Adjustments for
Share options - LTIP (m) 0.3 03
Shares used to determine diluted EPS {m) 5376 5259
Diluted earnings per share (p) 13.8 13.9
13. Goodwill
Em
Cost
At 1 September 2015 and 31 August 216 and 2017 1.7
Carrying amount
At 1 September 2015 and 31 August 2016 and 2017 M7

No impairment lossas have been recogrised in any of the reporung periods presented herein

Goodwil arose as a result of an acglusition i 2009 of the assets and habilities of Monarch Realisations 1 ple (in hquidation)
As the goodwill refates 10 the business as a whole, 1t has not been allocated to a specific CGU For key assumptions in determining
recoverable amaunts m goadwill imparment testing, refer to note 16
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14. Intangible assets

Brana Software Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2015 41.4 39 453
Addrtions - 0.4 c4d
At31 August 2016 414 43 457
Additions - 0.4 04
At 31 August 2017 "4 4.7 461
Amortisation
A1 Septermber 2015 (13.2) 0.4 3.8
Charge for the year 21 (0.4} {2.5)
At 31 August 2016 (15.3) {0.8) {161)
Charge for the year {20) o4 24)
At 31 August 2077 (17.3) 1.2} (18.5)
carrying amount
Al 31 August 2016 261 35 296
A4 31 August 2017 247 35 276

Brand assets represent ine Molarthy & Stone brand name purchased as part of the business compmation in 2009
Brand assets have 11 years and 7 months of useful life remaining

Al amaortisation charged 15 recognised in admimistrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

15. Property. plant and equipment

Fixrures
Attirgs and
equlpment Total
£m £m

Cost
At 1 Septernber 2015 60 6.0
Addrtions 1.5 1.5
Disposals 0.3 03)
AL 31 August 2016 72 72
Additions 0.7 07
Disposals [(:hH [GRH
At 31 August 2017 78 78
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment
At1 Sentember 2015 (3.9 {3.94
Charge for the year )] nmn
Elimnated on disposals 0.2 0.2
At 31 August 2016 43 4.3)
Charge for the year (1} ({11
Elmrnated on disposals R R
At 37 August 2007 {5.4) {5.4)
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2016 2.9 2.9
At 31 August 2017 2.4 24

134 McCarthy & Stone plc



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. Impairment testing

During the periads reporied in the financial statements, no impasrments have been recognised against the Group’s assets
For each reporred pertod, managerment have performed an impairment review of goodwll, being an indefirmtely lved asset
Tne Group only has one CGU, being the McCarthy & Stone {Developments) Limited’s business, which was acquired in 2009

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expectec changes
to earnings oefore interest, (ax depreciatior and amortisation (EBITDAY used as a proxy of free cash Tows beyond the budgeted
years as well as the level of capital expenditure required to maintain the existng business mnto the future These assumpnions

are reviewed and rewised annually 'n light of current economic cendiuens and the future outlook for the business Management
estimates discount rates USINg pre-1ax rates that reflect current market assessments of the tme vaiue of money and the nisks
spectic to the business, rates Jsed for 2017 are 70% (2016 8 4%)

The forecast pericd employed in the impairment assessment was three years followed by an assessment of cash flows and
growth ire perpetuity The growth rates used are based gn management’s assessment of the cash flow forecasts aver the
rredium term Due 1o the headroom within the calculation no further growth Fas been assumed within the perpetuity calculaton
These are based on conservalive estimates of the Group's ability fo participate in the growth expected in the iIndustry Changes in
sefling prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of futire changes in the market

Tne value of goodwil recognised in the fnancial statements has been compared to the derved valle In use WIth ng mpairment
charges arising The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the key assumpuions which are matersal wo the impairment
assessment ncluding the discount rate, the cask flow projections and the terrminal growth rate énd concluded na materal
sensitivity exists n these calculatons

No impatrment charges were “ecorded or items of property, plant and equipment throughout the pencd coverea by these
financial staterments

17. Investmentin joint ventures

The Group has 3 50% cwnership interest . Kindle Hausing Limited, which marages affordable housing Kindle Housing Limited
has 100% ownership interest of ordinary shares in each of Kindle Housing (Worthing) Limited, Kindle Housing (Chrnisichurch)
cimited and Kindle Housing {Exeter) Limited, which rent affordable housing to local key worker employees As a result the Group
alsc has a 50% ownership interes: « these companies, all of which are registered in England and Wales

The Group accounts for its interes(s In these companies using the equity method of accouniing,

The share of the assets, 1abilitres, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entities s not material

18, Inventories

w7 2016

£m £m

Land heid for development 148.6 2365
Sites in the course of construction in.2 2010
Finished stock 238.7 248 3
Part-exchange properties 31.9 -
760.4 685.8

Days ininventory amounted to 582 days in 2017 (2016 574 days)

inventory days are calculated by taking year end mventory (excluding part-exchange propertiest dvided by cost of inventories
recogrised as an expense

19. Trade and other receivables

017 2016
£m £m
‘Trade and ather recelvables due in less than one year
Trade receivables 21 15
Other debtars and prepayments 7.4 60
9.5

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 138



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Trade and other receivables contnueg

2017 206
Em im

Trade and other receivables due in greater than one year
Secured morigages 3.2 3.4
Shared equity receivables 28.9 293
32 327

“rade recewables and secured mortgages disclosed above are classified as loans and recevables ant are measured at
amortised cost

The Directars consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other recevables and non-current recenvables approwmates
their fair value

20. Deferred tax
The fallowmng are the major deferced tax kahilites recognised by the Group

Accelerategtax  Other termporary Unirekeved

deprecration differences tax losses Total

£m Em Em £m
At 1 September 2015 - 03 - 0.3
Income staterment tharge - na2 ~ 1na
At 31 August 2016 - (15) - (15)
Income statement charge - {0.3) - (0.3)
At 31 August 2017 - (1.8} - (1.8)

Deferred tax assets are represented by positive values and deferred tax habilites are represented by negative valires n
the table above

Deferred tax assets of £0 1m in relation to capial losses carned forward were not recognised ay there is unceriamty as
to whether these losses could be utiised by the Group onor to expiry (2016 £0 1m) These losses have no expiry date

21. Trade and other payables 2017 016
£m £m

Tracle payables 227 26.8
Other taxes and social security costs 1.9 19
Accrued expenses 42.6 514
Other creditors and deferred income 18.2 18.6
85.4 98.7

Trade payables and accrued expenses principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs
The average credit period taken for trade purchases was 20 days during 2017 (2016 21 days) No matenal interest costs have
been incurred in relation 1o such payables The Group pohcy 15 to ensure that payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit
terms and to avord Incurrng penalties and/or interest on late prayments Other creditors include sales taxes, property taxes,
socid! secunty and employment Laxes due to local tax authonties The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximates thew fair value

No trade payables are purchased on extended payment lerms

22. Land payables 2017 20
£m Em
Land payables 674 49,3

Land payables refate 10 payment due in respect of land which has been purchased under an unconditional con act
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23. Borrowings

i 207 206

Short-term borrowings phid e
Promissory notes - 1.3
2017 2016

Long-term borrowings on e
Loans 10.0 550
Unamortised ssue Costs (2.0} (2.5)
8.0 52.5

Quistandng at 31 August

2017 2016
Maturry £m Em
Revolving Credit Facility May 2021 10.0 55.0

Tre Group has i place a £200m revohang credi faolty (RCF) imually with 2 five-year term maturng December 2019 0 May 2016,
an amendment was Made to the RCF agreement to «mprove the commercial terms and exiend the facility’s maturity date from
19 Decemnber 2019 10 23 May 2021

The nominal nterest rate of the £200m RCF s 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1 6% (2016 1.3 or 6 montn LIBOR + 1 6%) depending on
the length of the drawdown. As at 31 August 2017, £10m (2016 £55m}was drawn The RCF 15 secured by a floatng charge over
the assers of McCafthy & Stone pic, McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited, McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited,
McCarthy & Stone {Extra Care Living) Limited and MeCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Lirmited

24. Net cash

2047 015

Em Em

Loans 8.0 63.7

Add back unamortised 1Ssue costs 2.0 25
Cash and cash equrvalents 40.7) (119.0)
Net cash (30.7) (52 8)
Add back land-related promissory notes - (13}
Met cash excluding land-related promissery notes {30.7) (64.1}

Net cash is a non-GAAP measure and s calculated a5 ¢ash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-term borrowings
(excluding unameortised debx issue costs and land-related promissory notes}

25, Share capital
The Company has one class of ardinary shares which carry no right to fixed income  There 1s no imit io authonsed share capital

. 17 Figla
Altotted and issued ordinary shares 22':;00 £'000
8p each fully paid; 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2016. 537,314,069) 42,986 42,985

" 2017 2016
Allotment of shares during the year Number 000 Nurmber 000
At 1 September 537,314 1,905,550
Issuance of new shares n relation to the Management incentive Plan - 43,707
Consolidation of share capital - (1,461,943}
Issuance of new shares in relation to primary proceeds from the IPO - 50,000
lssuance to satisfy edrly xerases under Sharesave plan 15 -
At 31 August 537,329 537,314

Issuance of new shares in relation to Sharesave ('SAYE") plan

During the year 15,365 ordinary shares were issued to sausfy the early exercise of options under our December 2015 SAYE plan
by seven “good leaver” employees The shares were all 1ssued at 167 4p each, being the exerase price of the SAYE options granted
on 10 December 2015
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25, Share capital continued

Dividends on equity shares

The ntenm drvidend of 1 8p (2016 1 0p) was approved by the Baard on 4 April 2017 and paid on 9 june 2017 to ail ordinary
snareholders an the register of members at the dose of business an Friday 28 April 2017 The ex-dividend date was 27 Agrit 2017
The final dtdend proposed by The Soard 15 3 6p {2076 3 Sp) per share resulting in 3 (otal ordinary didend for the year of 5 4p
{2076 4 5p) Wwwdl be pawd on 1 February 2018 to those shareholders who are on the register at 5 lanuary 2018 subject 1o approval
at the Company's Annual General Meeting The ex-dividend date 1s 4 January 2018 These finanaal statements do not reflect the
final dridend payment

26, Share premium reserve

2017 2016
£ £m
Share premium 101.6 100 8

The share prermum reserve represents the ¢onsideration that has been received in excess of the nominal vaiue of shares in issue

Movements In share premium are presented withir: the Consoiidated Statement of Changes in Equity

27. Operating lease arrangements w0 2016
£m £m
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense durfng the year 3.9 32

At year end the Group had cutstanding comrmitments for future msnimum lease payments under nen-cancellable operating

leases, which Talt due as Toliows 201 2016

£Em £Em
Within one year 4.3 39
tn the second to frfth years intlusive €9 8.7
After five years 1.1 28
Outstanding commitiments for future minimum leasa payments 12.3 15.4

Operating lease payments typically represent rentals payatile by the Group for 1ts office properties and cars Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to leased property agreements

28. Motes to the cash flow statement 2007 -
Notes Em Em
Profit for the finandal year 74.4 735
Adjustments for
Income tax expense 1" 177 134
Amortisation of intangibles 14 2.4 25
Share option charge 3 o9 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 11 1
Intarest expense 10 a7 49
Interest income 9 {1.8) 27
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 98.¢ 100.2
Decrease in trade and other recevables (i3] 2.2
{INCrease) in wventones {B5.9} {99 5)
increase in trade and other payables 54 378
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 18.2 404
interest recerved a1 0.2
Interest paid 2.9} {4.1)
Income taxes paid (19.2) (182)
Cash {used}/ generated by operations {(3.8) 18.3
Net cash {outfiow) / inflow from operating activities {3.8) 18.3

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 07 19,0
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28. Notes to the cash flow statement conunued
Cash and cash equivalents compr-se cash and bank balances and short-term pank depesits with an origmnal matunity of three
months or less, net of cutstanding bank averdrafts The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates far value

The increase 1n inventones comprises maovements 10 Iventores (inchuding art-exchange properues), affset oy the repayment
of promissory notes

The increase :n trade and other payakles includes the movement in land payables

29. Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates 3 stakeholder defined contribution retrement cenefit scherme which s open (o alf employees

Other than amounts that are deducted from emplayees’ remuneration and accrued pending payment to the benefit scheme,
no further obigations fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangerments are held and managed by rhwd parties entirely
separate fromthe Group

The benefit scheme charge for the year represents ¢ontributions payable to the benefit scheme and emounted 1o £2 6m for
the year ended 31 August 2G17 (2016 £2 Tm) Unpaid contributions armounted to £0 3m as at 31 August 2017 (2016 £0 2m)

30. Financial risk management
The Group’s financial instruments comprise casn, bank loans and ove:drafts, trade recevaoles, ather financial assets and trade

and other payables

Categories of financial instrurnents 207 015
£m £m

Financial ussets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Shared equity recervables 28.9 293
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 40.7 1190
Trade and other recervahles 2.7 2.2
72.3 150.5
Financial Habifities
Amortised cost
Trade and glher payables 77.2 %20
Land payahbles 674 453
Loans 8.0 52.5
tand-related promissory nates - 1.3
152.6 2051

Capital risk management

The Group manages Its capital (being debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity) to ensure entities within the Group have a
strong capital base tn arger ro conunue as goINg CONCENS, [0 maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a basis
for the future development of the business while maxirmising the return to stakehkolders

The revolving credit facility imposes financiat covenants, which is normal for siich agreements, aif of which the Group 1s compliant
with The Group manages a robust internal forecasting and review process 1¢ ensure .t operates within these capital
reguiremernts

The Group does not routinely make additional 1ssues of capital, other than far the purpose of raising finance for the management
of the cost of capital of the Group or to fund significant developments designed to grow value in the future

Share-Dased payment schemes allow senior employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of the Group n order to
ensure the senior employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the aims of all shareholders

Financial risk management
The Group's finance function is respensibie for all aspects of corporate treasury It co-ordinates access to financial markets

and moritors and manages the financial risks relaung to the operatans of the Group through internal reports which analyse
exposures by degree and magnitude The risks reviewed include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credi nsk, iquadity nisk and cash flow interest rate nsk

The Board 1s responsible for managing these risks and the pohicies adopted are as set out on the next pages
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30. Financial risk management cantinued

Housing market risk management

The Group's activities expose It primariy 1o macroeconomic risks such as deflavon and the cyclical nature of UK property prices
Adeterioratan i the acanomic cuttaak cauld have a significant impact on the Groug's finandal performance and the Group has
the following procedures which mitigaie 1s markel-related operatonal risk

» The Group closely monitors ndustry indicators and assesses the potential impact of different econormic scenarios

= Decsiors to allocare new capital to lard and buid are managed centally through the Group investment Commillee,
membership of which inciudes the Chief Executive Ofiicer, the Crief Financial Officer, the Chief Operating Officer and the
Land & Planning Director

* The Group aims to maintan a natonal and product spread of developments ta ensure that it s nok relant on one partcuylar
location, devetopment or product

« The Group underiakes a weekly review of sales, reservalions and ngertives at regionat and Group ievel

The vaiue of the Group's house price linked financial asserts 1s sensitrve to UK house prices since the amount repayabie 1s
dependent upon the market price of the property te which the asset s inked AL 3T August 2017 if UK house prices were 5%
lower for a one-year period and all other varables were held constant, the Group's house price linked financial assets would
decrease invalue, excluding the effects of tax, Oy £1 1 {2016 £1 Tmywith 2 correspanding reducuon iy botk the result for the
year and equity

Credit risk management

Credit sk refers 1o the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contraciual obiligations resuting m finanaal loss (o the Group
The Group has a low exposure (0 crecht risk due to the nature and legal framewaork of the UK housing industry As stated i the
Group's accounting poficy for revenue recognition, a sale 1s only recognised upon legal completron and this 1s accompanied by
full cash receptin wirually ail cases

N certain arcumstances the Group offers sales incentives resulting in a long-term debt bewg recognsed under which the Group
will receive a proportion of the resale proceeds of a property The Group's equity share is protected by a registered entry on the
utle and usually represents the first interest in the property A reduction in property vaiues leads (o an increase i the credr risk
of the Graup m respect of such sales

The credit nsk relaung 10 shared equiy recevables is deemed immaternial 35 the value s recavered though subsequent disposal
of the related asset As a result, management consider the credit quality of these recevables to be good in respect of the amaunts
outstanding, resulting in low crecit sk Exposure to house price sensitnty 1s built into the far value calculation

Trade recervables consist of a large number of customer s, spread across grfferent regrons Ongoing credit evaluation s performed
on the financial condition of rade recevatles

The Group does not have any significant Credi risk exposure to any single counterparty or 2roup of counterparties having swmiar
characteristcs The Group defines counterparties as having similar charactensucs if they are related entites There is na matenal
concentration of credic risk in respect of one mdividual customer

The carrying amaunt recorded for financial assets in the financial statements s net of imparment fosses and represents the
Group's maximum exposure o credit sk No guarantees have been given in respect to third parties In agddition, for contracted
rental agreements deposits or advances may be held Lo rmtigate nisk The Group also holds legal recourse and can exercise its
might 1o recover rental equipmert from non-performing customers

Liquidity risk management

Lijurdity riskis the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations asspcrated with financal habulities The
Group's strategy In relation to managing hguidity sk (s to ensure that the Group has sufficent cash flow Iquid funds to meet
all its potental habdities 35 they fall due The Graup praduces cash flow forecasts o maniter the expected requirernents of the
Group against the available facibes The prinoipal nsks with these ¢ash flows relate te achieving the level of sales volumes and
prices in hine with current forecast
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30. Financial risk management continued
The maturity of the financial iabihties of the Group au 31 August 2016 and 2017 are as follows

2016

Carrying, Contractual
velue carsh flows wthin 1 year 2-Syears 5+ years
£m £m £m £m Em
Loans 550 64.7 20 62.7 -
Other financal habdities carrying interest 13 n4 11.4 - -
Fnancal habilites carrying ne interest 1413 1413 1413 - -
Total 2076 2174 1547 627 -

2017

carrying Contractual
value <ash flows Within 1 year 2-5years S+ years
£m £m Em £m £m
Loans 10.0 15.2 1.4 13.8 -
Financial hakiliwes carnang no interest 144.6 1446 144.6 - -
Total 154.6 159.8 146.0 13.8 -

Other financial habiities carrying interest are promissory notes, which attract avalabifity and aiscount fees Finaraial iabiives
carrying no nterest are trade and other payables and land payables The urming and amount of future cash flows givenin the
table above 1s based on the year end posiion

Intarest rate risk management
Interest rate risk reflects the Group's €xposure Lo fluctustions to interest rates in the market The risk arises because the Group’s

RCF 15 subjeat 1o floanng nterest rates based on LIBOR

Ini the year ended 31 August 2017, § UK interest rates had been 0 5% higher or lower, as thes s a reasonably possible change, and
ak other vanances were held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit would decrease/increase by £0 5m (2016 £0 5my Calculations
have been based on borrowing values at each month end

Fair value of financial instruments
Valuation technigues and assumptions appiied for the purposes of measuring foir value

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of finanaal assets and financiar habilities recorded at amortised cost in the
financial statements approximate their far values

Bank and other loans
Fair value is calcutated based on discounted expected future prinapal and interest flows

Interest rate swaps
At each penad end, the Directors appomnt a valuer to perform an external valuation of the fair vatue of each interest rate swap or

cap outstanding

Valuation of Levels 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and liabilities

« The fair values of financial assets and financial izbiliies with standard terms and condimons and traded on acive Iquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices (includes hsted redeemable nates, oills of exchange,
debentures and perpetual notes)

= The far values of other finanoal 2ssets and financial habilities fexcluding dervatwe nstruments) are determined i accordance
with generally accepted pricong imodels based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current marker
transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments

= The far values of derivauve instruments are calculated using quoted prices Where such prices are not available, a discourted
cash flow analysis is performed using the appicabie yield curve for the duration of the iInstruments for non-optional
dervatives, and option priang models for optional dervatives Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using gquored
forward exchange rates and yteld curves derived from guoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts Interest rate
SWaps are measures at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates
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30. Financial risk management continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financal instruments that are measured subsequent te imual recogriton
at fair value The grouping into Levels 1 to 3 1s based on the degree to which their fair value 1s observable

« Level T far value measurements are those derived from quoted prices funadjusted) in active markets for identcal
assets of flabuties

« Level 2 far value measurements are those derrved from nputs other than guored prices included within Level 1
that are cbservable for the asset of habiity, enher drectly (1e as prices) or nairectly (e denved from prices)

« Level 3far valug measurements are those derived from valuatior techmgues that include inputs for the asset or
higbility that are not based on cbservable rarket data (unobservable HpUEs)

The finanaal nstruments held by the Growp that are rmeasured at fair value alf relate to financral assets measured at far
value through profit and loss (FYTPL} using methods associated with Level 3 The sensitivities are not material on assels
held at farr value

Wik
Levai 1 Levei2 Level3 Total
£m £m £ £m
Financlal assets at FVTPL
Shared equity recenvables - - 293 293
Total financial assets designated at FVTPL - - 253 203
27
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m Em
Financlal assets at FYTPL
Shared equity receivables - - 28.9 28.9
Tatal financial assets designated at FYTPL - - 28,9 28,9

There were no ransfers between Levels 1, 2 o 3 mthe year

Fingnoiat assets comprise shared equity loans secured by way of a charge on the properly and aninterest rate cap

Finanaal assets are recorded at fair value, being the estmated amount receivable by the Groun, discounted to present day values

For shared equity receivables the fair vatue of future anticrpated cash receipts takes into account the Directars’ views of an
appropnate discaunt rate, a new build prermium, future house price movemerts and the expected tming of receints These
assumpLions cover a vaniety of different schermes and the range of assumpriens used are stated below The assumpuions are

reviewed at each penod end

A r i3 2017 2016
Discount rate 3.8tn44% 4.7t05.1%
New build premium 5% 5%
House price inflation 0t05.75% Oto 4.0%
Timing of receipt 5to¥4yrs Sioi2yrs
217 207

fncreass Decreass

assumptlons assumptions
by 1% 71 year by 19%/1 year

Sensitivity-effect on value of ather financial assets (1 W £m im
Ciscount rate (2.3) 25
House price inflation 23 2.1
Twrung of receipt {0.4) 2.4

The fair value of the shared equity receivable 15 based on the external avallable data The sensiqivity-effect of 3 1% chang
15 representative of our best estimate of a reasonably possible change

e

The Dwrectars review the anticpated future cash receipts from the assets at gach reporung date and the difference between the

anticipated future receipt and the imtial fair value 1s credited to finance mcame
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30. Financial risk management continued

A intial recogninian, the fair values of the assets are calculated using 3 ciscount rate appropriace to the class of assets that
reflects market conditions at the date of entering into the transaction The Directors consider at the end of each reporung penod
whether the mitial market discount rate still reflects up 0 date market conditions H a revision s required, the far values of the
as5ats arae re-measured at the present value of the rewsed future cash flows using this revised discount rate The difference
petwean these values and the carrying values of the assers s recarded aganst the carrying value of the assets and recogrised
directly in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income

The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instrurments for the years ended 31 August 2016 and 2017

2016

Shared
equity Interest
TRCRWATARY T 2R Toalh
£m £m
opemng balance 280 0.3 283
Addiions 05 - 0.5
Disposals {17 - a7
Revaluation gains or (losses) recognised in the income statement 2.5 0.3 22
Closing balance 293 - 293
2017
Shared
oty interest
receivables rate cap Total
£m £m £m
Qpening, balance 29.3 - 29.3
Additions 0.8 - 0.8
Disposals 2.7) - {2.7}
Revaiuation gains recognised in the income statement 15 - 1.5
Closing balance 28.9 - 28.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

31. Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment plans
The Group operates a number of share-based payment schemes as set aut befow

Lang Term incentive Plan (LTI}

The Group's LTIP s open to key management at the discretion of the Board Awards under the scheme are granied in the form

of mi-priced share opuons LTIP awards will normatly vest, and LTIP Opoions becorme exerdisable, on the third annversary of the
date of the grant of the LTIF award to the extert that any applicable performance conditions have been sansfied LTIF options

wilt rernain exgrOsaie for ten years after the daie of the gram Awards are 10 be settled by the ssue of New Shates or atguisivor
of shares n the market The performance conditions for the 2016 and 2017 LTIP grants are earnings per share (EPS'), comparative
total shasreholder returr TSR} and return on capital employed (ROCE) The TSR performance condition 1s a market-based
condition In order to value the TSR performance conditions aganst the FTSE 250 and peer greup, 2 Monte Carlo sitnulation
modet is required which can simulate correlation between companies

e Total
Date of grant 21 Cecember 2016 25 November 2015
Options granted 1,933,352 1.930,524
Fair value at measurement date® (£} 1.32 212
Share price on date of grant (£} 1.56 232
Exercise prica {f) - -
Vesting period 3years 3years
Expected dindend yreld nfa nia
Expected volatiity 29.21% 26 07%
Risk free interest rate 0.23% p.a. 0.8%p.a
valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

and Monte Carlo and Monte Carlo
Movernents in the year:
Optiors at beginning of the year - 1,816,636 1,816,636
Granted during the year 1.933,352 - 1,933,352
Exercised dunng the year - - -
Lapsed during the year {57.143) 1308,32¢) 1365,469)
Expired in the year - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,576,209 1,508,310 3.384.519

Exercisable at end of the year - - -

* This 15 the average “alr vai.e of the fair values far the three rranches of the _TIP awards diring 2017
The weighted average of the average price for the LTiP award s nil

Expected volatlity was determined by calculating the average historical volatility over a period commensurate with the expected
Iife of the award for the LTIP based on the FTSE 250, which McCarthy & Stone are a constiuert of post-i#0

Sharesave plan {'SAYE)

The SAYE plan is an all-empicyee savings-related share opuon plan Employees are invited to make regular monthly contributions
to a SAYE scheme operated by Link Asset Services On completion of the contract period {three or five years) employees are able
to purchase ordinary shares in the Company based on the average closing middle rmarket price over the three days prior

to the award, iess 20% discount There are no performance conditions
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Weighted average
SAYE Tatal exercise price
Date of grant 10 December 2015 10 December 2015
Qptions granted 2,912,247 1,197,514
Fair value at measurement date (£) 068 075
Share price on date of grant (£) 234 234
Exercise pnze () 1674 1674
Vesting period 3years 5years
Expected divdend yield 26 20% 2B.16%
Expected volatility 26 07% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.8% p.a. 1.2% p.a.

Valuation madel

Movermnents in the year

Black-Scholes

Black-Scholes

Options at beginning of the year 2,653,028 1,161,675 3,814,703 1674
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year (15,365} - {15,385) 1874
Lapsed during the year (740,448} {234,829} {§75.277) 1674
Expired n the year - - - -
Options at the end of the yeat 1,897,215 926,846 2,824,061 1.574

Exercisable at end of the year

Expected volatilty was determined by calculaung the average historical volatilty over a period commensurate with the expected
life of the sawvings term for the SAYE aptions, based on the FTSE 250, which McCarrhy & Stone are a constituent of post-IPO

Share Incentive Plan {‘SIP")

The SIP aliows all empioyees to purchase partnership shares each month from pre-tax pay, which are then held in rust These

shares can be sold or taken from the SIP or be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open All plan shares and any
other assets held by the trustees will be held upon trust for the parucipants, there is therefore no tmpact ta the Group's finanasl
statements in respect of this plan

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan (‘ABP’)

The ABP incorperates the Company’s execulive bonus scheme as well as a mechanism for the deferral of bonus into awards
over ordinary shares The Committee can determing that part of the borus under the ABP 15 provided as an award of deferred
shares, which takes the form of a £ril cost option The maximum value of deferred shares 15 50% of the bonus earned All
empioyees (incuding the Cxecutive Directors) of the Group are eligibée to participate m the ABP et the discreticn of the Board
AL 37 August 2077 three Executive Direclors were parucipating in the scheme For the year ended 31 August 2017, one-third of
the bonus earned by the CEQ and COO 'n the finanaal year, totalbng £0 1m, will be deferrean the farm of deferred shares for
three years, during which no oerformance conditions will apply The amount deferred will be recognised aver the three-year
deferral period

Total Share-based payment schemes _—

20

Analysis of the income charge &m e
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-hased payments

Management Incentive Plan - 0.4

Equity-settled share-based payments

SAYE 0.5 04

LTIP 0.4 o7

0.9 11

0.9 1.5
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32, Subsidiaries

Name

Company Classof 2017 2016

Principal activity b shares % L)

McCarthy & Stone (Develapments) Lirnited Holding Campany 06622183 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited Developer 06622231 Ordinary 100 100
MeCarthy & Stane {Equity Interests) Limited Property Investment 05663330 Ordiary We 100
McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited Property investment 05584831 Ordinary 100 100
MeCarthy & Stone Investrnent Properties No 23 umited*  Property investment 064595130 Ordinary 1o 100
McCarthy & Stone {Total Care Living) Limited* Property Investment 0B089509 Ordinary 100 100
teCarthy & Stone {Alnwick) Limterd Property investment O7517819 Ordnary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited Property Investment 06897363 Ordhinary 100 10
McCarthy & Stane Total Care Management Limited Property investment 06897301 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Interests No 1 Limited* Property Investrment 06897272 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stane Management Secvices Limited Development management 07166051 Grdwary 100 00
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited* Holding Company 07165986 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Finanaial Services Limited* Fancial Services 07798214 Ordinary 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited Property investment 04213618 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Lirmted* Property Resale 07165952 Ordinary 100 100
YourbLife Management Services Limited Developmertt Management 0715351% Ordnary 50 50
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited* Darmant 01925738 Ordinary 00 100
The Plarning Bureau Lirmited* Dermant 02207050 Ordinary 100 100
Ortus Homes Limited™ Dormant 08658235 Ordinary 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Resales Limited* Property Resale 10716544 Qrdinary 100 n/ia
Linden Court Lirmted* Dormant 0432213% Ordinary 100 n/a

* Thase UK Supsicharies will tae advantage of the audit exempt on set oLt within secoor 4794 of the Companies ac; 2006 for the yaar anded 31 August 2077

The dormant comparies have (aken advantage of the sect.on 394A exemption from preparing ndividual accounts

Each of the above sharehaidings gives the immediate Parent Company 100% voting rights, with the exception of YourLife

Manggement Services Limiled where the parent has 50% voting rights, but the power @ appoint the malonty of the Directors

Accordingly, this gives the Group power over the refevant activities of this eptity

The registered address of alf of the above subsidranes Is 4th Floor, 100 Holderhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BHE 8AQ

33. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Parent Comparny and 1s subsidiaries, which are related parues, have been
elminated on consolidation and are not disclased i this note Transactions between the Group and other related parties

are disclosed below

Remuneration of key management personnel

The key management persannel are the Executve Leadership Team The remnuneration that they have receved dunng the year
is set out betow in aggregate for each of the categories specified in 1AS 24 'Refated Party Disclosures’

2017 2016

£ £m

Short-term employee benafits .7 25
Sacial security costs 0.4 0.3
Share-hased payments L X} a9
Pension contributions 0.3 02z
Termination payment - Q04
3.8 4.3

Aggregate emoluments of the highest paid Director 1.0 0.9

In 2016, as part of the Management incentive Plan shares tataling 33,098,147 were 1ssued 1o key management personnel,

prior to share consolidation Note 25 detai's rovernents in share capital within the year

34, Events after the balance sheet date

There were no events after the reporting perod that regurred adjustmert or disclosure in the Fnancal statements
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m7 2016
Notes Em £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidianes 4 439.4 4394
Tatal non-current assets 439.4 439 4
Current assets
Trade and other receivabies 5 779 104 3
{ash and cash equivalents - -
Total current assets 779 104.3
Total assets 517.3 5437
Equity and ltabllities
Capftal and reserves
Share capital 43.0 430
Share prermium 101.6 1008
Retained earnings 3674 3943
Total equity & 512.0 5381
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabiles 7 53 5.6
Total current liabliities 5.3 56
Total liabilities 5.3 56
Total equity and liabilities 517.3 513.7
Motes 1 1o 11 form part of the firanaoal statements shown sbove
Thera were no recognised gains ang 'osses for the year other than the profit for the year (2076 nil)
The Campany has elected 10 take the exermnption under section 408 of the Campanies Act 2006 nat to present the Parent
Company profit and loss acceunt The Company recorded a profi for the year of £0 7m (2016 £1 7m)
These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (06622199} were approved By the Board on 13 Novernber 2017
and signed on its behalf by
Clive Fenton Rowan 8aker
Director Director
el -
Al Ao
'a a DS S
(e
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Parent Company

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 August 2017

Share Share Resalned
capital premium sarnings Total
Notes £m £m £m Em
Balanice at 1 September 2015 3811 56.4 (2.5) 4358
Profit for the year - - 1.7 17
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1.7 17
Transactions with owners of the Company
issue of ordinary shares & 49 1048 - 1097
Capital reduction of share capital and share prermium 6 (3430) (56 4) 3994 -
Share-based payments 9 - - 1.1 1
Share 1ssue related costs 6 - 40 - 4.0
Dividends [ - - {54 (5.4}
Balance at 31 August 2016 43.0 100.8 394.3 538.1
Profit for the year - - 0.7 .7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 07 0.7
Transactions with ownars of the Company
Share-based payments 9 - - 0% 0.9
Duwdends 8 - - (28 5} {28 5)
Share issug related costs - tax credit - 08 - 0.8
8alance at 31 August 2017 430 101.6 367.4 512.0

Notes 1to 11 form part of the finanaial statements shown sbove
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

217 2016
Notes Em Em
Net casir inflow from operating activities 8 28.5 54
Investing activities
Ameunts owed in respect of share issuance 6 - (86 0}
Net cash used in investing activities - (86 0}
Financing activitles
Proceeds from issue of share capitat 6 - 860
Dnadends paid 6 {28.5) {5.4)
Net cash from financing activities {28.5) 806
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - _
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - -
Wates 1 to 11 form part of the financial staternents shown above
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Staterents

1. Accounting policies

MeCarthy & Stone plt 1s 3 pubiic imited abiny Company incorporated 1n England  The Regstered Office 15 41h Foor, 100
Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorser, BH8 8AQ The fallowing acrountng policies have been apphed consistently n dealing
with the items that are considered maierial in relation Lo the financial statements, on an ongoing basis and N accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

Basis of preparation
The separate (ompanry inancial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost acceunung rules and in accordance
wit FRS 102, The Financial Reporung Standard applicable i the Uniked Kingdom and the Republic of [reland

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company s exermpt from the requirement to present its own profit and
1055 accourt The Company recorded a profit for the year of €0 7rn {2016 £1 7m)

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Investments in subsidiaries
lrestments i Group undertakings are Induded 1n ihe Statement of Finantal Posinon &t cosT 1ess any prowsion for mparment

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprse cash and short-term bank deposits with an onginal matunity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts

Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the far value at the date at which they zre
granted and 15 recogrised as an expense over the vesting period I valuing eguity-settied ransactrons, no account 1s taken of any
non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense s recognised far awards that do nor ultimately vest as  result of a failure to
sausfy a nan-market-based vesting congiion

The cost of cash-settled transactions 1s measured at fair value Fair value is esumated inually at the grant date and at each
reporting period end therealter unal the awards are settied Market-based conditions are taken Into account when determining
fair value

Further details regarding the schemes are set aut i 2ote 31 to the consolidated financial staternents

Dividend distribution
Omdend distributions ta McCarthy & Stone’s shareholders are recogmised in the Company’s financal statements in the periods
inwhich the final dvidends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, o when paid in the case of an mtenm dedend

Financial instruments
Finzncial assets and hnancial kabilities are recogrised in the Company’s Statement of Financial Postion when the Cornpany
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets

All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered irito where
the purchase or sale af a financial asset 1s under a contract whose terms require deiivery of the finanaial asset withun the
umeframe established by the market concerned They are minially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for
those financal assets classified as at far value through prafit ar foss, wiuch are inically measured at far value

Financial assets are classified as oans and recenables’ The classificauon depends on the nature and purpose of the financal
a558ts and s deterrnined at the tme of imibial recogniton

Loans ond receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and recevables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effectve
interesy method, less any impairment Interest ncame is recognised by applymg the effective interest rate, except for
shart-term receivables when the recogrition of interest would be immacerial
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1. Accounting policies continued
Fingncial assets are classified as toans and recevatles’ The classificaton depends on the nature and purpose of the financial

assels and s determined at the me of inital regogniuon

Laans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted n an active
marker are classfied as loans and recevables’ Loans and recevables are measured a1 amortsed cost Jsirg the effective
nterest method, less any irmparment Interest income 15 recognised by applying the effective interest rate, exceps for
short-term recevables when the recogrution of nterest would be mmaterial

Financiol liabilities and equity
Debr and equity mstruments are dassified as esther financiai latxhtes or as eguity In accordance with the substance of

the contractual arrangement

Equity instruments
An equity INstrument s any contract that evidences 2 residual interest i the assets of an enuty after deducting all of its
habilities Equity Instruments tssued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds receved, net of direct Issae costs

Financioi liabilities
Financial habiiities are classified as ‘other financiat habihues'

Other financiol liabilities
Other financial habilitres, including borrowings, are rivally measured at fair value, net of transactior costs

Other financal lanlues are subseguently measJred at amortised cost using the affective nrerest methad, wath interest
axpense recognised on ar effective yield basis

The effective interest method is a methed of caleulatng the amortsed cost of 2 fnanciat iability and of allocating interest
expenrse over the relevant period The effective interest rate s the rate that exactly discounts estrmated future cash payments
through the expected Iife of the financial hability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, te the net carrying amount an

mtal recognizion

Share capital
Ordinary shares are dassified as equity Incremental COSis directly attributabie 1o the issue of new ordinary shares or options are

shawn in equity as a deduction from the proceeds

Related parties

The Company discloses transactions with refated parties winch are not wholly owned wathin the same Group Where appropriate,
transactons of a similar nature are aggregated unless. N the opinion of the Directors, separate disclosure s necessary to
understand the effect of the transactions on the finanoal statements

2, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make
Judgements, estimates and assumprions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not reackly apparent
frorm other sources The estimates and associated assumplions are based on histoncal experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these esumates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an an ongoiNg basis Rewisions (o accounting esumales are recognised
in the penad in which the esumate 15 revised if the revision affects only that period, or iIn the penad of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and futurg penods

There are no specific critical jJudgements or key assumptions the Company makes about the future, or other major sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting pered, that are deemed to have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustrent to the carrying armounts of assets and liabiliies at the year end and within the next financial ysar
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements continued

3. Staff costs
The Company had no emplayees during the period covered by these financial statements Costs relating ta ume incurred by
Directors for Group acivines are recharged 1o MoCarthy & Stone pic

4, investments in subsidiaries

M7 2016
Cost £ £m
1 September £39.4 4997
Addions - 187
At 31 August 439.4 4354
Net book value 439.4 439.4

Investments in subsidiary undertakings relate to a 100% ownership interest in McCarthy & Stone (Developmerits) Limited

The Group's subsidhary underiaiungs for the penod that are sigrificant for tne periad and raded durng the peniod are listed
m note 32 {o the conselidated financial statements

5. Trade and other raceivables

am7 ama
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Ameounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 77.3 1043
UK corporation tax 0.6 -
77.9 104.3

Amaunts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Lirmited are repayable an demand and carry interest of 2 2%
(2016 2 29) at the year end date

6, Shareholders” funds
The movernents of the share capial, share premium and equity reserve accounts are disclosed in note 25 and 26 to the
consoldated financial statements

Dividends within the year are disclosed within riore 25 ta the consolidated financial statements

7. Trade and sther payables
Flar 2016
£ £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amaunts awed to subsudiary undertakings 5.3 56
5.3 56

Amounts payable  McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2 2% (2016 2 2%)
al the year gnd date
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2. Notes to the cash flow statement

2017 2016
Nates Em Em
Profit for the financial year 0.7 17
Adjustments for
Interest Income (1.9} 26)
Share option charge 09 11
Income tax experse 0.2 04
Operating cash flows before movements in warking capital (0.1} 0.6
Decrease f increase) n rade and other recevables 5 270 D8
(Decrease) / increase n trade and other payables ¥ {0.3) 34
Operating cash flows before interest and tax paid 26.6 32
Interest recerved 1.9 26
Tax pad - (D 4}
Cash generated by operations 235 54
Net cash inflow from operating activities 285 54

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances - -

9. Share-based payments

Following the IPO of the Company in Novembier 2015, the Company entered into new share incentive plans Detarls of share
awards granted by the Company to emplayees of subsidianies, and that remain outstandimg at the year end aver the Company's
shares, are set out In note 31 o the consohdated financial statements

The Company recognised an expense of £0 9m relating to eguity-settled share-based paymenrt transactions .n the year
{2016 £11m)

10. Financial instruments
The Company has the following fnancl instruments

2017 2016
£m £m
Financial assets
Loans and recelvables measured at amortised cost
Trade and gther recévables 773 1043
Cash and bank balances - -
773 104 3
Financial liabifities
Loans and payzbles measured at amartised cost
Trade and ather payables 5.3 56
5.3 5.6

The Company has no dervative financial instrurnents The tair vaiue of the financial instruments is equal to their carrying values
11. Related party transactions

The Company is exempt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly owned within the Group
See note 33 fo the consolidated financial statements

Remuneration to key management personnel has been disclosed within nate 33 to the consalidated financial statements
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Waming to
shareholders

the blue and affered shares that often turn out to be worthless
or non-existent, or an inflated price for shares they own These
calls come from fraudsters operating .1 ‘boder rooms’ that are
mostly based abroad While bugh profits are promised, those
who buy or self shares m this way usually lose thewr money
These Callers can be very persistent and extremnely oersuasive
They may even claim to be caling on behalf of the Campany

The Financal Conduct Authority (FCA) has found most share
fraud wictims are experienced investors who lose an average
of £20,000, with around £200m fost in the UK each year

Protect yourself

You are advised to be extremely wary If you are offered
unsolicited nvesiment advice, discounied shares, a premium
price for shares you own, or free company or research reports
You should take these steps before handing over any money

Get the pame of the person and organisation
contacting you

Check the Financial Services Register at
http://www.fca.org uk/ to ensure they are acthorised

Use the details on the FCA Register to contact the firm

Call the FCA Consumer Helpline on: 0800 111 6768 if there
are no contact details on the Register or you are told they
are out of date

Search the FCA's list of unautharised firms and individuals
to aveld doing business with.

REMEMBER: if it sounds too good to be true, it probably is!

Hyou use an unauthorised firm to buy or sell shares or
other investments, you will not fave access to the Financal
Ombudsman Serwce or Financial Services Compensation
Scheme (FSCS) H things g0 wrong

Report a scam

if you are approacheg about a share scam you should teli the
FCA using the share fraud reporting form at

www fca.org.uk/consumers/report-scam-unauthorised-firm
where you can find out about the latest investment scams

You can also call the Cansumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768

Ifyou have already paid money ta share fraudsters you should
confact Action Fraud on 0300 123 20440
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Historical
tatisti
FY17 FY16 FY15' Fy14'
Legal completions 2,302 2.2967 1,823 1677
{Gross average selling price £273k £264k £245k £222k
Revenue £660.9m £635 9m £4857m £387.8m
Profit hefore tax £92.tm £92 9m £80,9m £57.1m
Sharehoiders’ funds £908.9m £919,8m £762.3m £477 2m
ROCE 16% 20% 20% 175
Tangrble gross asset value £645.7m £574.1m £513.5m £451 Zm
Tangible net asset value £676.4m £626.8m £469.1m £402 3m
Basic earmings per share 13.8p 13.9p 13 5p* nfa*
Dividends for the year ? 5.4p 4,5p nil nil
Number of shares i issue 537,320,434 537,314,069 n/a® n/a
Number of sharehglders 863 705 n/a® n/at
1Y15 and £ ¥ 4 finanoal staremerts wwere prad .rec oFier 1o o STark bxe Parge isiing whicn pokolaseon Novermner 20 &
2 -xclytes ibrer ommarcizture 5
3 “hedivgends nirsnecl of any F-ancalye s are toe intariee div dens viich 2 ioneen pard angd Jhz -3l dividens which has been pranosen
Dradends wore el pad 17 VTh or FVie
4 helgure for e FY 5 PSwas recalotatsds - he FY¥1g annyal feportand adj.s.ed orerec dred 1 cansalital on of sur srare capital thad took place in Y16
orIor years have not seet adpsied
5 Thet omoan s share L apal 3 ALZust 2075 a~C 37 Augist 24 was T90%,589 75 ord macy shares of 200 a1 As part of b preparor for bstr g, the nomingl
value of the enares was redurad o 2p Acdrior of shares were alotten a~c tre cnares were consol da =d oF 2 41 hasis becomirg ordinay stares of 3p nominal val .o
5 The number of sharehnlders prar to uur Bang on 11 Noverr e 7015 nas rio been discased on {me grounds of re=levancs
Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements
Some of the mformation in this document may contain profectlons or other forward-looking statements regarding future events
ol the future finandal performarice of McCarthy & Stone ple and its subsidianes (the Group) You can identify forward-looking
statements by terms such as ‘expect’, ‘believe, ‘Fnucpate’ ‘esumate’, intend’, will, ‘could’, may’ or ‘might’, the negative of such
terms or other similar expresstons McCarthy & Stone ple (the Company) wishes to caution you that these statements are only
predictions and that acrual events or results mgy differ materially The Company does not intend to update these statements
lo reflect events and circumstances occurning after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticpated events Many
factors could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained in projections or forward-looking statements of
the Group, including among athers, general economic conditions, the competitive environment as well as many other risks
specifically related to the Group and its operations Past performance of the Group cannot be relied on as a guide to future
performance
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General
l nfo rm atlo n McCarthy & Stone plc 15 a pubiic Company irmited by shares and

registered in England and Wales, registered number 06622199
Our registered and head office 1s situated at

4th Floor

100 Holdenfurst Road

Bournemouth

Dorset

BHB 3AQ

Telephane 01202 292480

Corporate website www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
Consumer website www.mccarthyandstone,co.uk

Emall investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.couk

Qur ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange
(premiLm isnng) and we are 10 the FTSE 260 index

Legal Entity ldentfier (LE])
213800CEI4QQSYPURZ T

Internatignal Securrties Idenufication Number {SIN)
GEMOBYNVDOR2

Ticker Symbol MCS

Advisers
Legal adviser Registrar
Allen & Overy LLP Link Asser Services
The Registry
Financial adviser 34 Beckerham Road
Rathschild Beckenham
Kent BR34TU
Financial and corporate
cemmunications Statutory auditor
Powerscourt Delottte LLP
Banker

HSBC Bank plc
Joint corporate brokers

Deutsche Bank
Peei Hunt

Contact detals for our registrars, Link Asset Services

Calls from the UK 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per
minute, plus any network extras,
lines are apen Manday to Friday
from 9am to 5 30pm, excluding
UK public hiohdays)

Calls from outside the UK +44 208 639 3339

Emall enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk
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3 Divisions & 9 Regions

N ]

Scotland

Unit 11000, Academy Park
Gower Street

Glasgow

G5! 1PR

Tel 0141 420 B300

North East

Aspen House

Wykeham Road
Northrminster Business Park

Upper Poppleton
Vo ooe

Y026 6QW
Tel 01904 444200

East Midlands

Graphic removed

Orian House
North West
Urnt 3, Edward Coure %;?;yr\]ﬂay
A:(nncham Business Park NNTS 6F$E
Aitrincham
WA14 5GL Tel 01536 220 700
Tel 0161 941 6255
West Midlands
Ross House
Harry Weston Road
Binley Business Park
Covent%y
£v3 I1 North London
Tel 02476 441199 Prospect Place
85 Great Narth Road
South West Hatfield
First Floor, Blackbrook Gate 1 ALS SDA
Blackbrook Park Avenue Tet: 01707 446000
Taunton
TA1 2PX
Tel 01823 200500 South East
2 Genesis Business Park
|_ J Albert Drive
Woking
Head Office Southern U1 SRA
Tel D148
4th Floor Southern House 3 908600
100 Haldenhurst Road 1 Embankment Way
Bournemouth, Dorset Ringwood
BHB BAQ BH24 1EU
Tel 01202 292480 Tel 01425 322000

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report and Accounts 157



Glossary

“ASP’

‘BSG’

‘Capital tsrn’

'cGY’
‘i

‘Company’
cqc

‘DCLG"

‘EPS’

“FRI'

‘FTSE

‘Gearing’
“Group’
PO’

‘Land bank’

‘LIBOR’

average seling price - the average
price agreed for sales of Jpartments
1 the year after dedycning list pnce
discounts and part-exchange top-ups

the Buillding Safety Group 1s a not-for-
profit organmsation which speciaiises
W prowmding Health, Safety end
ernvironmental advice for the
COMSLrUCon mdustry

caiculated by dviding revenue by
the average opening and closing
tangie gross asset value in the year

cash generating unit

the Community Infrastructure Lewy
of the Commusrigy infrastructure
Levy Regulaiions 2010

MeCarthy & Stone plc

the Care Quality Commission is an
executive non-departmentat public
body of the Depariment of Health
which regulates and inspects health
and social care services in England

the Department for Communities
and Local Goverrunent,

profit atinbuwisble 1o ordinary
sharehalders (excluding exceptionai
rerns) divided by the werghted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue
during the financial year

freehold reversionary nterest -

the freehold of each of the Group's
developments in England and Wales
which include the future mcome
stream of ground rents which can
be sold to third parties

the Financial Times Stock Exchange

gearing is calculated by dmiding
ner debt by net assers

the Company snd (s consohdated
subsidiaries and subsidiary
undertakings

Inttial Pobitc Offering

mcludes owned sites and
exchanged sites

the London interbank offered rate
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‘MSMS'

‘Net assets’

"Net debt/cash’

‘NHEBC'
PRS
‘ROCE

‘Section 106

TGAV

TNAV*

TSR

‘Underiying
profit before tax’

YLME

McCarthy & Stone Management
Services Limited - 3 whoily-owned
subsidiary of the Company that
provides management services
to homeowners n the Group's
Retirement Living and Lifestyle
Living devetopments

net assets is caiculated as total assets
less toral labilues

Cash and Cash equivalents less
lang-term and shart-term borrowings
{excluding unamorused debt

ISSLE COSLS)

National House Building Counail
Private Renged Sector

retusn on capital employed - calculared
by dviding underlying operating profit
by the average opening and closing
tangible gross asset value In the year

the legalty-binding agreements of
planning obitgatians entered into
etweer a landowrer and atocat
planning authority, under section
106 of the Town and Country
Planring Act 1990

:anﬁcble rosS asset value - calculated
as TNAY less net debt/cash

tangible net asset value  calculated
as net assets excluding goodwill and
ntangible asses

total sharehalder retyrm-1s 2
measurement of the performance
of the Group's share pnice since the
PO it combines the share price
apprecation and dividends paid

to shaw the total return to the
shareholders expressed as a
percentage

calculated by adding amortisation
of brand and exceptional
admmistrative expenses o profic
before tax

Yourtie Management Serwices
Limeed - a subsidary of MSMS
owned 55/50 by M5MS and Sornerset
Care Group Lirnited, that provides.
management services, domestic
assistance, personal care and
addiugnal support to homeowriers
wn the Group's Rearement Living Plus
developments



McCarthy & Stone

— Retirement living ta the full ——

4th Fleor

100 Holdenhurst Road
Bournemauth

Darset

BHS8 8AQ

Tel 01202 292 480

Webslte www mccarthyandstonegroup co uk Twitter twittercom/mecarthysione
Email investor-relations@mccarthyandstone co uk Facebook facebook com/mccarthystane
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